MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

100B Drakes Landing Road, Suite 250, Greenbrae, CA 94904 Telephone: 415-464-2090 Fax: 415-464-2094
Website: www.marinhealthcare.org Email: info@marinhealthcare.org

REGULAR MEETING (7:00 Pm)
TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2014

AGENDA
Board of Directors Location:
Chair: Larry Bedard, M.D. Marin General Hospital, Conference Ctr.
Vice Chair:  Ann Sparkman, J.D. 250 Bon Air Road
Secretary: Harris Simmonds, M.D. Greenbrae, CA 94904
Directors: James Clever, M.D. Staff: Lee Domanico, CEO
Jennifer Rienks, Ph. D. Louis Weiner, EA to the CAO
Colin Coffey, District Counsel
Donald Bouey, Bouey & Black
TAB
1. Call to Order Bedard
2. Roll Call Bedard
3. Approval of Agenda (action) Bedard
4. Approval of Consent Agenda
a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 8, 2014 (action) Bedard 1
5. General Public Comment Bedard
Any member of the audience may make statements regarding any items NOT on the agenda. Statements are limited to a
Maximum of three (3) minutes Please state and spell your name if you wish it to be recorded in the minutes.
Report from Closed Session Bedard
Resolution #2014-004 to approve New Marin General Hospital (MGH) Lease to Bedard/Bouey 2
Affiliated Non Profit Corporation (action)
8. Resolution #2014-005 to Call for November 4 Ballot Measure Election and Bedard/Bouey 3
Consolidation (action)
9. Designation of Affiliated Covered Entity for HIPAA Administration (action) Domanico 4
10. Marin Healthcare District Recruitment Arrangement for Internal Medicine
Physician for 1206(b) Clinic (Christina Edwards, D.O.) (action) Domanico 5
11. Q1 Quarter 2014 Performance Metrics and Core Services Report (action) Domanico
12. New Community Health Grant Policy, New Community Health Grant Application ~ Sparkman 7

and New Community Health Grant Report Form (action)
13. Committee Meeting Reports

a. MHD Finance & Audit Committee (no meeting in July) Sparkman
b. MHD Lease & Building Committee (no meeting in July)

14. Reports
a. District CEO’s Report Domanico
b. Hospital CEO’s Report Domanico
c. Chair’s Report Bedard
d. Board Members’ Reports All

15. Adjournment
A copy of the agenda for the Regular Meeting will be posted and distributed at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting.

American Sign Language Interpreters may be requested by calling (415) 464-2090 (voice) or (415) 464-2094 (facsimile) at least 48 hours in advance of this meeting.






| Hosltheare 2
Ml

MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
250 Bon Air Road
Greenbrae, CA 94904

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, July 8, 2014
Marin General Hospital, Conference Center

Call to Order
Chair Bedard called the meeting to order at 07:05 pm.

Roll Call
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair Larry Bedard, MD, Vice Chair Ann Sparkman, Secretary
Harris Simmonds, MD, Director Jennifer Rienks and Director James Clever

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None

ALSO PRESENT: Lee Domanico, Chief Executive Officer, Colin Coffey, District Counsel,
Donald Bouey, of Bouey and Black, and Renee’ Toriumi, Executive Assistant 1o the CEO

Approval of Agenda
Director Simmonds moved to approve the agenda as presented. Director Rienks seconded. Vote:

all ayes.

Approval of the Consent Agenda
Director Simmonds moved to approve the consent agenda. Director Sparkman seconded. Vote: all

ayes.
Director Simmonds moved to approve the minutes from the June 10, 2014 meeting. Director

Sparkman seconded with a change to the wording on page 3, Section 9a ,second sentence to read,
1206b Clinic operations are improving. Vote: all ayes with the noted amendments to the minutes.

No comments from the public.

General Public Comment

Report from Closed Session
No new business to repott.

MGH Lease Renewal
Fourth Public Hearing on MGH Lease Renewal Agreement

CEO Domanico excused himself from the board table during the public discussion of the Lease
Renewal, due to a potential conflict of interest.

Mr. Donald Bouey, representing Bouey & Black Attorneys, explained that the purpose of the
Community Forum was to provide the community an opportunity to dialog and input questions or

1



oaltheare o

Vol

suggestions on the Lease process between the District and Hospital structure. He provided a
summary (included following Tab 2) of the basic lease information citing compliance with
Healthcare District laws requiring five public meetings. There have been few changes made since
the five public meetings last year. Complete draft copies of the lease and presentation were
available in this meeting packets. Hard copies were also available on the table located at the read of
the meeting hall. The presentation was reviewed (included following Tab 3), which was also
included in the meeting packet:

Rent — rationale

Rent — four components

Triple Net Lease

Permitted Use: as a non-profit, general acute care hospital and related ancillary uses

New Improvements: MGH agrees to perform and pay for all District obligations to perform
seismic requirements including construction of new Hospital wing, parking structures and
related improvements

Default/Remedies

District approvals for improvements and capital expenditures

Surrender of Hospital Premises, Assets and Operations at Expiration or Termination
Amendment: the Parties may amend the Lease to the maximum extent permitted by law to
address lender and bond issuer/holder concerns and other issues that may arise

Dispute Resolution

Mr. Bouey also reviewed the appraisal report by Value and Information Group covering the
appraised value of the facilities subject to the proposed new Lease. It was noted that copies of
the lease documents had been posted to the District website, including the summary and
upcoming scheduled community meetings. The Public Forum #4 is scheduled for Thursday,
July 8" and the Public Forum #5 will be held before the end of July. Formal approval the lease
documents will be discussed at the regular meeting scheduled for August 5, 2014.

New changes to the bylaws will be incorporated in the lease once the changes have been
accepted and approved by the Board. Director Clever inquired about when changes could be
made to the lease. Mr. Bouey confirmed that changes could only be made at termination or
expiration of the lease.

Chair Bedard requested a condensed version of the information listed in this presentation
(limiting to 10 bullet points). Mr. Colin Coffey stated that a resolution will be presented at the
time of approval (August 5" meeting), which will be a summary of the information.

Director Rienks stated that the last time the District was responsible for running the hospital,
was in 1985 and that there has been no record of malfeasance since that time. Dr. Bedard stated
that when the public elected officials were on board, he recalled many disruptions and new
articles published about conflicts at Marin General Hospital. Dr. Bedard commended the Board
Members, serving on the Hospital Board, and stated that Marin General Hospital is fortunate to
have such an array of talented executives to help with the oversight of the Hospital Operations.

There were no public comments.

CEO Domanico returned to the meeting.



Vo

Public Comments - Margaret Jones (Aging population and transportation).
Chair Sparkman asked Mr. Jon Friedenberg, CAO, to review the suggestions made by
Ms. Jones.

Chair Bedard that the August schedule had changed from 8/7 to 8/5, in order to meet the
City’s deadlines.

Financial Advisor (H2C, LL.C, led by Michael Hammond)
Dr. Bedard and Ann Sparkman reported that they had represented the Board as an ad hoc committee

tasked to review the firms being considered for Financial Advisor on the Hospital Replacement
Project, and attended the interviews. The ad hoc committee was recommending H2C for the role.
Director Simmonds moved to approve the Financial Advisor (H2C, LLC, led by Michael
Hammond) to serve as the Financial Advisor to Marin Healthcare District (MHD) and MGH for the
financing that will be required by both parties to complete our Hospital Replacement Building and
related projects. Director Sparkman seconded.

Mike Whipple asked if there is a term to the project. CEO confirmed that it is an “At Will” term
with nothing specific listed. Vote: all ayes.

MGH Video and HRB Design Update
CEO Domanico introduced the Marin General Hospital Overview video, “Building For the Future”.

The video can be found at https://www.voutube.com/watch?v=rx4GniTJ3 Y and is also found on
the Marin Healthcare District website.

CEO Domanico introduced District consultants Jason Haim, Architect for the Hospital
Replacement Building (HRB) Project and Kevin Coss, the Project Director. They presented
updates for the HRB (included following Tab 5).

Mr. Haim presented and discussed the HRB Schematic Design Update and HRB Design
Development updates. Mr. Kevin Coss reviewed the Project Preliminary Cost Estimate, dated
January 2014 and the revised Pioject Cost Estimate as of June 2014 (included following Tab 5,
slides, 36-38). He also reviewed the Project Schedule dated June 2014, include on slide 40.

CEQO Domanico stated that in Design Development, the next phase, a detailed review of each
department will take place to properly serve the operational model. Equipment will be identified
(new or replacement items, etc.). Dr. Bedard suggested that the use of the word “pod™ be replaced
by floors, towers, suites, etc. Signage and recognition of the Emergency Department location will
be apparent in the final design drawings.

CEO reviewed the bed needs for the future hospital. A third party opinion will be presented at the
MGH Strategic Planning and Marketing Retreat in September. The Operating Rooms have
increased by 3 rooms and the OR and ICU have doubled in ICU space.

Dr. Clever asked about the Accountable Care Act and how it impacts MGH. There has been a
massive move to outpatient services. Many facilities are tapping into paying patients who were not
paying in the past. Many clinics are being built throughout the State and Country to provide for
those patients. The way patients grade a facility is another main concern for the patient experience.



10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

Gealtheare gy
«M

The plans, after presentation to board, will be presented and discussed within all departments.
Input from staff will be incorporated as much as possible, with staff/management and employee
comments.

Mr. Coss and Mr. Haim at the conclusion of their slides reviewed and presented the proposed Board
Action items (agenda items 10 to 13) they were recommending for Board approval to advance the
HRB Project.

Public Comments:
Susan Winter (Traffic Safety)
Eileen Yu (Pediatric Services)
Gentleman (Changes to Mental Health Services)

Mr. Domanico stated that there are no seismic requirements for the existing Mental Health Care
Facility, therefore, no changes have been planned for the existing building,

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) as may be needed to support approval of recommended
amendments to the Hospital Replacement Building Project Plan to include the lobby addition,
changes to the campus entry location, and the relocation of the Halprin Garden, and any

other minor changes requiring clarification
Director Rienks moved to approve the EIR preparation as may be needed to support approval of

recommended amendments to the Hospital Replacement Building Project Plan to include the Lobby
addition, changes to the campus entry location, and the relocation of the Halprin Garden, and any
other minor changes requiring clarification. Director Sparkman seconded. Vote: all ayes.

Amended Hospital Replacement Building Project Plan, estimated at $534,864,000

Director Rienks moved to approve the amended Hospital Replacement Building Project Plan,
estimated at $534,864.000. It was noted that the Hospital Board had approved the estimate.
Director Sparkman seconded. Vote: all ayes.

Schematic Design plan and grant approval to move forward with Design Development of the

Hospital Replacement Building
Director Sparkman moved to approve the Schematic Design Plan and Grant approval to move

forward with Design Development of the Hospital Replacement Building. Director Simmonds
seconded. Vote: all ayes.

McCarthy Builders as the Construction Manager for the Hospital Replacement Building

Project
Dr. Bedard and Director Rienks reported that they represented the Board as an ad hoc committee

tasked with participating in the review of potential Construction Management firms on the Hospital
Replacement Building Project. They participated in the interviews of the firm representatives, and
were recommending McCarthy Builders, as were District consultants Jason Haim, architect, and
Kevin Coss, project director. Director Simmonds moved to approve McCarthy Builders as the
Construction Manager for the Hospital Replacement Building Project. Director Rienks seconded.
Vote: all ayes.

New Community Health Grant Policy, New Community Health Grant Application and New
Community Health Grant Report Form as recommended by the MHD Finance and Audit

Committee on June 24, 2014




15.

16.

ey

Director Sparkman reported that at the last MHD Finance and Audit Committee meeting, the New
Community Health Grant policy was reviewed. There are a few more revisions to the policy. The
MHG F&A Committee will meet again to discuss all changes and if approved, would submit again
in August for full board approval.

The board identified the focus of mental health and elderly service organizations in their
consideration for grant funding. 7-8 organizations were discussed. Board members will request the
organizations to submit a letter of intent with an explanation why they are requesting funds (letter
of intent) — which is a new process for the Board. Once the selection process has reduced the
potential organizations to three (3), a formal request for proposal will be submitted to the full Board
for final review and approval.

Public comment
Cindy Winter (Vertran Associates)

Committee Meeting Reports
a. MHD Finance & Audit Committee (06/24/2014)

Chair Ann Sparkman reported that Jud Goldsmith, Margaret Jones and Mike Whipple attended
were in attendance. There is over $2.7 million in District operating account and a favorable
$236,000 variance in District expenses. 1206b clinics are slightly below budget. The committee
will continue to review financial reports to work towards improvement within the practices. Ms.
Jamie Maites reviewed the modifications to the Community Grant policy, which will be
reviewed further at the July meeting.

CEO Domanico reported that the 1206b clinics are slightly behind budget. Endocrinology and
robotics are expected to catch up by year end. While the robotics practice is behind schedule,
the inpatient and surgery are ahead of schedule. Similarly, the Cardiology practice is down,
however the ancillary and inpatient volumes are closer to plan.

There were no public comments.
b. MHD Lease & Building Committee (no meeting in May)

There were no public or board comments.

Reports

a. District CEQ’s Report
CEO Domanico reported on the positive approach of the “Design Build” process, which gives
the District an opportunity, with the design build approach, to save on expenses. There have
been no points of opposition to this process.

Continuing to move forward on the lot line adjustment with the County to move the garage from
the service parking lot up to the hill, which you just approved. The county is expected to
approve adjustments to the property line in the next 30 days.

Director Rienks reported that Bill Raughman contacted her and noted that HCAPHS Quarter
reports did not include the “Recommends™ for the Hospital on the HCAPHS report. CEO
Domanico will review for future reporting.



M . 2)%%-
b. Hospital CEO’s Report

CEO Domanico reported May was a challenging month because of Obama Care services. There
has been increased eligibility for medical services, resulting in volume increases. Plans are in
place to adjust the cost and payer mix. Improvements have been seen in nursing related to
service. The Hospital continues to show outstanding quality scores and has been recognized in
the top 5 percent nationally for outcomes by HealthGrades. MGH has also received “100 Best
Hospitals” awards for Cardiac Care and Coronary Intervention.

Fund raising efforts have been excellent with a record $880,000 (an increase of $330,000 from
last year) raised in support of the Haynes Cardiovascular Institute. A large $4 million dollar gift
received for the linear accelerator. Information Technology has transitioned from Xerox to
McKesson and are making progress and continuing to improve technology flows. The MGH
BOD will have their Strategic Planning Retreat in September, where the patient bed needs will
be reviewed and reported back to the District at a Retreat in early 2015,

Business is challenging but operations are continuing to move forward in anticipation of the
rebuilding of the Hospital within 5 years.

No board or public comments.

c. Chair’s Report — No additional information to report.
Chair Bedard was pleased to report the increase participation at the Emergency Physician
Conference in Hong Kong. In 1996 there were 4 members, but now 54 countries are represented
with over 2,200 attending recognizing emergency medicine as a specialty.
Chair Bedard reviewed the pros and cons of California Proposition 46 — random drug testing of
physicians and nurses. He suggested the District learn more about this proposition for future

discussion.

d. Board Members’ Reports
No reports were presented.

Adjournment

Director Bedard moved to adjourn the meeting. Director Sparkman seconded. The meeting
adjourned at 8:58 pm.



Tab 2



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE

MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

RESOLUTION 2014-004

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE NEW MARIN GENERAL HOSPITAL
LEASE TO AFFILIATED NON PROFIT CORPORATION

The Board of Directors of the Marin Healthcare District does hereby resolve as
follows:

WHEREAS, in 2007 with the departure of Sutter Health from operations of Marin
General Hospital (“MGH") forthcoming, the Board of Directors, based on a strategic plan
for the transition of the Hospital adopted in October of that year, embarked on
development of a plan for the operations and governance of MGH that would best meet
the District’s objectives of successfully transitioning the Hospital to local control,
enhancing the economic viability of the Hospital and its ability to provide and promote a
broad range of healthcare services to the residents of Marin, and to meet the pending
seismic safety facility improvement mandates imposed by the State; and

WHEREAS, between 2007 and July, 2010, the Board of Directors undertook the
planning process for the transition, including numerous public study and input sessions,
medical community input, development of a management team, provision for necessary
financing, and ongoing strategic planning and pre-transition implementation of physician
development programs, culminating in the adoption by the District Board, both at the
District level and as the first sitting Board of the newly reorganized nonprofit Marin General
Hospital Corporation, of a new corporate structure for MGH establishing a public / private,
parent / subsidiary model, along with amending the 1985 thirty year Lease of MGH to
reflect the new structure in the existing landlord / tenant relationship (together, the “public /
private model”); and

WHEREAS, underpinning the establishment and launch of this new organizational
model for a healthcare district and affiliated hospital was the increasingly changing nature
of the delivery of healthcare and healthcare reimbursement, set to accelerate with national



and state healthcare reform, which had led to declining patient volumes and revenues, and
which increasingly threatened the viability of community based free-standing nonprofit
hospitals; and

WHEREAS, the Marin Healthcare District Board during its more than three year
planning process had considered a wide-ranging number of potential operational models,
both free-standing and yet other (non-Sutter) affiliations, and concluded that the public /
private model adopted and implemented at the end of June, 2010, was the optimal choice
for meeting the above described objectives and more particularly to:

» create a Marin based health care system in order to maintain the full continuum
of services provided by MGH, while preserving continued local access and local
management and governance

» provide a stronger opportunity for developing and expanding hospital and
physician services needed in the local community

» provide superior quality healthcare at a competitive price, while being better
equipped to control health care costs

» position MGH and its affiliated physicians to best meet pending national and
state health reform initiatives impacting healthcare delivery and reimbursement, and

> improve the health and quality of life of the communities served by the District
and MGH; and

WHEREAS, in November, 2013, District voters by a greater than two-thirds
supermajority vote, approved and authorized the sale of up to $394,000,000 in general
obligation bonds of the District to finance the acquisition, construction and alteration of real
property related to MGH and its healthcare related purposes, and the District has since
authorized Management to proceed with completion of plans and land use entitlements for
the construction of such new and seismically compliant facilities; and

WHEREAS, the existing 1985 Lease between the District and MGH corporation is
expiring at the end of 2015, and in light of the success to date of the post-Sutter operations
of the Hospital and the District under the public / private model, and based on the need to
shift from planning to implementation and financing facility seismic improvements, the
Board determined to commence negotiation of a new 30 year Lease (the “Hospital Lease”)
with the Hospital Board; and

WHEREAS, as a result of negotiations and the conduct of at least five public input
study sessions on the proposed Hospital Lease, the District and MGH have negotiated the
terms of the new Hospital Lease, dated as of August 6, 2014, as presented before the
Board along with this Resolution, whereby the District and MGH will commence a new



Lease for 30 years commencing December 2, 2015, subject to voter approval, thereby
effecting a new transfer of all the real and personal property associated with MGH and its
campus and operations, as described in the Hospital Lease, to the nonprofit MGH
corporation; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32121(p)(2) of the Health & Safety Code the
appraised fair market value range of the Hospital assets being leased is $21,050,000 to
$23,680,000, based on the report by Value & Information Group, an independent expert
on valuation of such facilities, and the consideration received by the District from the
tenant, MGH, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, in exchange for the 30 year
lease consists of, among other considerations:

e The District Board’s determination hereby that the existing public / private
model of MGH operations has been a success and its desire to extend those
operations, and particularly the Hospital Lease arrangement, based on the
underpinning objectives, considerations, determinations, and conclusions
described hereinabove for its establishment in June 2010

e The District Board's determination hereby that the form of operations that will
produce the optimal chance for long term successful provision of nonprofit,
community based, hospital and related healthcare services for Marin County
is the continued operation of the Hospital by the District’s affiliated tax
exempt nonprofit corporation under the proposed new 30 year Hospital
Lease with MGH, without the burden of significant rent, as opposed to a sale
or lease at full market value to an outside entity without District oversight

¢ The District will receive base cash rent of $500,000 per year plus an annual
CPl increase

e MGH provides District administrative and secretarial support services, office
space, furniture, computer hardware and software and equipment as
required for the District to conduct its affairs, along with other overhead
expenses, including insurance, subject to an annual ceiling of $509,000,
plus an annual CPl increase

e Additional contingent rent paid will be paid if MGH achieves both of the
following: (a) 150 days of cash on hand, and (b) earnings before interest,
depreciation and amortizations (“EBIDA”) that is in excess of the higher of (j)
10% of MGH’s Net Revenue (as determined under GAAP), or (ii) the then-
current level of EBIDA as a percentage of Net Revenue required for MGHC
to achieve an “A” category credit rating (the “Additional Rent Triggers”).
When MGHC achieves both of the Additional Rent Triggers, it shall pay
Additional Rent in the amount of 2% of any amount of MGH’s EBIDA that is



in excess of the second Additional Rent Trigger set forth above

¢ Marin General Hospital will continue to fund any deficits in the operations of
the Marin Healthcare District Medical Care Centers, providing needed
physician access for the residents of Marin

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the transactions contemplated by the Hospital
Lease are the best alternative to other arrangements considered, especially by
maintaining healthcare facilities and services in a non-profit setting; and

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the transactions contemplated by the Hospital
Lease are necessary to provide for the continued maintenance and operation of the
District's healthcare facilities, services and programs, thereby assuring availability to
residents of the District of local emergency and hospital services, and has determined it to
be in the public interest, in the best interests of the District, and in the best interests of the
communities served by the District, and in furtherance of the purposes of the District, that
the District enter into the Hospital Lease and consummate the transactions contemplated
by the Hospital Lease.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Marin Healthcare District hereby
resolve:

1. That all the determinations, findings, and conclusions of the Board described
above are hereby severally ratified, confirmed, approved and adopted in all respects.

2. That the form, terms and provisions of the Hospital Lease are hereby approved
in all respects.

3. That the execution of the Hospital Lease by the Chair of the Board or the Chief
Executive Officer is hereby authorized and approved.

4. That the Chair and Secretary of the Board and any person or persons
designated and authorized to act by the Chair and Secretary are hereby authorized and
directed to:

(a) Prepare, or cause to be prepared, and/or approve and execute in
accordance with, as contemplated by or as consistent with the terms of the
Hospital Lease, all exhibits, schedules, certificates, letters, agreements,
papers and instruments and other documents, and amendments and
restatements thereof (collectively, with the Agreement, the "Transaction
Documents"),

(b) To make such representations in writing, and



(c) To take such other steps and do such acts and things, all as in their
respective individual judgments may be necessary, appropriate or desirable
on behalf of and in the name of the District to carry out, observe and perform
and enforce the performance by others of, and comply with the terms and
provisions of the Transaction Documents, and to consummate the
transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents.

5. That, contingent on the approval and execution of the Hospital Lease by Marin
General Hospital Corporation on or before August 6, 2014, the District shall hereby submit

to the voters of the District a measure proposing to approve the transfer of assets as
contemplated by the Hospital Lease.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this fifth day of August, 2014, by the following votes:
AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

Harris Simmonds, M.D., Secretary
Board of Directors of the Marin Healthcare District

Larry Bedard, M.D., Chair
Board of Directors of the Marin Healthcare District






M0195025/1866486-2

HOSFITAL LEASE

250 BON AIR ROAD
GREENBRAE, CALIFORNIA

MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
as
LESSOR,

AND
MARIN GENERAL HOSPITAL

as
LESSEE

Final for Execution



Part |

Part II
Article 1
Article II
Article III
Article IV
Article V
Article V1
Article VII
Article VIII
Article IX
Article X
Article XI
Article XII
Article XIII
Article X1V
Article XV
Article XVI
Article XVII
Article XVIII
Article XIX
Article XX
Article XXI
Article XXII
Article XXII
Article XXIV
Article XXV
Exhibit A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Summary of Basic Lease Information ............... s 3
Lease Provisions .. s .4
Real Propcrty and Premlses — : sinsesevisae .. 4
L2a8E TeTm - i, e iossamaoas s Aoty R A TS S A LM b e
Base Rem DS S
Taxcs 8
Use . vereencoens 10
Compliance Wxth Laws and Insurance Requuements R r—
Hazardous Material... ceeneen 14
Utilities and Services ityei: 16
Repairs and Mamtenance i i cipmsine 16
Alterations and Additions; Capltal Expendltures . S—
Covenant Against Liens................. woandl
Exculpation, Indemmﬁcatmn, and Insurance ..
Acceptance of Premises... s 30
Damage and Destruction.. vere 31
Condemnation... T VA
Assignment and Subleasmg ssiBtanfiosk , SN X
Surrender of PremISES .....cvverviccrvecmniisisssmmssinssssssinsinssssninninns s 39
Estoppel, Subordinations, Easements and Lender Protectlons o3 7
Defaults and Remedies .. saavsyzauin 40
Lessor’s Right to Perform Lessee s Obhgatlons witain 43
Late Payments... ; —. |
Nonwaiver... verenees 46
Dispute Resoluuon I N SO ST LGP 1 v &7
Attorney Fees and Costs e 48
Miscellaneous .. - e 49
Description of Property fan 99

M0195025/1866486-2 2



HOSPITAL LEASE

This Leasc (Lease) is made and entered into by and between the Lessor and Lessee named
below, who agree as follows:

Part I

DEFINITIONS

1. “Additional Rent” means additional rent paid by Lessee to Lessor, as set forth in
Section 3.2.

2. “Additional Rent Triggers” means the event in which Lessee achicves both of
the following: (a) One Hundred Fifty (150) days of cash on hand, and (b) earnings
before interest, depreciation and amortizations (“EBIDA™) that is in excess of the
higher of (i) ten percent (10%) of Lessee’s Net Revenue (as determined under
GAAP), or (ii) the then-current level of EBIDA as a percentage of Net Revenue
required for Lessee to achieve a Moody’s Investor Service “A3”, or other rating
services’ equivalent, category credit rating.

3. “Adjustment Date” means January 1, 2017 and each successive anniversary
thereafter during the Lease Term.

4. “Alterations” means any alterations, additions, or improvements to the Premises.

5. “ASB” means an ambulatory services building built on the Premises as part of the New
Improvements.

6. “Authorized Individuals” means those individuals with authority to settle a dispute on
the Initiating Party’s or Responding Party’s behalf.

7. “Base Rent” means the amount Lessee shall pay to Lessor as fully set forth in Section
3.1

8. “Claims” means any and all claims, losses, costs, damages (including consequential and
punitive damages), expenses, liabilities, obligations, liens, actions (including remedial or
enforcement actions of any kind and administrative or judicial proceedings, orders or
judgments), causes of action (whether in tort or contract, law or equity, or otherwise),
charges, assessments, fines, deficiencies and penalties of any kind (including sums paid
in settlement of claims, investigation and laboratory fees, consultant and expert fees and
expenses, court costs, arbitration fees, attorney fees actually incurred and other
expenses).

9. “Clinic Deficit” means one-twelfth (1/12th) of the estimated deficit, if any, set forth in
the Annual Budget.

M0195025/1866486-2 3



10. “Clinics” means those outpatients clinics owned and operated by Lessor, both within and
outside of Lessee’s borders, that are exempt from licensure pursuant to Section 1206(b)
of the California Health & Safety Code.

11. “County” means the County of Marin.

12. “County Easements” means the County’s easement rights over the access road to the
Mental Health Building and related parking areas as described in Exhibit A,

13. “EBIDA” means earnings before interest, depreciation and amortizations.

14. “Effective Date” means the date on which the Lease is approved by the voters of Marin
Healthcare District as required pursuant to California Health & Safety Code Section

32121(p).

15. “Estoppel Certificate” means a notarized written statement in a form reasonably
requested by the other party or required by any lender of the requesting party stating that
the Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect or in full force and effect as modified
and state the modifications.

16. “Environmenta! Laws” means any Laws and Orders now in force or hereafter enacted,
promulgated or issued that requires or relates to: (a) advising appropriate authorities,
employees ot the public of intended or actual releases of pollutants or hazardous
substances or material, violation of discharge limits or other prohibition and the
commencement of activities, such as resource extraction or construction, that could have
significant impact on the environment; (b) preventing or reducing to acceptable Jevels the
release of pollutants or hazardous substances or materials into the environment; (c)
reducing the quantities, preventing the release or minimizing the hazardous
characteristics of wastes that are generated; (d) assuring that products are designed,
formulated, packaged and used so that they do not present unreasonable risks to human
health or the environment when used or disposed of; () protecting resources, species or
ecological amenities; (f) reducing to acceptable levels the risks inherent in the
transportation of hazardous substances, pollutants, oil or other potential harmful
substances; or (g) cleaning up pollutants that have been released, preventing the threat of
release or paying the costs of such clean up or prevention.

17. “GAAP” means generally acceptcd accounting principles.

18. “Hazardous Materials” mecans any hazardous or toxic substance, material, or waste at
any concentration that is or becomes or is foreseeable that it will be regulated by the
United States, the State of California, or any local government authority or entity having
jurisdiction over the Premises and as fully set forth in Section 7.5 below.

19. “Healthcare Law” means 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b(b) (commonly referred to as the
Anti-Kickback Law), 42 U.S.C. Section 1395nn (commonly referred to as the Stark

M0195025/1866486-2 4



Law), or any comparable federal or state Law governing kickbacks, bribes, rebates or
patient referrals.

20. “Holder” means any ground lessor, master lessor, trustee or lender under any Indenture,
beneficiary or mortgagee.

21. “Holdover Rate” means the rate at which Lessee shall pay Lessor for each day Lessce
retains possession of the Premises or any part of them after expiration or terminaiion of
this Lease and which shall be the greater of (a) one hundred twenty-five percent (125%)
of the fair market rental (as reasonably determined by Lessor) for the Premises, or (b) one
hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the Rent payable under this Lease for the last full
month before the date of expiration or termination, prorated on a daily basis.

22. “Hospital” means the hospital and related facilities operated on the Property. ~

23. “Hospital Assets” means all engines, boilers, pumps, machinery, apparatus, fixtures,
fittings, equipment, computer hardware and software, personal property and all other
tangible assets of any kind placed in or about the Premises or that Lessee uses or operates
in the course of Lessee’s activities and business on, or in connection with, the Premises
and the Hospital.

24. “Hospital Operator” means a third party appointed by Lessor to operate the Premises on
behalf and as the agent of Lessee pursuant to a management contract.

25. “Indenture” means any indenture or master indenture, or any supplement thereto or
similar instrument designed to substitute a new obligation under an indenture, or any loan
agreement or financing agreement, or similar agreement, executed by Lessee, or assumed
by or assigned to Lessee, during the term of this Lease, in connection with the incurrence
by Lessee of any indebtedness secured by all or any portion of the following: (a) the
Hospital’s revenues; (b) the Hospital’s accounts receivable, (c) a general pledge of the
Lessee’s assets, including, without limitation, the Hospital Assets, or (d) a pledge of
Lessee’s leasehold interest in the Premises, provided, however, that such indebtedness
was permitted, or consented to by Lessor, as provided in this Lease,

26. “Index” means the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers U.S. City Average,
All Items (base years 1982-1984=100).

27. “Initiating Party” means the party seeking to initiate the Meet and Confer procedures.

28. “Law and Orders” means all federal, state, county, municipal and other governmental
agency or entity laws, statutes, ordinances and governmental and quasi-governmental
rules, regulations, decrees, orders or requirements relating to, affecting, or governing the
condition, use or occupancy of the Premises now in force or hereafter enacted,
promulgated or issued. The term includes government measures regulating or enforcing
public access, occupational, health, or safety standards for employers, employees, lessors,
or lessees, and requirements of boards of fire underwriters and utilities companies.

M0185025/1866486-2 5



29. “Lease Commencement Date” means the date stated in Part I, Section 5(b).
30. “Lease Date” means August 6, 2014,

31. “Lease Expiration Date” means the date stated in Part II, Section 5(c), unless
this Lease is sooner terminated as provided in this Lease.

32. “Lease Term” means the period stated in the Part I1, Section 5(a).

33. “Lease Year” means each consecutive twelve-month (12-month) period during the Lease
Term, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 2.2.

34, “Lessee Parties” means, singularly and collectively, Lessee and Lessee’s officers,
directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and independent contractors as well as
to all persons and entities claiming through any of these persons or entities.

35. “Lessor Parties” means, singularly and collectively, Lessor and Lessor’s officers,
directors, members, agents, employees, independent contractors, advisers and lenders, as
well as to all persons and entities claiming through any of these persons or entities.

36. “Management Agreement” means the administrative and staffing support for Lessor’s
MHD Facilities provided by Lessee pursuant to that certain Management Services and
Staffing Agreement, dated May 1, 2014,

37. “Meet and Confer” means the parties’ agreement to meet and confer on any issue that is
the subject of a dispute under a specific term of this Agreement.

38. “MHD Facilities” means the Clinics and other business and facilities related to the
performance of health care services which Lessor owns and operates.

39. “MHB Parcel” means that certain portion of the Property upon which the Mental Health
Building sits.

40. “New Improvements” means improvements to the Premises during the Term of the
Lease (new Hospital wing, parking structures, ASB and related new improvements,
collectively), together with any other improvements and expenditures that may be
required to the Premises, including but not limited to the Hospital, by the Seismic
Requirements.

41. “Permitted Use” means Lessee’s use of the Premises solely for the purposes of
operating and maintaining a nonprofit community general acute care hospital and related
and ancillary healthcare facilities, activities and services.

42, “Premises” means all of the Property owned or co-owned by Lessor; provided however,
that (a) with respect to the MHB Parcel, the Premises only includes Lessor’s partial

MO0195025/1866486-2 6



ownership interest therein, and (b) the Premises and Lessee’s rights therein are subject to
the County Easements and the County’s rights thereunder.

43, “Prior Lease” means that certain Lease Agreement dated November 12, 1985 as most
recently amended June 30, 2010 pursuant to a Second Amendment to Lease.

44, “Property” means the real property and all improvements thercon and thereto commonly
known as Marin General Hospital, located at 250 Bon Air Road, Greenbrag, California,
and further described and depicted in Exhibit A,

45, “Responding Party” means the party receiving notice pursuant to the Meet and Confer
procedures as set forth in Section 23.2.

46. “Subordination Agrecment” means a subordination agreement and any other
instruments or documents necessary or appropriate to further evidence any subordination
of this Lease as required by Section 18.3.

47, “Seismic Requirements” means seismic retrofit/replacement requirements with respect
to the Hospital and the Premises under California State law.

48. “Superior Interest” means all existing and future ground leases, master leases of all or
any substantial part of the Premises, trust deeds and mortgages or Indentures
encumbering the Premises, any advances made thereunder, and any renewals,
modifications, consolidations, replacements or extensions thereof, whenever made or
recorded.

49. “Termination Date” means the date of termination of this Lease at Lessor’s election
pursuant to Section 19.5(a).

50. “Total Taking” shall mean the taking of fee title to all of the Premises or to all of the
improvements, or the entire leasehold estate of Lessee by the power of eminent domain
by any public or quasi-public agency or entity.

Part 11
SUMMARY OF BASIC LEASE INFORMATION

The basic terms of this Lease are:

1. Lease Date: The date set forth in Part I, Section 30; Effective Date is the date set forth in
Part I, Section 14.

2. Lessor: Marin Healthcare District, a political subdivision of the State of California,

3. Lessee: Marin General Hospital, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation.

M0195025/1866486-2 7



9.

Properiy: Lessor owns the Property provided, however, that the County (i) co-owns with
Lessor the MHB Parcel and (ii) has certain related casement rights over the access road to
the Mental Health Building and related parking ateas pursuant to the County Easements.
Lease Term:

a. Duration (Section 2.1); thirty (30) years.

b. Lease Commencement Date (Section 2.1): December 2, 2015,

¢. Lease Expiration Date (Section 2.1): December 1, 2045, unless terminated earlier.

Rent (Section 3.1):

a. Base Rent: $500,000 annually, plus an annual CPI increase. Initially monthly Base
Rent of $41,666.67.

b. Other Rent: Certain additional cash payments and administrative support services
and/or payments as provided in Sections 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4, respectively.

Lessee is responsible for the payment of all taxes and operating expenses.
Permitted Use (Section 5.1): Lessee shall use the Premises solely for the purposes set forth
in Part I, Section 41. Lessee shall operate the Premises for the benefit of the communities

served by Lessor.

Insurance: sce Sections 12.4, 12.5 and 12.6.

10, Late charge and interest (Article XXI)

a. Late charge (Section 21.1): Five percent (5%) of the amount due.

b. Interest on delinquent Rent (Section 21.2): Ten percent (10%) per year.

11. Addresses for notices and payments:

a. Lessor’s address for notices (Section 25.12): 100B Drakes Landing Road, Suite
250, Greenbrae, CA 94904.

b. Lessor’s address for payments (Section 3.1): 100B Drakes Landing Road, Suite
250, Greenbrae, CA 94904.

c. Lessee’s address (Section 25.12): 250 Bon Air Road, Greenbrae, California 94904.

d. Address of Lessee’s lender (Section 25.12): Lessee shall provide same to Lessor in
writing when Lessee’s lender is determined.

M0195025/1866486-2 8



Part 111

LEASE PROVISIONS

ARTICLE I
REAL PROPERTY AND PREMISES

A. Prior to the Lease Date of this Lease, Lessee leased the Property from Lessor, subject
to the rights of the County with respect to the MHB Parcel and the County
Easements, pursuant to the Prior Lease and operated on the Property a Hospital.

B. Lessor and Lessee now desire to enter into a new lease for the Premises (as defined
herein) on ihe terms and conditions set forth in this Lease.

C. Both Lessor and Lessee have determined that Lessor’s agreement to lease the
Premises to Lessee on the terms and conditions set forth in this Leasc (i) will further
joint planning with respect to, and the efficient delivery of, health care services within
the geographic area served by Lessor, and will promote and further the best interests
of Lessee, Lessor, and the communities and constituents served by them, and (ii) is
appropriate and beneficial to both parties in light of their affiliation (Lessor being the
sole corporate meinber of Lessee).

D. Accordingly, Lessee and Lessor hereby agree as follows.

1.1 Lgase of Premises. Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases
from Lessor the Premiscs, on all of the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease. Lessee
further acknowledges and agrees that Lessec must share with the County use of the MHB Parcel
and the building thereon, subject to whatever agreement(s) with respect thereto Lessor, Lessee
and the County have previously entered into or may enter into from time to time.

1.2 No Partnership or Joint Venture. Nothing in this Lease shall be construed to
render Lessor in any way or for any purpose a partner, joint venturer or associate in any
relationship with Lessee other than that of lessor and lessee, nor shall this Lease be construed to
authorize either to act as agent for the other.

ARTICLE I

LEASE TERM

2.1  Leasc Term. The provisions of this Lease shall be effective as of the Effective
Date. The Lease Term shall commence on the Lease Commencement Date and shall expire on
the Lease Expiration Date unless this Lease is sooner terminated as provided in this Lease. As of
the Lease Commencement Date, this Lease shall supersede the Prior Lease and govern the
Lessee’s leasing of the Premises from Lessor.

M0195025/1866486-2 9



2.2 Lease Year. For purposes of this Lease, each Lease Year shall be as stated in Part

1, Section 33, provided, however:

(a) The firsi Lease Year commences on the Lease Commencement Date and
ends on the last day of the twelfth (12th) calendar month thereafter;

(b) The second (2nd) and each succeeding Lease Year commences on the first
day of the next calendar month; and

(c) The last Lease Year ends on the Leasc Expiration Date or earlier date of
termination,

ARTICLE HI

BASE RENT

3.1 “Base Rent”—No Setoff. Lessee shall pay to Lessor Base Rent in equal monthly
installments as set forth in Summary of Basic Lease Information Section 6 in advance, on or
before the first day of every calendar month during the Lease Term (commencing on the Lease
Commencement Date), without any prior demand, abatement, setoff or deduction. Payment shall
be made at Lessor’s address as set forth in Summary of Basic Lease Information Section 11(b) or
at any other place that Lessor may from time to time designate in writing, Payment must be in
United States dollars, either in the form of a check (drawn on a bank located in the State of
California) or via electronically transmitted funds.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article III, on each Adjustment Date, Base
Rent shall be increased by one hundred percent (100%) of the percentage of increase, if any,
shown by the Index, published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor
Statistics, for the month immediately preceding the Adjustment Date as compared with the Index
for the same month in the immediately preceding calendar year (except with respect to the first
adjustment which shall be compared with the Index for November 2015). Lessor shall calculate
the amount of this increase in Base Rent after the United States Department of Labor publishes
the statistics on which the amount of the increasc will be based. Lessor shall give written notice
of the amount of the increase, multiplied by the number of installments of rent due under this
Lease since the Adjustment Datc. Lessee shall pay this amount, together with the monthly rent
next becoming due under this Lease, and shall thereafter pay the monthly rent due under this
Lease at this increased rate, which shall constitute Basc Rent. Lessor’s failure to make the
required calculations promptly shall not be considered a waiver of Lessor’s rights to adjust the
monthly Base Rent due, nor shall it affect Lessee’s obligations to pay the increased Base Rent. If
the Index is changed so that the base year differs from that in effect on the Lease
Commencement Date, the Index shall be converted in accordance with the conversion factor
published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. If the Index is
discontinued or revised during the Lease Term, the government index or computation with which
it is replaced shall be used to obtain substantially thc same result as if the Index had not been
discontinued or revised, In no event will Base Rent decrease.

MO1850256/1866486-2 10



3.2  Additional Rent. Lessee shall pay Additional Rent to Lessor when Lessee
achieves both of thc Additional Rent Triggers. When Lessee achieves both of the Additional
Rent Triggers, it shall pay Additional Rent in the amount of two percent (2%) of any amount of
Lessee’s EBIDA that is in excess of the second Additional Rent Trigger set forth in Part I,
Seciion 2. Additional Rent, if any, is payable within ninety (90) days after the end of each
calendar year. No Additional Rent shall be payable to the extent it would cause Lessce to viclate
any covenants or requirements of any loan or bond issuance by Lessee that has been approved by
the Lessor.

3.3  Administrative Support Obligations. Lessee also shall provide Lessor for the
duration of the Lease (a) such administrative and sccretarial support services as Lessor may
require to conduct its affairs, including without limitation bookkeeping, accounting, human
resources, record keeping, and information technology support/services, and (b) such office
space, furniture, computer hardware and software, and equipment the Lessor reasonably requires
to house its staff and conduct its affairs, whether located on the Premises or elsewhere. Upon
any Lessor request for any such services or support, Lessee shall, as reasonably directed by
Lessor, (i) designate and/or make available to Lessor those Lessee employees and personnel and
services as reasonably necessary to provide Lessor with the requested services on a timely basis
and in a good, workmanlike and professional manner, or (ii) reimburse Lessor’s direct
expenditures for such administrative support. Lessor’s Board, or one or more Lessor
management or staff member(s) designated by Lessor’s Board, shall have authority to determine
on Lessor’s behalf whether Lessee has provided the full scope and quality of the secretarial and
administrative services and office space, furniture, computer hardware and software and support,
and equipment that Lessee is required to provide to Lessor under this Section. Lessor’s
reasonable administrative and support needs under this Section, and the reasonableness of any
Lessor requests for any additional support/ administrative needs, shall be determined based upon
Lessor’s operations and administrative/support needs as of the Effective Date, as contemplated
here and under the Bylaws, which shall include, at the option of Lessor, the reasonable expense
of an executive officer (as may be determined by an independent recruitment firm) as defined in
the Bylaws. If Lessee should need to relocate Lessor’s office, Lessee shall do so to space
comparable to the space occupied by Lessor as of the Lease Commencement Date and
reasonably close to the Hospital, and shall provide Lessor sixty (60) days advance notice of its
intention to do so, advise Lessor as to its new location, and arrange and pay for Lessor’s cost of
relocation. If Lessor is dissatisfied with the services of any Lessee personnel, Lessor shall
consult in good faith with Lessee to determine whether the performance of that employee can be
brought to acceptable levels through counsel and assistance, or whether Lessee should assign a
new replacement staff person. Lessee shall have final decision-making authority on staffing
issues, and shall be responsible for employee reviews, evaluation and discipline and all decisions
regarding termination of employment. In no event shall Lessee be required to provide in any
year during the Lease Term, administrative support, space and supplies in excess of Five
Hundred Nine Thousand Dollars ($509,000), plus an annual increase calculated as provided in
Section 3.1 above with the first Adjustment Date deemed to be January 1, 2013.

3.4  Financial Support for Lessor’s Health Care Clinic.

(a) Calculation and Payment of Clinic Deficits. Lessor owns and operates the
MHD’s Facilities including its Clinics. The Clinics contract with physicians to provide needed

M0195025/1866486-2 11



health care services. The Clinics also support and complement Lessee’s reasonable physician
recruitment efforts. Lessee provides administrative and staffing support for Lessor’s MHD
Facilitics pursuant to the Management Agreement. During each Lease Year, Lessee shall pay all
Clinic Deficits to Lessor in accordance with the following procedures:

(b) Pavment of Estimated Clinic Deficits. Prior to each Lease Year, Lessee
shall give Lessor the Annual Budget for the MHD Facilitics as set forth in the Management
Agreement. On or before the first day of cach month during such next ensuing Lease Year,
Lessee shall pay to Lessor in advance, in addition to Base Rent, the Clinic Deficit, if any, set
forth in the Annual Budget. With the monthly payment of Clinic Deficit based on the estimate
set forth in the Annual Budget, Lessee shall also pay the difference, if any, between the amount
previously paid for such Lease Yecar and the actual Clinic Deficit for the Lease Year if it is
greater than the estimated amount set forth in-the-Annual-Budget-of;-in—the-alternative, if such
amount previously paid by Lessee for such Lease Year through the month exceeds the actual
Clinic Deficit as reported in the Management Report and Expense Report provided by Lessee to
Lessor as required under the Management Agreement, Lessor shall credit such excess amount
against the next monthly payment of Clinic Deficit due from Lessec. If at any time Lessor
reasonably determines that Clinic Deficit for the current Lease Year will vary from the
applicable Annual Report by more than five percent (5%), Lessor may, by notice to Lessee,
revise the estimate for such Lease Year, and subsequent payments by Iessee for such Lease Year
shall be based upon such revised estimate.

(¢)  Clinic Deficit Reconciliation and Adjustment. Within ninety (90) days
after the close of each Lease Year, or as soon thereafter as practicable, Lessee shall deliver to
Lessor a statement of the actual Clinic Deficit, if any, for such Lease Year, accompanied by a
statement prepared by Lessee showing in reasonable detail the actual revenue and expenses of
the MHD Facilities, and the amounts previously paid by Lessee for such Lease Year for Clinic
Deficits. If Lessee’s statement shows that Lessee owes an amount less than the payments
previously made by Lessee for such Lease Year, Lessor shall credit the difference first against
any sums then owed by Lessee to Lessor and then against the next payment or payments of
Clinic Deficit due Lessor, except that if a credit amount is due Lessee after termination of this
Lease, Lessor shall pay to Lessee any excess remaining after Lessor credits such amount against
any sums owed by Lessee to Lessor. If Lessor’s statement shows that Lessee owes an amount
more than the payments previously made by Lessee for such calendar year, Lessee shall pay the
difference to Lessor within thirty (30) days after delivery of the statement.

(d) Proration for Partial Year. If this Lease terminates other than on the last
day of a Lease Year (other than due to Lessee’s default), the amount of Clinic Deficit for such
fractional Lease Year shall be prorated on a daily basis. Upon such termination, Lessor may, at
its option, calculate the adjustment in Clinic Deficits prior to the time specified in subsection (c)
above. Lessee’s obligation to pay Clinic Deficits incurred during the Term of this Lease, as set
forth in this Section 3.4, shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease.

3.5  Proration. If any payment date (including the Lease Commencement Date) falls
on a day other than the first day of that calendar month, or if any Base' Rent payment is for a
period shorter than one calendar month, the Base Rent for that fractional calendar month shall
accrue on a daily basis for each day of that fractional month at a daily rate equal to 1/30 of the

MO195025/1866486-2 12



total monthly Base Rent. All other payments or adjustments that are required to be made under
the terms of this Lease and that require proration on a time basis shall be prorated on the same
basis.

3.6  Application of Payments. All payments received by Lessor from Lessee shall be
applied to the oldest payment obligation of any type owed by Lessee to Lessor hereunder, No
designation by Lessee, either in a separate writing oi on a check or money order, shall modify
this clause or have any force or eficcet.

3.7  Certificd Funds. If any noncash payment made by Lessee is not paid by the bank
or other institution on which it is drawn more than once each calendar year, Lessor shall have the
right, exercised by notice to Lessee, to require that Lessee make all future payments by certified
funds or cashier’s check.

3.8  Definition of Rent. Rent means all Base Rent, Additional Rent, Administrative
Support Obligations, Clinic Deficit payments, Real Property Taxes and all other sums that are
payable by Lessee under this Lease.

3.9  Nct Nature of Lease. Lessor and Lessee agree that Rent payable under this Lease
shall be absolutely net to Lessor and that, except as otherwise expressly provided for herein,
there shall be no abatement or reduction of Rent.

ARTICLE IV

TAXES

4.1 Taxes and Assessments. Lessor and Lessee acknowledge and agree that Lessor is
a governmental entity and Lessee is a nonprofit corporation and thus there should be no or few
taxes levied against the Premises, Lessee’s personal property, and other property related to the
Premises. To the extent any tax expenses are levied, the provisions of this Article IV shall apply.

4.2  Definition of Real Property Taxes. Real Property Taxes means all federal, state,
county or local government or municipal taxes, fees, charges, assessments or other impositions
of every kind (whether general, special, ordinary or extraordinary) that are payable or incurred
by Lessor (without regard to any different fiscal year used by any government or municipal
authority) because of or in connection with the ownership, leasing, operation, management,
maintenance, alteration, use, occupancy or possession of the Property or any part thereof
(including any increase caused by a change in the tax rate or by a change in assessed valuation).
These expenses include taxes, fecs, levies, and charges such as real property taxes, general and
special assessments, transit taxes, leasehold taxes, and taxcs based on the receipt of rent
(including gross receipts or sales taxes applicable to the receipt of rent, unless required to be paid

by Lessee).

43  Real Property Taxes. In addition to all other sums payable by Lessce hereunder,
Lessce shall pay, promptly when due and otherwise in the manner and at the times set forth in
this Section 4.3, without abatement, deduction or offset, all Real Property Taxes levied and
assessed against the Property during the Lease Term and shall timely submit all required reportts,
documents and notices. Lessor shall, promptly after its receipt thereof, provide Lcssee with a

M0195025/1866486-2 13



copy of each Real Property Tax bill received by Lessor. Lessee shall pay Real Property Taxes
prior to the delinquency date therefor and shall furnish Lessor with satisfactory evidence of each
payment thereof.

44  Right to Contest Real Property Taxes. Lessee may contest the legal validity or
amount of any Real Property Taxes for which Lessee is responsible under this Leasc and may
institute such proceedings as Lessec considers necessary; provided, however, that the contest
must be filed before the Real Property Tax at which it is directed becomes delinquent and that
written notice of the contest is given to Lessor at Icast ten (10) days before the Real Property Tax
becomes delinquent. If Lessec coniests any such Real Property Taxes, Lessee may withhold or
defer payment or pay under protest and such act shall not constitute a default under this Lease,
provided that Lessee first (a) pays the Real Property Tax under protest before it becomes
delinquent, (b) obtains and maintains a stay of all proceedings for enforcement and collection of
the Real Property Tax by posting a bond or other security required by law for such a stay, or (c)
furnishes and delivers to Lessor a surety bond issued by an insurance company qualified to do
business in California and reasonably acceptable to Lessor in an amount at least 125% of the
Real Property Taxes withheld or deferred and such bond shall hold Lessor and the Premises
harmless from any damage arising out of the proceedings or contest and shall insure the full
payment of such contested Real Property Taxes, including all penalties and interest, and is
conditioned upon Lessee’s payment of the Real Property Tax together with any fines, interest,
penalties, costs and expenses that may have occurred or been imposed thereon within thirty (30)
days after final determination of Lessee’s contest. Lessor appoints Lessee as Lessor’s attorney-
in-fact for the purpos¢ of making all payments to any taxing authorities and for the purpose of
contesting any Real Property Taxes, conditioned upon Lessee’s preventing any liens from being
levied on the Premises or Lessor (other than the statutory lien of Revenue and Taxation Code
Section 2187).

45  Personal Property Taxes. Lessee shall pay before delinquency all taxes,
assessments, license fees and other charges levied or assessed on or as a result of Lessee’s
personal property, alterations, improvements or fixtures. Lessee shall furnish Lessor with
satisfactory evidence of these payments from time to time upon Lessot’s request.

4.6  Lessor’s Right to Pay Taxes. Notwithstanding Section 4.4, Lessor shall have the
right to pay any taxes, and any associated penalties, interest and other charges, for which Lessee
is responsible under this Lease, if Lessor reasonably believes that failure to pay same would
create a material risk that all or pari of the Premises would be taken or sold by the taxing
authority. Lessee shall, on demand, immediately reimburse Lessor for the amount of taxes, and
associated penalties, interest or other costs, paid by Lessor.

47  Indemnification. Lessec shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend Lessor and
the Premises with respect to any Claims resulting from any Real Estate Taxes or other taxes and
amounts required to be paid by Lessee hereunder and from all interest, penalties and other
amounts imposed thereon and from any sales or other proceedings to enforce collection of any
such taxes, assessments or other charges.

M0195025/1866486-2 14



ARTICLE V
USE

5.1  Permitted Use. Lessee shall use the Premises solely for the Permitted Use as
defined in Part II Basic Lease Information Section 8. Lessee shall not use or permit the Premises
to be used for any other purpose without Lessor’s prior written consent, which may be granted or
withheld in Lessor’s sole discretion.

5.2 Use of Premises by Lessor. Lessee shall permit Lessor to use Lessee’s meeting or
office facilities on the Premises for regular or special meetings of Lessor’s Board of Directors or
any committee or sub-committee thereof, or any other public meeting of Lessor, subject to
reasonable advance scheduling/notification thereof by Lessor.

5.3 Accreditation. Lessee shall maintain any accreditation that is necessary for the
operation of the Premises as a nonprofit general acute care hospital, including, without limitation
accreditation with the Joint Commission.

54  License. Lessee shall maintain a valid license issued by the Department of Health
Services of the State of California, and shall maintain any additional licenses, permits and other
governmental approvals, necessary for the operation of the Premises as a nonprofit general acute
care hospital.

5.5  Payment Systems. Lessee shall maintain its certification for participation in
Medicare and Medi-Cal, including but not limited to maintaining compliance with all conditions
of participation for Medicare, participation in and payment under private insurance programs
having broad application and federal, state and local government programs providing for
payment or reimbursement for medical services rendered.

5.6  No_Discrimination. Lessee shall provide all medical services at the Premises
without refusal, delay, or other discrimination, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, because
of a person’s race ethnicity, religion, national origin, citizenship, age, sex, sexual orientation,
preexisting medical condition, physical or mental handicap, marital status or ancestry, except to
the extent that such circumstance is medically significant to the provision of appropriate care to
the patient.

5.7 Hgalth and Safety Code Requirements.

(a)  Lessec shall conform to and abide by each and all of the provisions of
California Health and Safety Code Section 32128, including without limitation the provisions
regarding the self-governance of the medical staff regarding professional work/services
performed in the Hospital.

(b)  Lessor approves the initial and all current members of Lessee’s Board of
Directors, and shall approve all new and replacement board members of Lessee as provided for
in Lessee’s Bylaws.

MG195025/1866486-2 15



(c)  All assets transferred by Lessor to Lessee, and all assets accumulated by
Lessee during the term of the Lease arising out of, or from, the cperaticn of the Hospital, are to
be transferred back to Lessor upon termination or expiration of the Lease.

(d)  Lessce shall operate and maintain the Hospital and its assets for the benefit
of the communities served by Lessor.

(e) Any funds received by Lessee from Lessor at the outset of the Leasc or
any time thereafter during the term of the Lease shall be used only to reduce Lessor
indebtedness, to acquire needed equipmeni for the Hospital, io operate, maintain, and make
needed capital improvements to the Hospital, to provide supplemental health care services or
facilities for the communities served by Lessor, or to conduct other activities that would further a
valid public purpose if undertaken directly by Lessor.

® The appraised fair market value, as determined by an independent
consultant with expertise in methods of appraisal and valuation and in accordance with
applicable governmental and industry standards for appraisal and valuation, of the assets
transferred under the Lease is $21,050,000 to $23,680,000, and the fair market rent for such
assets is $2,000,000 to $2,250,000 per year.

58  Tax-Exempt Status, During the Lease Term, Lessee shall maintain its exemption
from federal income taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and form
California franchise and income taxation under Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and
Taxation Code. Lessee shall maintain such corporate and tax-exempt status as is necessary to
preserve the tax-exempt status of any Lessor or Lessee obligations that are tax-exempt, shall
maintain Lessce’s status as a nonprofit public benefit corporation, and shall conduct its activities
on the Premises in a manner that will preserve the tax-exempt status of the interest payable on
any Lessor or Lessee obligations that are tax-exempt.

59  Lessor’s Right of Entry. Upon reasonable advance notice, or in an emergency
without advance notice, Lessor and its authorized representatives shall have the right to enter the
Premises at reasonable times to inspect the Premises, for any purpose relating to the
maintenance, safety, or preservation of the Premises, to supply or perform any service to be
provided by Lessor to Lessee under this Lease, to show the Premises to prospective purchasers
and mortgagees or, during the last sixty (60) months of the Lease Term, to prospective Lessees
ot managers, and to post notices of non-responsibility or other notices required by law or which
Lessor considers necessary for the protection of Lessor or the Premises. Lessor may also enter
the Premises in order to alter, improve, repair or replace the Premises or any-portion thereof, to
take possession due to any breach of this Lease and to perform any covenants of Lessee that
Lessee fails to perform. Any non-emergency entry (a) shall be during regular business hours, (b)
shall be subject to any security, health, safety and confidentiality requirements of Lessec or any
governmental agency or insurance requirement relating to the Premises or imposed by law or
applicable regulations, including but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability and
Accounting Act. and (c) shall be on the condition that Lessor be accompanied by a Lessee
representative. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessor and its authorized agents shall have the
right to enter public areas of the Premises without prior notice to Lessee or accompaniment
during such hours when the Premises are open to the public.

M0195025/1866486-2 16



5.10 Additiona! Restrictions on Use. In addition to complying with other provisions of
this Lease concerning the use of the Premiscs:

(a) Lessee shall not use or allow any person to use the Premises, do anything
in, on or about the Premises, import to or kecp anything at, or impact or do anything at, the
Premises, that would violate any Laws and Orders, constitutc waste or nuisance, impair the value
of the Premises, or violate this Leasc.

(b) Lessee shall comply with all recorded covenants, conditions and
restrictions that now or later affect the Premises.

5.11 Lessce’s Waiver. Lessor may enter the Premises pursuant to Section 5.10 without
the abatement of Rent, and Lessor may take any steps necessary to accomplish the stated purpose
of Lessor’s right of entry pursuant to Section 5.10. Any such entry into the Premises by Lessor
shall not be considered a forcible or nnlawful entry into, or a detainer of, the Premises or an
actual or constructive eviction of Lessee from any portion of the Premises, Lessee waives any
claims for damages caused by Lessor’s entry, including, but not limited to, damage claims for;

(a) Injuries to any person, or loss, injury or damage to or destruction of
property;

(b)  Inconvenience to or interference with Lessee’s business;

(c) Lost profits or other economic losses or consequential or resulting damage
of any kind; and

(d) Loss of occupancy or quiet enjoyment of the Premises.

512 Privacy.

(a) Patient Information. Lessee shall comply with all federal and state laws
and regulations, and all rules, regulations, and policies of Lessee and its Medical Staff, regarding
the confidentiality of such information, including, but not limited to, the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) (45 C.F.R. Part 160, et seq.) the Confidentiality of
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records Act (42 C.F.R. Part 2), as amended from time to time,
and California’s Confidentiality of Medical Information Act set forth at California Health &
Safety Code § 56 et seq.

(b)  Notification of Disclosures. Lessee will notify Lessee’s Privacy Officer of
the unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of any personally identifiable information, or
protected health information known or suspected by Lessee within two business days of learning
of the same in order to ensure that the reporting of such unauthorized access, use or disclosure of
this information is reported within five days of detection to the California Department of Public
Health (CDPH) and as appropriate, to the Office of Civil Rights (OCR) and/or Department of
Health and Human Services (IH{HS). Lessee’s Privacy Officer will oversce the required
notification to CDPH.

MO195025/1866486-2 17



(¢)  Costs Associated with Disclosure. Lessee agrees that if it fails to adhere to
any of the privacy, confidentiality, and/or data security prcvisions set forth herein and, as a
result, personally identifiable information or protecied health information is unlawfully accessed,
used or disclosed, that Lessce shall pay all costs associated with any notification to affected
individuals required by law or deemed appropriate, and that Lessee also shall pay for any and all
fines and/or administrative penalties imposed for such unauthorized, access, use or disclosure of
personally identifiable information or protected health information or for delayed reporting,

ARTICLE VI
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Compliance with Laws. Lessee, at Lessee’s cost, shall comply with all Laws and
Orders applicable to the use, condition and occupancy of the Premises and improvements and
Hospital Assets, regardless of the cost thereof, at what point in time during the Term compliance
is required, and whether such compliance was foreseen or unforeseen. Lessee shall not use the
Premises or Hospital Assets, do anything in, on or about the Premises, or import to or keep
anything at the Premises, that conflicts with or violates any Laws and Orders. If any license,
permit, or other governmental authorization is required for the lawful use or occupancy of the
Premises or any portion of the Premises, Lessee, at Lessee’s cost, shall procure and maintain it
throughout the Lease Term. Lessee also shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend District from
any Claims resulting from Lessee’s failure to comply with and perform the requirements of this
Section.

6.2 Repairs, Replacements, Alterations, and Improvements. Lessee, at Lessee’s sole

expense, shall continuously and without exception repair, maintain and improve the Premises,
including Lessee improvements, Alterations, fixtures, furnishings, and Hospital Assets in an
order and condition in compliance with all Laws and Orders, whether now or hereafter made,
issued or enacted. Lessee, at Lessee’s sole expense, shall promptly make all repairs,
replacements, Alterations, or improvements needed to comply with all Laws and Orders. Lessee
may contest, in Lessee’s sole discretion, by appropriate legal proceedings brought in good faith
and diligently prosecuted in the name of Lessee, or in the names of Lessee and Lessor when
appropriate or required, the validity or applicability to the Premises and/or the Hospital Assets of
any Laws and Orders; provided, however, that any such contest or proceeding, though
maintained in the names of Lessee and Lessor, shall be without cost to Lessor, and Lessee shall
protect and indemnify the Premises, the Hospital Assets, and Lessor from Lessee’s failure to
observe or comply during the contest with the contested law, ordinance, statute, order, or
regulation.

6.3  Collateral Estoppe!l. The judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, or the
admission of Lessee in any judicial or administrative action or proceeding that Lessee has
violated any Laws and Orders shall be conclusive, between Lessor and Lessee, of that fact,
whether or not Lessor is a party to that action or proceeding.

6.4  Compliance with Insurance Requirements. Lessee shall not use the Premises, do
anything in, on or about the Premises, or import to or keep anything at the Premises that would

MO196025/1866486-2 18



impair the cost of insurance maintained by Lessor with respect to the Premises or which would
result in cancellation of any such insurance.

6.5  Notices. Lessee shall immediately furnish Lessor with a copy of any notices
Lesscc reccives from any governmental agency or entity relating to the Premises or the operation
of the Hospital therein.

6.6  Indcmnification. Lessee shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend Lessor from
any Claims resulting from Lessee’s failure to comply with and perform the requirements of this
Article VI.

ARTICLE VII

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL

7.1  Use of Hazardous Material. Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous
Material, as defined in Section 7.5, to be generated, brought onio, used, stored, or disposed of on,
under or about the Premises by Lessee or its agents, employees, contractors, sublessees or
invitees, except for medical waste and other materials used as part of Lessee’s business
operations conducted in the ordinary course and in strict accordance with all Environmental
Laws (as defined below), prudent industry practice and the standards of this Lease. Lessee shall
comply at all times during the Lease Term with all Environmental Laws.

7.2  Notice of Release or Investigation. If, during the Lease Term (including any
extensions), Lessee receives any notice concerning or otherwise becomes aware of (a) any actual
or threatened release of any Hazardous Material on, under, or about the Premises, (b) any
inquiry, investigation, proceeding, or claim by any government agency or other person regarding
the presence of Hazardous Material on, under, or about the Premises, or (c) any violation of any
Environmental Law, Lessee shall give Lessor written notice of the release or investigation within
five (5) days after learning of it and shall simultaneously furnish to Lessor copies of any claims,
notices of violation, reports, or other writings received by Lessee that concern the release or
investigation.

7.3  Indemnificaiion. Lessee shall, ai Lessee’s sole expense and with counsel
reasonably acceptable to Lessor, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Lessor and Lessor’s
directors, officers, employees, partners, affiliates, agents, successors, and assigns from and
against and with respect to all Claims arising out of or resulting from or in connection with the
existence or release of any Hazardous Material in, under or about the Premises or the Building,
any environmentally hazardous condition resulting from Lessee’s occupation or use of the
Premises or any personal property, equipment or fixtures located on the Premises, or the
violation of any Environmental Law. This indemnification applies whether or not the
concentrations of any Hazardous Material is material, the concentrations exceed state or federal
maximum contaminant or action levels, or any governmental agency has issued a cleanup order.
This indemnification shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease.

7.4  Remediation Obligations. If the presence of any Hazardous Material brought onto
the Premises results in contamination of the Premises, or if any environmentally hazardous

M0195025/1866486-2 19



condition results from Lessec’s occupation or usc of the Premises or any personal property,
equipment or fixtures located on the Premises, Lessee shall immediately take all necessary
actions to remove or remediate and clean up such Hazardous Materials or environmentally
hazardous condition, at Lesse¢’s sole expense, to return the Premises to the condition that existed
before the introduction of such Hazardous Material or environmentally hazardous condition and
in accord with all Environmental Laws. Lessee shall first obtain Lessor’s approval of the
proposed removal or remedial action. This provision docs not limit the indemmification
obligation set forth in Section 7.3,

7.5  Definition of Hazardous Material. As used in this Article VI, the term
“Hazardous Materizls” shall mean any hazardous or toxic substance, material, or waste at any
concentration that is or becomes or is foreseeable that it will be regulated by the United States,
the State of California, or any local government authority or entity having jurisdiction over the
Premises. Hazardous Material includes:

(a) Any “hazardous substance,” as that term is defined in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA) (42 USC
Sections 9601-9675);

(b) “Hazardous waste,” as that term is defined in the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act of 1976 (RCRA) (42 USC Sections 6901-6992k);

b I

(c) “Hazardous Material,” “hazardous substance,” “extremely hazardous
waste,” “restricted hazardous waste,” “contaminant,” “toxic waste” or “toxic substance” under
any provision of Environmental Law, and including without limitation petroleum, petroleum
products, asbestos, presumed asbestos-containing material or asbestos-containing material and
urea formaldehyde;

(d) Any pollutant, contaminant, or hazardous, dangerous, or toxic chemical,
material, or substance, within the meaning of any other applicable Laws and Orders (including
consent decrees and administrative orders imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning
any hazardous, dangerous, or toxic waste, substance, or material, now or hereafter in effect);

(e) Radioactive material, including any source, special nuclear, or byproduct
material as defined in 42 USC Sections 2011-2297g-4; and

6] Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) and substances or compounds
containing PCBs.

ARTICLE VIII

UTILITIES AND SERVICES

8.1  Utilities. Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, shall be solely responsible for
arranging and timely paying for all utilities, materials and services used or needed for the
Premiscs and the operation of the Hospital and other facilitics thereon, including withoui
limitation water, HVAC, gas, electricity, telephone, sewage, ventilating, refuse (including
handling and disposal of medical waste) and any other utilities, materials or services furnished

MO195025/1866486-2 20



directly to or used by Lessce on or about the Premises during the Term. Lessee shall pay directly
for all such utilities, materials and services to the utility or other provider of same, and shall hold
harmless, indemnify and defend Lessor against all Claims relating to the same. Lessor has no
obligation to provide to Lessee or to the Premises any utilities, materials or services whatsoever,
nor to pay for any utilities, materials or services supplied to Lessee or the Premises. Lessor shall
not be liable to Lessee for any interruption, disruption or any unavailability of any utility,
materials or services, or for any loss of or injury to property or for inquiry to or interference with
Iessee’s business, including without limitation loss of profits resulting from, in connection with
or incidental to, any such interruption, disruption or unavailability of any utility, materials or
services. No interruption, disruption or unavailability shall be deemed an eviction or entitle
Lessee to terminate this Lease or abate Rent,

8.2  Govermnment Approvals. If Lessee installs any telecommunications equipment,
Lessee shall do so at its sole cost and expense, and Lessec shall obtain, at its sole cost and
expense, any and all permits, authorizations, and certificates, including, without limitation,
zoning variances or changes, as may be required with respect to such telecommunications
equipment from all governmental agencies. Lessor agrees to reasonably cooperate with Lessee to
obtain same if required by applicable governmental agencies; provided, however, that Lessor
shall not be obligated to incur any costs or accept the imposition of any zoning change or use
restrictions affecting the Property.

8.3  Indemnity. Lessee shall repair any damage caused by Lessee’s installation,
maintenance, operation, alteration, repair or replacement or removal of telecommunications
equipment, and shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold Lessor harmless from all Claims.
Lessor shall not be liable for any damage to or interference with Lessee’s business or any loss of
income from Lessee’s business, or for loss of or damage to Lessee’s telecommunications
equipment caused by or resulting from any damage to or interference with, or operation of
Lessee’s telecommunications equipment, including, without limitation, damage or interference
caused by or resulting from the installation, maintenance, operation, alteration, repair,
replacement or removal of other telecommunications equipment in, on, under or about the
Premises, and Lessee waives all Claims against Lessor for the same,

ARTICLE IX

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

9.1 Lessee’s Repair and Maintenance Obligations. Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole cost
and expense and in accordance with the terms of this Lease, at all times during the Lease Term
keep and maintain the Premises, including all Lessee improvements, Alterations, fixtures and
appurtenances (including, without limitation, landscaping and parking areas) now or hercafter on
the Premises and keep, maintain and operate the Premises and the Hospital Assets in good and
safe condition, repair and working order and shall from time to time make or cause to be made
all necessary and appropriate repairs, renewals, replacements, upgrades, remodels, and
improvements to the Hosnital Assets such that all of the Hospital Assets are in a condition to be
used and operated for the purposes, and in accordeance with the standards for such use and
operation, set forth in this Lease. Lessor shall not have any responsibility during the Lease Term
to maintain, repair, alter, improve or reconstruct the Premises or any portion thereof or any of the

M0195025/1866486-2 21



Hospital Assets. If Lessee fzils to make such repairs, Lessor may, but need not, make the repairs
and replacements. On receipt of an invoice from Lessor, Lessee shall pay Lessor Lessor’s out-of-
pocket costs incurred in connection with such repairs and replacements plus five percent (5%) of
such amount to reimburse Lessor for all overhead, general conditions, fees, and other costs and
expenscs arising from Lessor’s involvement with such repairs and replacements. Lessee
expressly recognizes that, because of the length of the Term of this Lease, it may be necessary
for Lessee to perform substantial maintenance, repair, rehabilitation or reconstruction of, and
additions to, the improvements, Alterations and Hospital Asseis to ensure they arc kept in the
condition required by, and that Lessee complies with the terms of, this Leasc. In this regaid,
Lessec waives and releases (i) all defenses to its maintenance obligations under this Lease, (ii)
the right to require Landlord to make repairs and (iii) its rights, including its right to make repairs
at Lessor’s expense, under California Civil Code Sections 1941-1942 or any similar law, statute,
or ordinance now or hereafter in effect.

ARTICLE X
ALTERATIONS AND ADDITIONS; CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

10.1  Alterations, Additions and Improvements.

(8  Except as set forth in this Section 10.1, and subject to Section 9.1, Lessee
may make any Alterations, provided that they are consistent with the limitations on use
contained in this Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee shall not, without Lessor’s prior
written consent, which Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay, make any
alterations or improvements to the Premises or the Hospital Assets (a) the financing and/or
payments for which, in whatever form, including, without limitation, pursuant to any capital
lease, loan or acquisition financing agreement, service agreement, or license agreement, extend
beyond the expiration of this Lease in an amount that equals or exceeds twenty percent (20%) of
the total acquisition, leasing, licensing, and/or service agreement costs for such Alteration or (b)
that have a useful life (as determined in accordance with GAAP) that extends beyond the
expiration of this Lease. It shall be reasonable for Lessor to withhold its consent for any
Alterations to the Premises that would result in a debt, obligation, encumbrance, lien, etc., that (i)
would constitute an Indenture as provided for hereunder or (ii) Lessor could not assume or
accept upon expiration or carlier termination of this Lease without violating any law, regulation,
ordinance, or ruling applicable to Lessor, Lessee, the Preniises, or the assets, rights and interests
to be conveyed to Lessor at Lease termination or expiration pursuant to Article XVII of this
Lease, or to condition such consent on structuring any capital expenditure for such Alterations
and any financing thereof, in such a manner so that Lessor could assume or accept same pursuant
to Article XVII of this Lease without violating any such law, regulation, ordinance, or ruling.
Commencing on the earliest to occur of (1) the date Lessor executes with a third party a new
lease for the Premiscs to be effective upon expiration or termination of this Lease, or (2) the date
that is five (5) years prior to the expiration of the Lease Term without Lessee and Lessor having
entered into an extension of this Lease or a new lease for the Premises, Lessor may withhold,
condition, or delay any consent under this Section in Lessor’s sole and absolute discretion, If
Lessee is required to obtain Lessor’s consent hereunder, Lessee shall request such consent by
written notice to Lessor, which must be accompanied by detailed and complete plans and
specifications for the proposed work.

MO195025/1866486-2 22



(b)  Costs of Review. Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for the reasonable fees
and costs of any architects, engineers, or other consultants retained by Lessor to review the
proposed Alterations.

10.2 Compliance of Alterations With Laws and Insurance Reguirements. Lessee shall
causc all Alterations to comply with the following:

(a) Applicable Laws and Orders;
(b)  Applicable requirements of a fire-rating bureau; or

() Applicable requirements of Lessee’s and Lessor’s hazard insurance and
other carriers.

Lessee shall also comply with those requirements in the course of constructing the Alterations.
Before beginning construction of any Alteration, Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense,
obtain a valid building permit and any other permits required by any government entity having
jurisdiction over the Premises, Lessee shall provide copies of those permits to Lessor before the
work begins, Lessee shall, at Lessec’s sole cost and expense, comply with any and all
requirements pertaining to the Premises of any insurance company necessary for the maintenance
of the insurance required under this Lease. No consent by Lessor 1o any proposed work shall
constitute a waiver of Lessee’s obligations under this Section 10.2.

10.3 Manner of Construction. Lessee shall build Alterations entirely within the
Premises. All-work relating to any Alterations-shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner
under the supervision of a competent architect or licensed structural engineer, using new
materials equivalent in quality to those used in the construction of the initial improvements to the
Premises. All work shall be diligently prosecuted to completion. Lessee shall ensure that all
work is performed in a manner intended to minimize any disruption of Hospital operations or
obstruction of access to or through the Hospital or its common areas. The parties acknowledge
that the construction of the New Improvements may result in significant disruption of Hospital
operations and obstruction of access to and through the Hospital, and agree to cooperate and use
commercially reasonable efforts to minimize such disruption and obstruction. Lessee shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that such work is not interrupted by labor stoppages.
Within twenty (20) days after completion of any Alterations, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor a
reproducible copy of the drawings of Alterations as built. If this Lease terminates before
completion of any Alteration by Lessee, on Lessor’s request Lessee shall assign its right under
any construction, design or material supply contract required for completion of the work to
Landlord or its designee.

10.4 Payment for Alterations. Lessee shall promptly pay all charges and costs incurred
in connection with any Alteration, as and when required by the terms of any agreements with
contractors, designers, or suppliers; provided, however, that Lessee may contest any such
charges and costs in good faith as Lessee reasonably considers necessary. Lessee shall hold
harmless, indemnify and defend Lessor and the Premises with respect to any Claims resulting
from any such contest or amounts to be paid to any such contractors, designers or suppliers. At
least fifteen (15) days before beginning construction of any Alteration, Lessee shall give Lessor

M0195025/1866486-2 23



writien notice of the expected commencement date of that construction to permit Lessor to post
and record a notice of nonresponsibility.

Orni completion of any Alteration, Lessee shall;

(a) Cause a timely notice of completion to be recorded in the office of the
recorder of Marin County, in accordance with California Code Sections 8182, 8184, 9204, and
9208 or any successor statute;

(b) Deliver to Lessor evidence of full payment and executed unconditiona!
final waivers of all liens for labor, services, or materials, all in recordable form; and

(c) Reimburse the Lessor for all of its direct out-of-pocket expenses incurred
in connection with that work.

10.5 Construction Insurance. Before construction begins, Lessee shall deliver to
Lessor reasonable evidence that damage to, or destruction of, the Alterations during construction
will be covered either by the policies that Lessee is required to carry under Article XII or by a
policy of builder’s all-risk insurance in an amount approved by Lessor, which approval shall not
be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. If Lessor requires Lessee to provide builder’s
all-risk insurance for the proposed Alterations, Lessee shall provide a copy of the policy, any
endorsements, and an original certificate of insurance that complies with Section 12.6. Lessee
shall cause each contractor and subcontractor to maintain all workers’ compensation insurance
required by law and liability insurance (including property damage) in amounts reasonably
required by  Lessor. Lessee shall provide evidence of that insurance to Lessor before
construction begins.

10.6  Ownership of Alterations. All Alterations that may be installed or placed in or
about the Premises from time to time shall be and become the property of Lessor on termination
of the Lease.

10.7 Capital Expenditures. Throughout the Lease Term, Lessee shall not, without
Lessor’s prior written consent, which Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold, condition, or
delay, make any capital expenditure (as determined pursuant to GAAP) and including any capital
expenditures required by Sections 9.1, 10.1, 10.7 and 14.1, but excluding any expenditures
required by Articles VI above which shall continue to be governed by Article VI) for any
improvement, restoration, addition, replacement, or any other enhancement to the Premises, any
improvements thereon, or for any Hospital Assets that (A) will have a vseful life (as determined
in accordance with GAAP) that extends beyond the expiration of this Lease, or (B) the financing
and/or payments for which, in whatever form, including, without limitation, pursuant to any
capital lease, loan or acquisition financing agreement or indenture, service agreement, or license
agreement, extend beyond the expiration of this Lease in an amount that equals or exceeds
twenty percent (20%) of the total acquisition, leasing, licensing, and/or service agreement costs
for such improvement, restoration, addition, replacement, or any other enhancement to the
Premises, any improvements thereon, or for any Hospital Assets. If shall be reasonable for
Lessor to withhold its consent for any capital expenditure that would result in a debt, obligation,
encumbrance, lien, etc., that (i) would constitute an Indenture as provided for hereunder or (ii)

M0195025/1866486-2 24



Lessor could not assume or accept upon expiration or earlier tcrmination of this Lease without
violating any law, regulation, ordinance, or ruling applicable to Lessor, Lessee, the Premises, or
the assets, rights and interests to be conveyed to Lessor, Lessee, the Premiscs, or the assets,
rights and interests to be conveyed to Lessor at Leasc termination or expiration pursuant to
Article XVII of this Lease, or to condition such consent on structuring the capital expenditure,
and any financing thereof, in such a manner so that Lessor could assume or accept same pursuant
to Article XVII of this L.ease with violating any such law, regulation, ordinance, or ruling.
Commencing on the earliest to occur of (1) the date Lessor executes with a third party a new
lease for the Premises to be effcctive upon expiration or termination of this Lease, or (2) the date
that is five (5) years prior to the expiration of the Lease Term without Lessee and Lessor having
entered into an extension of this Lease or a new lease for the Premises, Lessee may withhold,
condition, or delay any consent under this Section in Lessor’s sole and absolute discretion.

10.8 New Improvements. As is required to meet the requirements of any financing for
the New Improvements obtained by either Lessor or Lessee, ownership of the New
Improvements during the Term of this Lease may vest in either Lessor or Lessee, or in a
combination of Lessor or Lessee, or be transferred from Lessee to Lessor, either for, or without,
payment of consideration. Notwithstanding any provision of the Prior Lease to the contrary, title
to all of the New Improvements constructed and funded by Lessee prior to the Lease
Commencement Date of this Lease shall remain with Lessee and shall not vest in Lessor as of
the expiration or termination of the Prior Lease. During the Term of this Lease, the parties shall
cooperate in good faith to structure and/or transfer the ownership of any of the New
Improvements in order to meet the requirements of any financing for the New Improvements.
Notwithstanding the forgoing, any portion of the New Improvements, the ownership of which
vests in Lessor during the Term of this Lease, shall immediately upon such vesting become part
of the Premises leased to Lessee hereunder, and any portion of the New Improvements, the
ownership of which is vested in Lessee as of the date of termination or expiration of this Lease,
shall become the property of Lessor as of such date, without any obligation on the part of Lessor
to reimburse or compensate Lessee for such New Improvements or the costs thereof.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 10.8, Lessor agrees that if Lessee constructs
the new parking structure on the Premises that is part of the New Improvements and Lessee
finances such construction and development with Lessee’s own funds or funds borrowed by
Lessee, then Lessor, upon Lessee’s written request therefor, which Lessee may give to Lessor at
any time after completion of the parking structure, shall acquire title to the new parking structure
from Lcssee by paying Lessee from Lessor’s GO Bond proceeds the full construction/
development costs therefor, and the parties shall cooperate in good faith to accomplish same in
accordance with the legal requirements regarding the use and application of Lessor’'s GO Bond
funds. Lessee understands and acknowledges that (a) Lessor, as the owner of the Property, is
obligated to comply with all Seismic Requirements with respect to the Hospital and the Premises
and that the New Improvements are intended to satisfy Lessor’s obligations with respect to such
requirements, and (b) the deadline for Lessor’s compliance therewith falls within the Lease
Term.

Lessee acknowledges and agrees that Lessor has requested and Lessee has agreed that
Lessee will perform, at its own cost and expense (other than any General Obligation Bond
funding provided by Lessor), all tasks/work required for the New Improvements, including
without limitation, designing the New Improvements, planning, applying for, processing and

M0O195025/1866486-2 25



obtaining all necessary and appropriate approvals, entitlements and permits for the New
Improvements, seeking and obtaining financing/funding for the New Improvements (except that
Lessor will seek to issue General Obligation Bonds to help finance the New Improvements), and
implementing, and constructing the New Improvements, The parties agree that they shall tailor
Lessee’s obligations and the scepe of Lessee’s tasks/work hereunder to meet the requirements of
any financing obtained by cither party for the New Improvements. Lessor, throughout the term
of the Lease, shall take all reasonably necessary and appropriate action to cooperatc with and
assist Lessee to plan, apply for, process and obtain all necessary and appropriate approvals,
entitlements and permits for, seek and obtain financing/funding for, implement, and construct,
the New Improvements. Lessor’s duties hereunder shall include, to the extent necessary and
appropriate, the execution and delivery of all applications, plans, drawings, submittals, financial
statements and information, and other documents or information, and Lessor’s reasonable
consent to the granting or establishment of any temporary or permanent easements, licenses or
other rights over the Premises, all as is necessary to further and/or support the installation of the
New Improvements.

Lessee shall reimburse Lessor, as Rent due under this Lease, upon Lessor’s invoicing of
same to Lessee, all costs, expenses, fees, and charges Lessor incurs with respect to the New
[mprovements, and with respect to Lessor’s efforts to seek and obtain financing/funding
therefore, including the funding of efforts to educate the public about, and pay the election costs
of, any ballot measures related to public funding of such project, the extension or renewal of this
Lease, or similar matters.

ARTICLE XI

COVENANT AGAINST LIENS

11.1 Covenant Against Liens.

(a) Except as expressly approved by Lessor in writing, Lessee shall not be the
cause or object of any liens or allow such liens to exist, attach to, be placed on, or encumber
Lessor’s interest in the Premises, by operation of law or otherwise. Lessee shall not suffer or
permit any lien of mechanics, material suppliers, or others to be placed against the Premises with
respect to work or services performed or claimed to have been performed for Lessee or materials
furnished or claimed to have been furnished to Lessee or the Premises. Lessor has the right at all
times to post and keep posted on the Premises any notice that it considers necessary for
protection from such liens.

If any such lien attaches or Lessee receives notice of any such lien, Lessee shall
cause the lien to be immediatcly released and removed of record. Despite any other provision of
this Lease, if the lien is not released and removed within ten (10) business days after Lessor
delivers notice of the lien to Lessee, Lessor may immediately take all action necessary to release
and remove the lien, without any duty to investigate the validity of it. All expenses (including
reasonable attorncy fees) incurred by Lessor in connection with the lien shall be considered
additional Rent under this Lease and be immediately due and payable by Lessee. Any failure by
Lessec to comply with this Section shall constitute a material breach of this Lease.

M0125025/1866486-2 26



(b)  Notwithstanding subsection (a) above, in connection with the New
Improvements provided for in Section10.8, Lessee may in good faith and at Lessee’s own
expense contest the validity of any lien, provided Lessee has furnished the bond required in
California Civil Code Section 3143 (or any comparable statute hereaiter enacted for providing a
bond freeing the Premises from the effect of such a lien claim). Lessee shall defend and
indemnify Lessor against all Claims arising out of work performed on the Premises by or on
behalf of Lessee, together with reasonable attorneys’ fecs and all costs and expenses incurred by
Lessor in negotiating, settling, defending or otherwise protecting against such Claims in the
event of the breach by Lessee of the duiy to defend or indemnify Lessor. If Lessee does not
cause to be recorded the bond described in California Civil Code Section 3143 or otherwise
protect the Premises under any alternative or successor statute, or a final judgment has been
rendered against Lessee by a court of competent jurisdiction for the foreclosure of a mechanic’s,
materialman’s, contractor’s or subcontractor’s lien claim and Lessee fails to stay the execution of
the judgment by lawful means or to pay the judgment, Lessor shall have the right, but not the
duty, to pay or otherwise discharge, stay, or prevent the execution of any such judgment or lien
or both. Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for all sums paid by Lessor under this Section, together
with all Lessors’ reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, plus interest on those sums, fees and costs
at the rate of 10% per year from the date of Lessor’s payment thereof until the date of Lessee’s
reimbursement thereof.

ARTICLE X11

EXCULPATION, INDEMNIFICATION, AND INSURANCE

12.1 Exculpation.

(a) Exculpation, To the fullest extent permitted by law, Lessee, on its behalf
and on behalf of all Lessee Parties, waives all claims (in law, equity, or otherwise) against Lessor
Parties arising out of, knowingly and voluntarily assumes the risk of, and agrees that Lessor
Parties shall not be liable to Lessee Parties for any of the following:

(1) Injury to or death of any person; or

(i)  Loss of, injury or damage to, or destruction of any tangible or
intangible property, including the resulting loss of use, economic losses, and consequential or
resulting damage of any kind from any cause. Lessor Parties shall not be liable under this clause
regardless of whether the liability results from any active or passive act, error, omission, or
negligence of any of the Lessor Parties; or is based on claims in which liability without fault or
strict lability is imposed or sought to be imposed on any of the Lessor Parties.

This exculpation clause shall not apply to claims against Lessor Parties to the extent that
a final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction establishes that the injury, loss, damage, or
destruction was proximately caused by Lessor Parties’ fraud, willful injury to person or property,
or violation of law.

MO0195025/1866486-2 27



(b)  Survival of Exculpation. The clauses of this Section 12.1 shall survive the
expiration or earlier terminstion of this Leasc until all claims within the scope of this Section
12.1 are fully, finally and absolutely barred by the applicable statutes of limitations.

(¢)  Lessec’s Acknowledgment of Fairness. Lessec acknowledges thai this
Section 12.1 was necgotiated with Lessor, that the consideration for it is fair and adequate, and
that Lessee had a fair opportunity to negotiate, accept, reject, modify or alter it.

(d)  No Exculpation for Nondelegable Duties. This exculpation clause may not
be interpreted or construed as an attempt by Lessor to be relieved of liability arising out of a
nondelegable duty on the part of Lessor.

()  Waiver of Civil Code Section 1542. With respect to the exculpation
provided in this Article XII, Lessee waives the benefits of California Civil Code Section 1542,
which provides:

A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or
suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if
known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the
debtor.

§9)] Lessee’s Rights. Nothing within this Section 12.1 restricts Lessce’s right
to enforce any rights it may have hereunder or in any other agreement with Lessor.

12.2  Indemnification.

(a) Lessee’s Indemnification of Lessor Parties. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole expense and with counsel reasonably acceptable to Lessor,
indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessor Parties from and against all Claims, as defined in
subsection (b), from any cause, arising out of or relating (directly or indirectly) to the Premises,
this Lease, or the tenancy created under this Lease, including, but not limited to:

i) The use or occupancy, or manner of use or occupancy, or condition
of the Premises;

(i)  Any act, error, omission, or negligence of Lessee Parties or of any
invitee, guest, or licensee of Lessee in, on, or about the Premises;

(i)  Lessee’s conducting of its business, wherever conducted;

(iv)  Any Alterations, activities, work, or things done, omitted,
permitted, allowed, or suffered by Lessee Parties in, at, or about the Premises, including the
actual, alleged or asserted violation of or failure io comply with any applicable Laws and Orders
in existence on the Lease Commencement Date or enacted, promulgated, or issued after the date
of this Lease; and

M0195025/1866486-2 28



(v)  Any breach or default in the performance of any obligation on
Lessee’s part to be performed under this Lease, including obligations which survive expiration or
earlier termination of this Lease under the terms of this Lease.

(t)  Type of Injury or Loss. This indemnification extends to and includes

Claims for:

@) Injury to any persons (including death at any time resulting from
that injury};

(i)  Loss of, injury or damage to, or destruction of property (including
all loss of use resulting from that loss, injury, damage, or destruction); and

(iii)  All economic losses and consequential or resulting damage of any
kind.

(¢)  Active or Passive Negligenice: Strict Liability. Except as provided in this
subsection (d), the indemnification in subsection (a) shall apply regardless of the active or
passive negligence of Lessor Parties and regardless of whether liability without fault or strict
liability is imposed or sought to be imposed on Lessor Parties. The indemnification in subsection
(a) shall not apply to the extent that a final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction
establishes that a Claim against one Lessor Party was proximately caused by the willful
misconduct of that Lessor Party. In that event, however, this indemnification shall remain valid
for all other Lessor Parties.

(d)  Indemnification _ Independent of Insurance  Obligations. The
indemnification provided in this Article XII may not be construed or interpreted as in any way
restricting, limiting, or modifying Lessee’s insurance or other obligations under this Lease and is
independent of Lessee’s insurance and other obligations. Lessee’s compliance with the insurance
requirements and other obligations under this Lease shall not in any way restrict, limit or modify

Lessee’s indemnification obligations under this Lease.

(e) Attorney Fees. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its actual
attorney fees and court costs incurred in enforcing the indemnification clauses set forth in this

Section 12.2.

() Survival of Indemnification. All of the provisions of this Section 12.2
shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease until all claims against Lessor
Parties involving any of the indemnified matters are fully, finally, and absolutely barred by the
applicable statutes of limitations.

(8) Duty to Defend. Lessee’s duty to defend Lessor Parties is separate and
independent of Lessce’s duty to indemnify Lessor Parties. The duty to defend includes claims for
which Lessor Parties may be liable without fault or strictly liable. The duty to defend applies
regardless of whether the issues of negligence, liability, fault, default or other obligation on the
part of Lessee Parties have been determined. The duty to defend applies immediately, regardless
of whether Lessor Parties have paid any sums or incurred any detriment arising out of or relating
(directly or indirectly) to any Claims, It is the express intention of the parties that Lessor Partics

M0195025/1866486-2 29



be entitled to obtain summary adjudication or summary judgment regarding Lessee’s duty to
defend Lessor Parties at any stage of any claim or suit within the scope of this Section 12.2.

(h)  Indemnification Procedures. If an event occurs for which Lessor asserts
Lessee must indemnify it, Lessor shall notify Lessce promptly of such event and, if the event
involves the claim of a third party, Lessee shall have sole control over, and shall assume all
expenses with respect to, the defense, settlcment, adjustment or compromise of such claim;
provided, however, that (a) Lessor may, if rcasonably necessary tG protect its interests, employ
counsel of its own to assist in the handling of the claim, and (b) Lessee shall obtain the prior
written approval of Lessor, before entering into any scttlement, adjustment, or compromise of
such claim of ceasing to defend such claim, if pursuant thereto or as a result thereof there would
be imposed injunctive or other similar relief against Lessor.

12.3  Compliance With Insurer Requirements. Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole expense,
comply with all requirements, guidelines, rules, orders, and similar mandates and directives
pertaining to the use of the Premises and Hospital Assets, whether imposed by Lessee’s insurers,
Lessor’s insurers, or both. If I.essee’s business operations, conduct, or usc of the Premises or the
Hospital Assets cause any increase in the premium for any insurance policies carried by Lessor,
Lessee shall, within ten (10) business days after receipt of written notice from Lessor, reimburse
Lessor for the increase. Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole expense, comply with all rules, orders,
regulations, or requirements of the American Insurance Association (formerly the National
Board of Fire Underwriters) and of any similar body.

12.4 Lessee’s Insurance. Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, during the
term of this Lease, procure and maintain at all times in force and in effect the following

insurances:

(a) All Risk Insurance. Insurance against loss or damage by fire, lightning,
vandalism, malicious mischief, sprinkler leakage, earthquake, and all other risks covered by the
broadest available all risk insurance agreement then in use in the State of California, including
without limitation earthquake, covering the Premises in an amount equal to the “full replacement
value” of the Premis¢s and naming Lessor as a named insured. Earthquake insurance shall only
be required, however, if it is required by any lender of either Lessor or Lessee, or to the extent
that it is reasonably available and commercially feasible. The “full replacement value” of the
Premises shall be determined from time to time at the request of Lessee or any lender of Lessor
or Lessee (but not less frequently than once in every twenty-four (24) months) or Lessor (but not
more frequently than once in every twelve (12) months). As used in this Agreement, the term
“full replacement value” is the cost of replacing all improvements included in the Premises with
improvements of substantially identical kind, quality and capacity without deduction for
depreciation. Such cost of replacement shall also include demolition and any increased cost of
construction occasioned by the enforcement of any state or municipal law or ordinance
regulating the construction or repair of buildings or the demolition of any portion of a building
which has not suffered damage.

(b)  Lessee’s Personal Property Insurance. Lessee shall procure and maintain
property insurance coverage for all Hospital Assets including but not limited to office furniture,
trade fixtures, equipment, merchandise, and all other items of Lessee’s property in, on, at, or

MO0195025/1866486-2 30



about the Premises, including property installed by, for, or at the expense of Lessee, Lessec’s
personal property insurance must include an agreed-amount endorsement for no less than one
hundred percent (100%) of the full replacement cost (new without deduction for depreciation) of
the covered items and property, and the amounis of coverage must meet any coinsurance
requirements of the policy or policies. It is the parties’ intent that Lessee shell structure its
property insurance program so that no coinsurance penalty shall be imposed and there shall be no
valuation shortfalls or disputes with any insurer or with Lessor.

(¢)  Machinery Insurance, Boiler and machinery insurance providing coverage
on pressure vessels, auxiliary piping, pumps and compressors, refrigeration systems, HVAC
systems, transformers and miscellaneous electrical apparatus constituting part of the Premises in
rezsonable and customary amounts and naming Lessor as loss payee.

(d  General Liability. Comprehensive general liability insurance, including
automobile liability, written on an “occurrence” policy form, in reasonable and customary
amounts for death, injury, damage to property, and personal and advertising injury, arising out of
or relating (directly or indirectly) to Lessee’s business operations, conduct, assumed liabilities,
and use and occupancy of the Premises. Such policy shall also insure performance by Lessee of
the indemnity provisions of Section 12.2 hereof. Lessee’s liability coverage shall include all the
coverages typically provided by the Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability Endorsement,
including broad form property damage coverage (which shall include coverage for completed
operations). Lessee’s liability coverage shall further include premises-operations coverage,
products-completed operations coverage, owners and contractors protective coverage (when
reasonably required by Lessor), and the broadest available form of contractual liability coverage.
It is the parties’ intent that Lessee’s contractual liability coverage provide coverage to the
maximum extent possible of Lessee’s indemnification obligations under this Lease.

()  Professional Liability. Professional liability and malpractice insurance, in
reasonable and customary amounts,

§3) Worker’s Compensation Insurance. All employees’ compensation
insurance on Lessee’s employees required by worker’s compensation laws and regulations of the
State of California, provided that Lessee shall be permitted to enter into reasonable plans of self-
insurance.

(2) Officers and Directors Insurance. Directors and Officers insurance
covering and indemnifying all officers and directors of Lessce and Lessor and their affiliated
entities, and the medical staff of the Hospital, against any liability incurred by any such officers
or directors arising out o or related to their status as an officer or director,

(h)  Fiduciary Liability Insurance. Fiduciary liability insurance covering all of
Lessee’s fiduciary responsibilities.

@) Employment Practices Insurance. Employment practices insurance
covering all of Lessee’s employment policies and practices.

G Crime Insurance. Insurance against crimes committed by Lessee or on the

Premises.

MO195025/1866486-2 31



(k)  Poilution/Hazardous Materials/Underground  Storage Tank Insurance,
Insurance against environmental hazards on the Premises.

M Network Security and Privacy Liability Insurance. Lessee shall maintain
cyber liability, network liability, data breach or similar privacy liability irisurance covering actual
or alleged acts, errors or omissions committed by Lessee, its employees, contractors or agents
with a limit of $2,000,000 per wrongful act/claim and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. The policy
shall expressly provide, but not be limited to, coverage for the following perils: (i) unauthorized
use/access of a computer system or database; (ii) defense of any rcgulatory action involving a
breach of privacy or similar rights; (iii) failure to protect from disclosure information that is
deemed confidential by law or agreement (including both personal and commercial information);
and (iv) notification and remedial action costs in the e¢vent of an actual or perceived computer
security or privacy breach, whether or not required by statute. Such insurance shall extend to
cover damages arising out of erroneous acts, errors or omissions of any individual when acting
under Lessee’s supervision, direction, or control.

(m) Business Income and Iixtra Expense Coverage. Lessee shall further
procure and maintain business income (business interruption) insurance and extra expense
coverage with coverage amounts that shall reimburse Lessee for all direct or indirect loss of
income and charges and costs incurred arising out of all perils insured against by Lessee’s
property insurance coverage, including prevention of, or denial of use of or access to, all or part
of the Premises, as a result of those perils. The business income and extra expense coverage
shall provide coverage for no less than twelve (12) months of the loss of income, charges, and
costs contemplated under the Lease and shall be carried in amounts necessary to avoid any
coinsurance penalty that could apply. The business income and exira expense coverage shall be
issued by the insurer that issues Lessee’s other first party coverage.

(n) Other Insurance; Review of Insurance. Such other insurance as is
customarily procured and maintained in connection with the ownership and operation of
hospitals of similar size and character located in the State of California, and such other insurance
as is required by any lender or any loan or public or private financing agreement or document to
which Lessee or Lessor is a party, for as long as such requirement or agreement/document is in
effect. Once every three (3) years during the Lease Term and any renewal term, Lessor shall
have the right to engage an insurance consultant to review the insurance coverages maintained by
Lessee, If, in the opinion of that consultant, any aspect of Lessee’s general liability, property, or
other insurance program is inadequate to protect the interests of Lessor or Lessor’s lenders, as
contemplated in this Article XII, Lessee shall, at Lessce’s sole expense, comply promptly with
the consultant’s recommendations.

12.5 Form of Policics and Additional Requirements.

() Insurance Independent of Exculpation and Indemnification. The insurance
requirements set forth in Sections 12.3-12.4 are independent of Lessee’s exculpation,
indemnification, and other obligations under this Lease and shall not be construed or interpreted
in any way to restrict, limit, or modify Lessee’s exculpation, indemnification, and other
obligations or to limit Lessee’s liability under this Lease.

M0195025/1866486-2 32



(b)  Proyisions Applicable to All Insurance Required of Lessee.  The

following provisions shall apply with respect to cach insurance coverage required under this
Lease:

@) Except with respect to Workers’ Compensation Insurance, Lessor
and any lender of Lessor shall be included as an additional insured in a form acceptable to Lessor
under the coverages speciiied in this Lease. The coverage afforded to Lessor and any lender of
Lessor must be at least as broad as that afforded to Lessee and may nct contain any terms,
conditions, exclusions, or limitations applicable to Lessor or any lender of Lessor that do not
apply to Lessee. Each policy obtained and maintained by Lessee hereunder shall provide that
such policy is primary and any other insurance maintained by any additional insureds is strictly
excess and secondary and non-contributing with such insurance.

(ii)  Each insurance policy required hereunder shall:

(1)  Except as otherwise approved in writing by Lessor, be
issued by insurance carriers licensed and approved to do business in California, having a general
policyholders rating of not less than an “A” and financial rating of not less than 7 in the most
current Best’s Insurance Report;

(2)  Contain a provision that the policy shall not be subject to
cancellation or nonrenewal without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Lessor by
registered mail; provided, Lessee must provide not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice
to Lessor of any material alteration of the foregoing policies; and

(3)  Contain severability of interest and cross liability clauses,

(iii)  As evidence of specified insurance coverage, Lessee shall deliver
to Lessor prior to the Lease Commencement Date certificates issued by Lessee’s insurance
carrier(s) acceptable to Lessor and executed by an authorized agent of the carriers showing such
policies in force for the specified period and evidencing compliance with these insurance
requircments. Lessee shall deliver complete copies of the insurance policies required hereunder,
along with any endorsement to them, to Lessor within five (5) business days of Lessor’s written
request for the same. Lessor has the right to review certified policies as reasonably necessary.
Evidence of any renewal insurance shall be delivered to Lessor not less than thirty (30) days
prior to the expiration date on the term of the policy. Each policy and certificate shall be subject
to reasonable approval by Lessor. The “endeavor to” and “failure o mail such notice shall
impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the Company” larguage and any similar
language shall be stricken from the certificate.

(iv)  Nothing contained in this Article XII shall be construed as limiting
the type, quality or quantity of insurance Lessee should maintain or the extent of Lessee’s
responsibility for payment of damages hereunder.

(v)  If Lessee fails to obtain and deliver to Lessor evidence of the
insurance required to be maintained by Lessee under this Lease or, once acquired, should any
policy expire or be cancelled before the expiration of this Lease or such later period as Lessee is
required to carry such insurance as set forth herein, and Lessee fuils immediately to procure other

MO195025/1866486-2 33



insurance as specified, Lessor shall have the right, but no obligation, to procure such insurance or
any portion thereof and to charge Lessee onc hundred ten percent (110%) of the cost to Lessor of
procuring such insurance and such amount shall be due and payable to Lessor within the eatlier
of (i) ten (10) days of a request therefor by Lessor or (ii) the next date upon which any
installment of Rent is due and payable hereunder,

(vi)  Lessee shall not permit any third party to commence any work on
or relating to the Premises until such pariies have complied with any insurance standards that
Lessce customarily requires of its third party contractors and consultants. Lessee shali include
Lessor and the other Lessor Parties in any indemmity provisions with such parties for defense and
indemnification to the same extent Lessee is defended and indemnified.

(viil) All such policies shall have deductibles/self-insured retentions
reasonably acceptable to Lessor and in any event not exceeding amounts customarily provided
for hospitals similar to the Hospital within the State of California.

(c) Concurrency of Primary. Excess, and Umbrella Policies. Lessee’s liability
insurance coverage may be provided by a combination of primary, excess, and umbrella policies,
but those policies must be absolutely concurrent in all respects regarding the coverage afforded
by the policies. The coverage of any excess or umbrella policy must be at least as broad as the

coverage of the primary policy.

(d “Per Location” Endorsement. Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole expense,
procure a “per location” endorsement or equivalent reasonably acceptable to Lessor so that the
general aggregate and other limits apply separately and specifically to the Premises.

(e) Survival of Insurance Requirements. Upon expiration or early termination
of this Lease and in conjunction with the parties’ obligations under Article XVII of this Lease,
Lessee and Lessor shall cooperate to maintain in full force and effect the liability insurance
coverages required under this Lease and shall maintain Lessor Parties and any lender specified
by Lessor as additional insureds, as required by this Section, for a period of no less than two (2)
years after expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

12.6 Lessor’s Insurance. At all times during the Term of this Lease, Lessee shall
cooperate with and assist Lessor to obtain and maintain any insurance that Lessor, in its sole
discretion, determines to obtain and maintain upon terms, including without limitation premiums,
rates, and deductibles, most favorable to Lessor.

12,7 Disposition of Insurance Proceeds.

(a)  Except as provided otherwisc in subsection (b) below, and subject to the
requirements of Lessee’s lenders under any Indenture and the terms of any financing and loan
agreements to which Lessce is a party, any and all fire or other insurance proceeds that become
payable at any time during the Lease Term because of damage to or destruction of any
improvements on the Premises or the Hospital Assets shall be paid to Lessee and applied by
Lessee toward the cost of repairing and restoring the damaged or destroyed improvements or
Hospital Assets as required hereunder.

MO195026/1866486-2 14



(t)  Commencing on the earliest to occur of (1) the date Lessor executes with a
third party a new lease for the Premises to be effective upon expiration or termination of this
Lease, or (2) the date that is five (5) years prior to the expiration of the Lease Term without
Lessce and Lessor having entered into an extension of this Lease or a new lease for the Premises,
the following provisions shall apply:

(i) Lessec shall not, without Lessor’s prior written consent, which
Lessor may, subject to the requirements of Subsection (ii) below, withhold, condition, or delay in
its sole and absolute discretion, use, expend, or apply any fire or other insurance proceeds that
became payable at any time after this subsection becomes applicable because of damage to or
destruction of any improvements on the Premises or the Hospital Assets for any Improvement,
restoration, addition, replacement, or any other enhancements to the Premises, any improvements
thereon, or for any Hospital Assets and, subject to the requirements of subsection (ii) below,
Lessor may direct Lessee as to the expenditure, retention, reserving, application, or other
disposition or use of such proceeds.

(ii)  Lessor’s right to direct the expenditure, retention, reserving,
application, or other disposition or use of any insurance proceeds or payments under this
subsection (b) shall be subject and subordinate to any and all requirements imposed on the
expenditure, retention, reserving, application, or other disposition or use of any insurance
proceeds or payments contained in any financing or loan agreement to which Lessee is a party,
including, without limitation, any capital lease, loan or acquisition financing agreement or
indenture, service agreement, or license agreement.

12.8 Waiver of Subrogation. Lessor and Lessee agrec to cause the insurance
companies issuing their respective property (first party) insurance to waive any subrogation
rights that those companies may have against Lessee or Lessor, respectively, as long as the
insurance is not invalidated by the waiver. If the waivers of subrogation are contained in their
respective insurance policies, Lessor and Lessce waive any right that either may have against the
other on account of any loss or damage to their respective property to the extent that the loss or
damage is insurcd under their respective insurance policies.

ARTICLE XIII

ACCEPTANCE OF PREMISES

13.1  Lessee In Prior Possession/As-Is/No_ Obligation of Lessor iv Prepare Premises.
Lessee acknowledges that it has occupied and used the Premises and the Hospital for over twenty
seven (27) years and, prior to its e¢xecution of this Lease, it has thoroughly inspected and
examined, and is extremely familiar with, the condition of the Premises, and has found it in good
condition and repair and satisfactory for its purposes hereunder. Regardless of any examination
or inspection by Lessee, Lessee is leasing the Premises “AS-IS” in its present condition. Lessee
waives any Claims with respect to the condition of the Premises, including with respect to any
adverse condition not discovered or otherwise unknown by Lessee as of the Effective Date of
this Lease. Lessor makes no warranty or representation, express or implied, with respect to the
Premises or any part or portion thereof, either as to its fitness for use, design or condition for any
particular use or purpose or otherwise, or as to the nature or quality of the material or

MO195025/1866486-2 35



workmanship therein, or the existence of Hazardous Materials (as defined in Section 7.6), it
being agreed that all such risks, latent or patent are to be borne solely by Lessee, including all
responsibility and liability for compliance with all Environmental Laws (as defined in Section
7.5) including any necessary environmental remediation.

ARTICLE XIV

DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION

14.1 Restoration of Premises. If during the Term of this Lease, including any renewal
hereof, the Premises are partially or totally damaged or destroyed, whether or not from a risk
covered by insurance, Lessee shall, at Lessee’s own cost and expense, promptly and
expeditiously (a) notify Lessor in writing of such damage or destruction, and (b) make the repairs
necessary to restore the Premises to a condition for occupancy or use comparable to the
condition thereof before such damage or destruction. Such destruction shall not terminate this
Lease. If the cost of such repairs exceeds a commercially feasible amount, Lessec may
nevertheless repair, restore and replace the Premises, or Lessee may, by notice to Lessor, elect
instead to promptly and expeditiously demolish and reconstruct the improvements which were
damaged or destroyed so as to produce reconstructed Premises and Hospital Assets that are substantially
similar to the Premises and Hospital Assets ptior to the destruction. The work of repair and restoration
shall be commenced by Lessee as soon as reasonably practicable after the damage or destruction
occurs and shall be completed as soon as reasonable practicable thereafter. In all other respects,
the work of repair aud restoration shall be done in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable Laws and Orders then in effect. Lessee’s obligation for restoration described in this
Section 14.1 shall exist whether or not funds are available from insurance proceeds. All repairs
and restoration by Lessee shall be deemed a part of the Premises and belong solely to Lessor, and
Lessee shall not have any right to reimbursement or referral therefor upon termination or
expiration of this Lease.

142 No Abatement of Rent: Insurance Proceeds. In no event shall Lessee be entitled to
any compensation or damages on account of any annoyance or inconvenience on making repairs or on
account of any destruction described in Section 14.1 above. Lessee shall not be entitled to any abatement
or reduction of Rent while such repairs are being made and, unless this Lease is terminated, Lessee shall
continue to pay the monthly Rent payable pursuant to Scction 3.1, the Additional Rent, if any, payable
pursuant to Section 3.2, the Administrative Support Obligations payable pursuant to Section 3.3, and all
other Rent payable hereunder; provided, however, there shall be credited against such Rent any insurance
proceeds payable to or received by Lessor by reason of any business interruption insurance, procured and
maintained by Lessee. If the Premises are o be repaired in accordance with this Lease, Lessee hereby
waives the provisions contained in California Civil Code Scctions 1932(2) and 1933(4) or any laws
replacing or modifying such provisions. Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee or any other person or
entity for any direct, indirect, or consequential damage (including but not limited to lost profits
of Lessee or loss of or interference with Lessee’s business), whether or not caused by the
negligence of Lessor or Lessor’s employees, contractors, licensees, or invitees, due to, arising
out of, or as a result of any damage or destruction. Lessec agrees to maintain business
interruption insurance in amounts and with coverage no less than that required by subsection
12.5(m) to provide covérage regarding such matters.

M0195025/1866486-2 36



ARTICLE XV

CONDEMNATION

15.1 Total Condemnation. If, during the Lease Term, & Total Taking occurs, this
Lease shall terminate as of 12:01 A.M. on whichever of the following occurs first: (i) the date
legal title becomes vested in the agency or entity exercising the power of eminent domain, or (ii)
the date actual physician possession is taken by the agency or entity exercising the power of
eminent domain. Thereafter, both Lessor and Lessee shall be released from all obligations under
this Lease, except those that accrued prior to such date or that survive under this Agreement by
their terms.

15.2 Partial Taking of Improvements. If at any time during the Lease term a taking
occurs that is less than a Total Taking and affects the useable portion of the improvements on the
Premises, all compensation and damages payablc for that taking shall be made available to and
used, to the extent reasonably needed, by Lessee to repair any portion of the remaining useable
portion of the improvements damaged by the taking and to replace the useable portion of the
improvements taken with other new useable space on the portion of the Premises not taken,
provided that replacement is then permitted by existing law. Plans and specifications for the
replacement space must be compatible, in terms of architecture and quality of construction, with
the improvements not taken. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section, if the
useable portion of the improvements taken by eminent domain results in Lessee being unable to
operate a nonprofit community general acute care hospital on the Premises after repair and
replacement as required hereunder, either Lessor or Lessee may terminate this Lease in the
manner prescribed by Section 15.3.

15.3 Termination for Partial Taking. Either Lessor or Lessee may terminate this Lease
for the reason stated in Section 15.2 of this Lease, by serving written notice of termination on the
other within one hundred eighty (180) days after Lessee has received from Lessor or from the
condemning authority written notice of an intended taking that sets forth the extent and scope of
the intended taking and Lessor and Lessee have determined that Lessee will be unable to operate
an acute care hospital on the Premises after repair and replacement as provided in Section 15.2,
If either party elects to terminate this Lease, the effective date of termination shall be the later of
(i) the date of termination specified in the notice of election to terminate or (ii) the date of the
condemning authority takes physical possession of the portion of the Premises taken by eminent
domain. On termination of this Lease under this Section, both Lessor and Lessee shall be
released from all obligations to the other under this Lease, except those that accrued prior to such
date or that survive under this Agreement by their terms.

154 Condemnation Award. Except as set forth in Section 15.2, any compensation or
damages awarded or payable becausc of the taking of all or any portion of the Premises by
eminent domain shall be paid to Lessor.

15.5 Rent. If title and possession of only a portion of the Premises is taken under the
power of eminent domain by any public or quasi-public agency of entity during the Lease Term
and Lessee does not or cannot under Section 15.2 terminate this I.ease, then this Lease shall
terminate as to the portion of the Premises taken under eminent domain as of 12:01 AM. on

MO0195025/1866486-2 37



whichever of the following first occurs: the date title is taken, or the date actual physician
possession of the portion taken by eminent domain is taken, by the agency or entity exercising
the eminent domain power; provided, however, that Rent shall not be reduced or abated.

ARTICLE XVI
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASING

16.1 Assignment; Subletting. The parties acknowledge that (a) Lessor originally
created Lessee to lease the Premises and operate the Hospital, (b) Lessor is the sole corporate
member of Lessee, (¢) Rent payable by Lessee hereunder is less than fair market rent, and (d) the
residents of Lessor have approved this Lease and are required under applicable law to approve
any other similar lease. Based upon the above and the unique relationship between Lessor and
Lessee, Lessee shall not assign, sublet or transfer its interest in this Lease or the Premises or any
part or portion thereof, in whole or in part, without Lessor’s prior written consent, which consent
may be withheld in Lessor’s sole and absolute discretion. Lessee acknowledges that the
limitations on assignment and subletting contained in this Article XVI are expressly authorized
by California Civil Code Section 1995.010 et seq., and are fully enforceable. Lessee waives its
rights under California Civil Code Section 1995.310.

16.2 Restricted Transfers. If Lessee enters into or permits or attempts to enter inte or
permit an assignment or sublease in contravention of this Article XVI, Lessor may, at its sole
option, do any or all of the following: (a) void the assignment or subledse and continue the Lease
in effect; (b) declarc Lessee in material and incurable default under Section 19.1 notwithstanding
any cure period specified in Section 19.2; or (c) ratify the assignment or sublease; provided,
however, that before Lessor may invoke or implement any of the remedies listed in this Section
16.2 with respect to any sublease described in the first paragraph of Section 16.3 below for
failure of Lessee to mect the requirements to Section 16.3 with respect to same, Lessor shall give
Lessee written notice of Lessee’s failure to meet such requirements and Lessee shall have ninety
(90) after the date of such notice to cure such failure.

16.3 Ambulatory Services Building. Notwithstanding Section 16.1, if an ASB is
constructed on the Premises as part of the New Improvements or as otherwise permitted
hereunder, Lessee shall be permitted to enter into subleases for office or clinic space in the ASB
to physicians, physician partnerships, physician professional corporations, ancillary services
providers and other related businesses that are permitted uses under this Lease without obtaining
the prior written consent of Lessor, provided that each such sublease meets all of the
requirements set forth in subscctions (2) through (f) below. In addition, Lessee, without
obtaining the prior written consent of Lessor, may sublease the use of space, equipment and/or
staff within the Premises (other than in the ASB) to physicians, physician partnerships, physician
professional corporations on a “block lease” basis as allowed under Healthcare Law, or any
successor law, provided that such “block lease” subleases comply with all of the requirements of
subsections (a)-(f) below and that, at any given time, the aggregate use of the space in the
Premises (other than the ASB) subject to such “block lease” subleases does not exceed ten
percent (10%) of the square footage of the licensed acute care hospital space on the Premises
(other than the ASB) for forty (40) hours per week.

M0195025/1866486-2 38



(a)  The sublease is consistent with the mission, vision, strategy and goals of
Lessee as non-profit acute care hospital, the sublease is subordinate to the Lease, and the
sublessee shall abide and be bound by all of the applicable tcrms of the Lease;

(b)  Except as may otherwise be permitted by applicable law and provided that
any excepiion shall not cause Lessee to not comply with subsection (c) below, the sublease shall
include commercially reasonable terms including fair market rent; and

(c) The sublease would not, and would not be reasonably expected to, result
in or present & materiul risk of any one or more of the following:

@ revocation or threat of revocation of any license, certification or
accreditation granted with respect to Lessec;

(i)  revocation or threat of revocation of the federal, state or local
tax-exempt status of Lessee or its tax-exempt financial obligations;

(iii)  prohibit or restrict the ability of Lessee or Lessor to issue
tax-exempt bonds, certificates of participation or other tax-exempt financial obligations, or cause
the tax-exempt status of payments made thereunder to terminate;

(iv)  with respect to Lessee, violation by Lessee of, or threat of
prosecution of Lessee under Healthcare Law if any subtenant referred patients to Lessee or any
Lessec affiliate or Lessee referred patients to any subtenant or subtenant affiliate;

(v)  withrespect to Lessee, violation by Lessee of, or threat of
prosecution of Lessee under, any Law or Order applicable to Lessee;

(vi)  prohibit Lessee or any Lessee affiliate from submitting claims or
materially reducing the reimbursement received by Lessee or any affiliate for services provided
to patients referred by any subtenant or any subtenant affiliate; or

(vii) subject Lessee or any Lessee affiliate, or any of their respective
officers, directors, employees or agents, to civil action or criminal prosecution by any
governmental authority or other person or the imposition of any sanction (including any excise
tax penalty under Internal Revenue Code Section 4958), on the basis of their approval of or
participation in the sublease or performing their respective obligations under the sublease

Lessec must obtain the prior written consent of the Lessor to any proposed
sublease of space in the ASB that would not meet all of the above requirements, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

16.4 Restrictions on Marketing the Space. Except with respect to subleases of the ASB
or of the other Premises that meet the requirements of Section 16.3 above, Lessee may not
promote, advertise or market any of the Premises without the prior written approval of Lessor,

MO0195025/1866486-2 39



ARTICLE XVII
SURRENDER OF PREMISES
17.1  Surrender of Premises.

(8) - Lessee’s Transfer of the Premises to Iessor Tlpon Termination of Lease.
Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Lessee shall surrender the Premises and all
improvements to Lessor, all of which shall be in good condition and useable, normal wear and
tear excepted, frec and clear of all third pariy rights, interests, encumbrances, liens, mortgages,
decds of trust, and any other security or other interests imposed thereon or to which they are
subject, except for such as have been granted by Lessor or approved by Lessor in writing, No act
of Lessor or its authorized representatives shall constitute Lessor’s acceptance of a surrender or
abandonment of the Premises by Lessee unless that intent is specifically acknowledged in a

writing signed by both partics.

(b)  Lessee’s Transfer of All Business Asseis to Lessor Upon Termination of
Lease. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Section 17.1, upon expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease, Lessee shall surrender, transfer, convey, assign and deliver to Lessor
everything necessary and appropriate for the uninterrupted operation of the Premises, the
Hospital thereon, and all Hospital-affiliated business operations whether on or off the Premises.
Lessee’s obligations under this Section 17.1 shall include the surrender, transfer, conveyance,
assignment, and delivery to Lessor of all of the following:

@) all Hospital Assets and all other real and personal property,
whether tangible or intangible, of Lessee that relate to, are connected with, or are used in
Lessee’s operation of the Hospital on the Premises and all Hospital-affiliated business operations
whether on or off the Premises, including without limitation (A) all inventories, equipment,
furniture, fixtures, machinery, vehicles, office furnishings, and leasehold improvements, all in
good and useable condition, normal wear and tear excepted; and (B) all cash, accounts
receivable, and other non-cash short-term assets, including without limitation all advance
payments, prepayments, prepaid expenses, deposits and the like;

(ii)  subject to Lessor’s written approval, all agreements and contracts
with respect to operation of the Hospital and all Hospital-affiliated business operations whether
on or off the Premises, including without limitation real and personal property leases and
subleases, provider/managed care agreements, and all warranties relating to any of the personal

property;

(iii)  all licenses, approvals, permits, provider numbers, certificates of
need, certificates of exemption, franchises, accreditations and registrations and other
governmental licenses, permits or approvals with respect to the operation of the Hospital and all
Hospital-affiliated business operations whether on or off the Premises; and

(iv)  all documents, records, operating manuals, files and computer
hardware and software with respect to the operation of the Hospital and all Hospital-affiliated
business operations whether on or off the Premises, including, without limitation, all patient

M0195025/1866466-2 40



records and medical records with respect to the operation of the Hospital, payroll and human
resource records, equipment records, construction plans and specifications, and medical and
administrative libraries.

(¢) Meet and Confer Regarding  Agreement to  Implement Traosier
Obligations. Beginning on the earlier to occur of one party’s delivery to the other of a written
termination notice or the date that is five (5) years before the expiration of the Term of the Lease
without the parties having entered into a new lease for the Premiscs, the parties shall meet and
confer and negotiate in good faith and with diligence to enter into an agreement setting forth the
specific terms and conditions for implementing the matiers described in this Section 17.1, all
other matters related to Lessee’s surrender of the Premises and transition of operation of the
Hospital and all Hospital-affiliated business operations whether on or off the Premises to Lessor
or Lessor’s designee, and everything necessary and appropriate for the uninterrupted operation of
the Premises, the Hospital thereon, and all affiliated business operations, including those
described in this Section 17.1. Any such agreement shall include the following:

@) Except if doing so would cause Lessor to violate any law,
regulation, ordinance, or ruling applicable to Lessor, Lessee, the Premises or any of the other
assets, rights and interests required to be conveyed, assigned, delivered or transferred to Lessor
upon Lease termination or expiration in accordance with this Section 17.1, Lessor shall assume
all debts and obligations of Lessee with respect to the Premises, the operation of the Hospital and
all Hospital-affiliated business operations whether on or off the Premises, and any assets, rights,
and interests of Lessee conveyed, assigned, delivered, or transferred to Lessor upon Lease
termination or expiration, except for any debts and obligations that required the approval or
consent of Lessor as provided in this Lease or the Lessee’s Bylaws which approval or consent
was not sought by Lessee or was properly withheld by Lessor. If Lessor’s assumption of any of
Lessee’s debts and obligations would cause Lessor to violate any applicable law, regulation,
ordinance, or ruling, then Lessor and Lessee shall cooperate in good faith and shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to attempt to re-structure or re-finance or otherwise alter or
modify the debt or obligation so that Lessor can assume same without violating any applicable
law, regulation, ordinance, or ruling.

(i)  Except if doing so would cause Lessor to violate any law,
regulation, ordinance, or ruling applicable to Lessor, Lessee, the Premises or any other asset,
right, or interest to bé conveyed, assigned, or transferred to Lessor upon Lease termination or
expiration in accordance with this Section 17.1, Lessor shall accept the conveyance, delivery,
transfer, and assignment of all of Lessee’s assets, rights, and interests conveyed, assigned,
delivered, or transferred to Lessor upon Lease termination or expiration subject to all third-party
rights, interests, encumbrances, liens, mortgages, deeds of trust, and any other security or other
interests imposed thereon or to which they are subject, except for any third-party rights, interests,
encumbrances, liens, mortgages, deeds of trust, and any other security or other interests that
required the approval or consent of Lessor as provided in this Lease or the Lessee’s Bylaws,
which approval or consent was not sought by Lessee or was properly withheld by Lessor. If
Lessor’s acceptance of the conveyance, delivery, transfer and assignment of any of Lessee’s
assets, rights, and interests subject to third-party rights, interests, encumbrances, etc., would
cause Lessor to violate any applicable law, regulation, ordinance, or ruling, then Lessor and
Lessee shall cooperate in good faith and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to attempt to

M0195025/1866486-2 41



re-structure said rights, interests, or encumbrances so that Lessor can accept same without
violating any applicable law, regulation, ordinance, or ruling.

(iii)  If, despite the parties’ efforts pursuent to subsections (i) and (ii)
above, Lessor is unable to assume one or more of Lessce’s debts and nbligations or to accept any
conveyance, delivery, transfer and assignment of one or more of Lessee’s assets, rights, and
interests without violating any applicable law, regulation, ordinance, or ruling, then Lessor may
refus¢ to assume such of Lessec’s debts and obligations and assets, and Lessee shall not be
obligated to assign to Lessor such Hospital Assets or other assets as are ¢ncumbered by such of
Lessee’s debts and obligations, and Lessee shall retain all right, title and interest, and all
obligations and duties, with respect to the same.

(iv)  Lessee shall provide Lessor and its agents and representatives
reasonable access to the Premises and to all of Lessee’s books and records regarding the
Premises and Lessee’s operation of the Hospital for the purpose of Lessor showing same to any
prospective new Lcssee/operator of the Hospital. All such access shall be subject to appropriate
confidentiality agreements/measures.

(d) No Merger. There shall be no merger of this Lease, or of the leasehold
estate created by this Lease, with the fee estate in the Premises by reason of the Lease, the
leasehold estate created hereby, or any interest in this Lease or in the leasehold estate being held,
directly or indirectly, by or for the account of any person or entity that owns the fee estate in the
Premises or any interest therein, and no such merger shall occur unless and until all persons or
entities at that time having an interest in the fee estate in the Premises, and all persons or entities
(including any lender of Lessee) having an interest in this Lease, the Premises, or the leasehold
estate created by this Lease, jointly execute and duly record a written instrument consenting to
and effecting such a merger.

(e) Lessee’s Board. Effective as of the date of termination of the Lease,
Lessor shall have the unilateral right to remove and appoint some or all of the members of
Lessee’s Board of Directors as provided in Lessee’s Bylaws.

17.2 Non-Competition by Lessee. In consideration of Lessor’s performance of its
obligations under the Lease, for a period of five (5) years after expiration or earlier termination
of this Lcase, Lessec shall not, without Lessor’s prior written consent, which Lessor may
withhold, condition, or delay in its sole discretion, either directly or indirectly, carry on or
engage in, either as an owner, part-owner, manager, operator, or other participant, a business or
operation that in any fashion or manner provides health care services within a 25-mile radius of
the geographic boundaries of the Marin Healthcare District.

17.3 Holding Over. Lessee shall pay Lessor for each day Lessee retains possession of
the Premises or any part of them after expiration or termination of this Lease at the Holdover
Rate, and Lessee shall also pay to Lessor all damages reasonably sustained by Lessor by reason
of Lessee’s retention of the Premises. Whether with or without Lessor’s prior written consent,
such holding over shall not constitute renewal of this Leasc notwithstanding acceptance by
Lessor of any sums due hereunder after such expiration or termination; and instead, a tenancy at
sufferance at the Holdover Rate shall be deemed to have been created. In any event, no

MO195025/1866486-2 42



provision of this Section 17.3 shall be deemed to waive Lessor’s right of reentry or any other
right under this Lease or &t law.

17.4 Removal of Lessee Property by Lessec. On expiration or termination, Lessec
shall, without expense to Lessor, remove or cause to be removed from the Premises:

(r) All debris and rubbish;

(b)  Except as otherwise provided by subsection 17.1(b), any items of
furniture, equipment, freestanding cabinet work, and other articles of personal property installed
or placed by Lessce at its expense in the Premises without Lessor’s writien approval and any
similar articles of any other persons claiming under Lessee that Lessor, in Lessor’s sole
discretion, requires to be removed; and

(¢)  Any Alterations that Lessee is required to remove under this Lease.

Lessce shall, at Lessee’s sole expense, repair all damage or injury that may occur
to the Premises or the Hospital caused by Lessee’s removal of those items.

17.5 Transition Committee. Five (5) years prior to the expiration of the Lease,
representatives of Lessor and Lessee shall form a committee consisting of four members (or such
other number as the Lessor and Lessee shall agree) consisting of two members designated by
Lessor and two members designated by Lessee, for the purpose of mecting regularly to discuss
entering into a new lease or planning for the transition of Hospital Assets and operations to
Lessor or its designee, as the partics shall agree, or if they do not agree, as Lessor shall
determine. The parties shall cooperate with and provide each other with all reasonable requested
information and resources in connection with such activities.

ARTICLE XVIII
ESTOPPEL, SUBORDINATIONS, EASEMENTS AND LENDER PROTECTIONS

18.1 Estoppel Certificate. Each party shall, within ten (10) days after receipt of a
written request from the other party, execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other party an
Estoppel Certificate. The certificate shall contain any other information reasonably requested by
Lessor or any existing or prospective lender, mortgagee, or purchaser of either party. Such ten
(10) day period shall not be extended for any negotiations of the form of Estoppel Certificate. If
a party fails to deliver such Estoppel Certificate within such ten (10) days after request, then the
requesting party may conclusively presume and rely upon the fact (a) that the terms and
provisions of this Lease have not been changed except as otherwise represented by the requesting
party; (b) that this Lease has not been canceled or terminated except as otherwise represented by
the requesting party; (c) that not more than one installment of Rent has been paid in advance; (d)
that neither party is in default under this Lease; and (e) that the other facts set forth in the
Estoppel Certificate provided to the non-requesting party are true and correct. If a party fails to
timely deliver an Estoppel Certificate, such party irrevocably appoints the requesting party as its
attorney-in-fact to execute and deliver the Estoppel Certificate to any third party. Except for the

MQ195025/1866486-2 43



disclosures allowed under the preceding sentence, Lessor shall protect such information from
disclosure to any third party to the maximum extent allowed under applicable law, including
under the California Public Records Act; provided, however, that if such protection involves
pariicipation in any litigation or other proceeding, it shall be at Lessee’s cost.

18,2 Additional Requested Documents or Instruments. Within ten (10) days after &
written request by Lessor, Lessee shall exccute and deliver whatever other documents or
instruments may be reasonably required for sale or financing purposcs, including (if requested by
Lessor) a current financial statement and financial statements for the three (3) ycars preceding
the current financial statement year. Those statements shall be prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and shall be audited by an independent certified public
accountant. Lessor’s disclosure of such information shall be limited to its advisors, prospective
purchasers and lenders who shall be subject to customary confidentiality restrictions.

18.3  Priority/Subordination. Lessor represents and warrants that Lessee, while paying
the Rent and performing its other covenants and agreements contained in this Lease, shall
peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Premises for the Term without hindrance or
molestation from Lessor, subject to the terms and provisions of this Lease and any Indenture.
Lessor shall not be liable for any interference or disturbance by third persons, nor shall Lessee be
released from any of the obligations of this Lease because of such interference or disturbance.
This Lease, which for the purposes of this Section 18.3 includes any future amendment to this
Lease, shall be subordinate to a Superior Interest. Notwithstanding any such subordination,
Lessee’s right to quiet possession of the Premises during the Term shall not be disturbed if
Lessee pays the Rent and performs all of Lessee’s other obligations under this Lease as and when
required and is not otherwise in default. If any Holder elects to have this Lease prior to its
Superior Interest and gives written notice thereof to Lessee, this Lease shall be deemed prior to
such Superior Interest whether this Lease is dated prior or subsequent to the date of said Superior
Interest or the date of recording thereof, This subordination is self-operative, and no further
instrument of subordination shall be required to make it effective. Notwithstanding the
foregoing self-executing subordination and non-disturbance, Lessee shall, within ten (10) days
after receipt of written request, execute, acknowledge and deliver to Lessor and its current and
prospective Holders, a Subordination Agrecment in a form reasonably requested by Lessor or
any current or prospective Holder, provided that such document provides that so long as a default
under this Lease has not occurred with respect to Lessee, such Holder shall grant Lessee non-
disturbance and recognize Lessee’s rights under this Lease in a manner that does not take away
any of Lessee’s rights or adds to any of Lessee’s obligations under this Lease. Such ten (10) day
period shall not be extended for any negotiations of the form of such Subordination Agreement.
Lessee irrevocably appoints Lessor as Lessee’s agent to execute and deliver in the name of
Lessee any such instrument(s) if Lessee fails to do so. This authorization shall in no way relieve
Lessee of the obligation to execute such instrument(s) of subordination or superiority. Lessee’s
failure to execute and deliver such instrument(s) in the required time shall constitute a material
breach under this Lease.

18.4 Attornment. Lessee covenants and agrees to attorn to the transferee of Lessor’s
interest in the Property by foreclosure, deed in lieu of foreclosure, exercise of any remedy
provided in any encumbrance or underlying lease, or operation of law (without any deductions or

M0195025/1866486-2 44



setoffs), if requested to do so by the transferee, and io recognize the transferee as the Lessor
under this Lease. The transferce shall not be liable for:

(a) Any acts, omissions, or defaults of Lessor that occurred before the sale or
conveyance; or

(b)  The reiurn of any security deposit except for deposits actually paid to the
transferee.

18.5 Lasements, Restrictions. Lessee and Lessor acknowledge and agree that the
Premises are subject to any and all easements, licenses and rights of way in place as of the
Efiective Date of this Lease.

(a) County Easements. Lessee and Lessor acknowliedge and agree that the
Premises are subject to the County Easements shown on Exhibit A to this Lease. Lessee also
acknowledges that, pursuant to the terms of the County Easements, Lessor and the County may
agree to rclocate the County Easements as is necessary or appropriaic in light of the New
Improvements on the Premises. Lessor and Lessee shall consult in good faith wiih respect to the
relocation of any of the County Easements, but Lessor shall have the final authority to agree with
the County with respect to such relocation.

(b)  Easements Related to New Improvements. Lessee acknowledges and
agrees that Lessor may have to grant or create new or additional temporary or permanent
casements, licenses, or rights of way, or to relocate, either temporarily or permanently, existing
easements, licenses, or rights of way, in connection with the development and construction of the
New Improvements or any other future improvements or Alterations. Lessor and Lessee shall
consult in good faith with respect to the location, relocation and scope of any new or additional
temporary or permanent easements, licenses, or rights of way, or the relocation of existing
easements, licenses, or rights of way, but Lessor shall have the final authority to grant or create
same; provided, however, that Lessor shall provide its reasonable consent to such of the
foregoing as arc necessary to further and/or support the installation of the New Improvements.

18.6  Lessee Lender Protections.

(8  No Amendment Without Lender Approval. If a Lessor or Lessee lender
written consent is required under an Indenture to any amendment to this Lease, Lessor and
Lessee shall not amend or modify this Lease without the prior written consent of such lendeér(s).

(b)  Use of Insurance/Condemnation Proceeds.  Notwithstanding any other
provisions of this Lease, any condemnation award related to any collateral pledged to any lender
of Lessee or Lessor shall be applied as required under any Indenture to which Lessee or Lessor is
a party, and any insurance proceeds shall be applied as required under any Indeniure and any
financing and loan agreements to which Lessce or Lessor is a party.

(c) No Effect on Lender’s Liens/Collateral. Lessor shall have no interest in
any iinancing or loan proceeds provided to Lessee by any lender of Lessee and Lessor expressly
acknowledges and agrees that any such proceeds are not for the Lessor’s benefit. No default
under or termination of this Lease, nor the leasing or subleasing of the Premises as may be

MO0195025/1866486-2 45



allowed under the remedies provisions of this Lease, shall render invalid or otherwise adversely
effect the lien of any lender of Lessee in Lessee’s assets.

18.7 Notice of Default; Right to Cure. Lessee agrees fo give written notice of any
default by Lessor to the Holder of any Superior Interest, provided that such Holder has notified
Lessee of its desire to receive notices of default or breach. Each such notice shall specify in
detail the alleged breach or default. Lessee agrecs that, before it exercises any rights or remedies
under the Lease, the lienholder shall have the right, but not the obligation, to cure the default
within the same time, if any, given to Lessor to cure the default, plus an additional thirty (30)
days. Lessec agrees thai this cure period shall be extended by the time necessary for the
lienholder to begin foreclosure proceedings and to obtain possession of the Property or Premises,
as applicable.

ARTICLE XIX

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

19.1 Events of Default. Each of the following events shall be a default by Lessee and a
breach of this Agreement:

(a)  Abandonment or surrender of the Premises or of the leasehold estate, or
failure or refusal to pay when duc any installment of Rent or other sum required by this Lease to
be paid by Lessee, or failure to perform any other covenant or condition of this Lease, including,
without limitation, the covenant regarding assignment of this Lease or subletting of the Premises,
or the failure to comply with any other agreement entered into between Lessor and Lessee, now
or in the future,

(b) The subjection of any right or interest of Lessee to attachment, execution,
or other levy, or to seizure under legal process, if not released within thirty (30) days.

(c) The appointment of a receiver to take possession of the Premises,
improvements or Hospital Assets, or of Lessee’s interest in the leaschold estate or of Lessee’s
operations on the Premise for any reason.

(d  An assignment by Lessce for the benefit of creditors or the filing of a
voluntary or involuntary petition by or against Lessee under any law for the purpose of (i)
adjudicating Lessee a bankrupt, (i) extending time for payment, adjustment or satisfaction of
Lessee’s liability, or (iii) reorganization, dissolution, or arrangement on account of or to prevent
bankruptcy or insolvency; unless the assignment or proceeding, and all consequent orders,
adjudications, custodies, and supervisions are dismissed, vacated, or otherwise permanently
stayed or terminated within thirty (30) days after the assignment, filing, or other initial event.

19.2 Notice and Right to Cure. As a condition to pursuing any remedy for alleged
breach or default of Lessee, Lessor shall give written notice of default to Lessee and to any
trustee or lender under or pursuant to any Indenture (as defined in Section 19.8 of this Lease),
provided that such trustee or lender has notified Lessor of its desire to receive notices of default
or breach. Each such notice shall specify in detail the alleged breach or default.

MO195025/1866486-2 46



19.3  Lessee’s Right to Cure. If the alleged default is nonpayment of Rent, taxes, or
other sums to be paid by Lessee as provided herein, Lessee shall have fifteen (15) days after
notice is given to cure the default. For the cure of any other default, Lessee shall promptly and
diligently afier notice commence curing the default and shall have a reasonable period of time, in
light of the circumstances, to complete the cure. Any trustee or lender entitled to receive a notice
of default pursuant to Section 19.2 of this Leasc shall be entitled, directly or through a third party
appointed by said trustee or lender, to curc any event of default or breach by Lessee hereunder,
and Lessor shall accept such performance and cure as if done by Lessee, provided that such cure
is completed within the applicable time period specified in this Section 19.3. With respect to any
such default or breach that can be cured by the payment of moncy, any trustee or lender shall
have an additional thirty (30) days beyond any notice and cure period applicable to Lessee. With
respect to any such default or breach that cannot be cured by the payment of money, any trustee
or lender shall have sixty (60) days after such trustee or lender obtains possession of the property
that is the subject of such default or breach to cure same, provided that such lender or trustee
uses commercially reasonable and diligent efforts to obtain possession of such property.

19.4 Replacement of Statutory Notice Requirements. When this Lease requires service
of a notice, that notice shall replace rather than supplement any equivalent or similar statutory
notice, including any notices required by California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1161 or any
similar or successor statute. When a statute requires service of a notice in a particular manner,
service of that notice (or a similar notice required by this Lease) in the manner required by
Section 25.12 shall replace and satisfy the statutory service-of-notice procedures, including those
required by California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1162 or any similar or successor statute.

19.5 Lessor’'s Remedies on Lessec’s Default. On the occurrence of a default by Lessee,
Lessor shall have the right to pursue any one or more of the following remedies in addition to
any other remedies now or later available to Lessor at law or in equity. These remedies are not
exclusive but are instead cumulative.

(a)  Termination. Lessor may, at its election, terminate this Lease by giving
Lessee written notice of Lessor’s election to terminate. Said notice shall specify the Termination
Date, which date shall not be less than six (6) months after the date of Lessor’s written notice
unless otherwise approved in writing by Lessee’s lenders under any Indentures.. Upon the
Termination Date, all of Lessee’s rights in and to the Premises and improvements shall
terminate. By no later than the Termination Date, Lessee shall have surrendered and vacated the
Premises, and performed all of Lessee’s termination-related obligations set forth in this Lease,
including without limitation those set forth in Article XVIIL. Termination under this subsection
shall not relieve Lessee from the payment of any sum then due to Lessor or from any claim for
damages previously accrued or then accruing against Lessee. Lessor may exercise its right
hereunder of Lease termination only if, prior to the Termination Date, Lessor shall have
complied with any requircments under any Indenture with respect to the security for any of
Lessee’s obligations under such Indenture and Lessor has assumed Lessee’s obligations under
such Indenture and accepted Lessee’s assets subject to the security interests granted under such
Indenture, as provided in Article XVII. Lessor’s obligations in the preceding sentence may
include, without limitation, pledging in writing all of the revenues from the operation of the
Premises as security for the payment of all of Lessee’s obligations under any Indenture if and
only to the extent that Lessee was required to grant such a pledge under such Indenture. If

MO195025/1866486-2 47



required by and only to the extent required by any Indenture, Lessor covenants and agrees not to
create a security interest in, or to pledge, the revenues received from the operation of the
Premises to the repayment of indebtedness or otherwise, unless all indebtedness issucd under any
Indenture shall be secured on a prior or parity basis. If required by any Indenture, after
termination of the Lease and until the earlier of the L.ease Expiration Date or final payment of all
of Lessee’s obligaiions under any Indenture, Lessor shall operate the Hospital as a revenue-
producing nonprofit community health care facility. Except as limited by applicable law,
nothing herein shall limit the amounts Lessor may recover from Lessee hercunder.

(b)  Entry/Re-Letting. Lessor may at Lessor’s election enter the Premises,
and, without terminating this Lease, at any time and from time to time re-let the Premises and
improvements or any part of them for the account and in the name of Lessee or otherwise.
Lessor may at Lessor’s election eject all persons or eject some and not others or eject none.
Lessor shall apply all rents from re-letting as provided in subsection () below. Any re-letting
may be done for the remainder of the Term or for a shorter period. Lessor may execute any
leases made under this provision either in Lessor’s name or in Lessee’s name, and shall be
entitled to all rents from the use, operation, or occupancy of the Premises and improvements.
Lessee shall nevertheless pay to Lessor on the due dates specified in this Lease the equivalent of
all sums required of Lessee under this Lease, plus Lessor’s expenses, less the rent Lessor
receives from any re-letting. No act by or on behalf of Lessor under this provision shall
constitute the termination of this Lease unless Lessor gives Lessee notice of termination.

(c) Right to Rent. Lessor shall be entitled at Lessor’s election to each
installment of Rent or to any combination of installments for any period before termination, plus
interest thereon at the maximum rate permitted by applicable law. Rents received from re-letting
or attorned sub-rents shall be applied, when received, as follows:

@) To Lessor to the extent that such rents and subrents for the period
covered do not exceed the amount due from and charges to Lessee for the same period, and

(i)  The balance to Lessee.

The foregoing notwithstanding, the order of application of all rents collected by
Lessor from re-letting shall be subordinate to the payment of debt service with respect to any
obligations issued by or on behalf of Lessee under any Indenture. Any re-letting of the Premises
pursuant to this Section 19.5(d) shall be (i) to sublessees whose operation of the Premises would
not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the
interest payable on any obligations issued by or on behalf of Lessee under any Indenture, and (ii)
for rents equal to the lesser of fair market value rents or amounts sufficient to satisfy Lessec’s
debt service obligations relative to any Indenture.

(d) Damages. Lessor shall be entitled at Lessor’s election to damages in the
following sums:

i) The worth at the time of the award of any unpaid Rent that had
been earned at the time of the termination, to be computed by allowing interest at the rate set

M0195025/1866486-2 48



forth in Section 21.2 but in no case greater than the maximum amount of intercst permitted by
law;

(ii)  The worth at the time of the award of the amount by which the
unpaid Rent that would have been earned betwcen the time of the termination and the time of the
award exceeds the amount of unpaid Rent that Tenant proves could rcasonably have been
avoided, to be computed by allowing interest at the rate set forth in Section 21.2 but in no case
greater than the maximum amount of interest permitted by law;

(iii) The worth at the time of the award of the amount by which the
unpaid Rent for the balance of the Lease Term afler the time of the award exceeds the amount of
unpaid Rent that Tenant proves could reasonably have been avoided, to be computed by
discounting that amount at the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Baok of San Francisco at the
time of the award plus one percent (1%);

(iv)  Any other amount necessary to compensate Landlord for all the
detriment proximately caused by Tenant’s failure to perform obligations under this Lease,
including, without limitation, brokerage commissions and advertising expenscs, expenses of
remodeling the Premises for a new tenant (whether for the same or a different use), and any
special concessions made to obtain a new tenant; and

(v)  Any other amounts, in addition to or in lieu of those listed above,
that may be permitted by applicable law.

(e)  Assignment of Sub-Rents. Lessee assigns to Lessor all sub-rents and other
sums falling due from the tenants, licensees and concessionaires (referred to as “subtenants”)
during any period in which Lessor has the right under this Lease, whether exercised or not, to
enter the Premises becausc of Lessce’s default, and Lessee shall not have any right to such sums
during that period. This assignment is subject and subordinate to any and all assignments of the
same sub-rents and other sums made to a mortgagee or lender under any Indenture before the
default in question. Lessor may, at Lessor’s election, enter the Premises and improvements, with
or without process of law, without terminating this Lease, and either collect those sums or bring
action for the recovery of the sums directly from such obligors, or both. Lessor shall receive and
collect all sub-rents and apply them in the following order of priority:

® Payment of reasonable expenses (including attorneys’ fees and
broker’s commissions) paid or incurred by Lessor in recovering possession, placing the Premises
and improvements in good condition, and preparing or altering the Premises or improvements for

re-letting;
(ii)  Reasonable expenses of securing new lessees;
(iii)  Rent and other amounts currently due Lessor by Lessee;
(iv)  Fulfillment of Lessee’s covenants at the end of the Term,;

(v)  Future installments of Rent and other amounts due Lessor by
Lessee.

M0195025/1866486-2 49



Lessee shall, nevertheless, pay to Lessor on the due dates specified in this Lease,
the equivalent of all sums required of Lessec under this Lease, plus Lessor's expenses, less the
sums assigned and actually collected under this provision. Lessor may proceed to collect either
the assigned sums or Lessec’s balances or both, or any installment of them, either before or after
expiration of the Term, but the applicable statute of limitations shall not begin to run on Lessee’s
payments until the due date of the final installment to which Lessor is entitled, nor shall it begin
to run on the payments of the unassigned sums until the due date of the final installment due
from the respective obligors. The foregoing notwithstanding, if required by the terms of an
Indenture the order of application of all rents collected by Lessor from re-letting shall be
subordinate to the payment of debt service with respect to any indebtedness of Lessee relative to
any Indenture.

(B Appointment of Hospital Operator. Lessor may at its election, without
terminating the Lease, appoint a Hospital Operator. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Lease, Lessor shall not, however, appoint any person or entity whose appointment would
adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest
payable on any obligations issued by or on behalf of Lessee under any Indenture. Lessor may
execute any such management contract in Lessee’s name, The Hospital Operator shall operate
the Premises and the Hospital in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Lease and any
Indenture. The management contract may continue for the duration of the term of this Lease or
such lesser or greater term as Lessor and the Hospital Operator shall agree. If the management
contract terminates prior to the termination of this Lease, Lessor may renew the management
contract, appoint a new Hospital Operator, or exercise any other remedy Lessor was entitled to
exercise when the initial Hospital Operator was appointed. The third party appointed as the
Hospital Operator may be any person or entity Lessor determines, in its sole discretion, will best
be able to operate the Premises as an acute care hospital for the benefit of the communities
served by Lessor. The Hospital Operator may be a corporation or other entity on which some or
all of Lessor’s directors serve as officers or directors. Lessor’s exercise of its remedy under this
Section 19.5(g) shall not in any way relieve Lessee of any of its obligations under this Lease and
Lessee shall pay to Lessor when duc all sums requiréd of Lessee hereunder, plus Lessor’s
expenses of exercising its remedy under this Section 19.5(g). Upon exercise of the foregoing
remedy, Lessor may eject Lessee and all other persons on the Premises or eject some and not
others or eject none. Lessee shall execute such documents and perform such other acts as Lessor
shall deem reasonably necessary to permit the Hospital Operator to operate the Hospital
hereunder and to confer upon Lessor all of the rights, remedies and benefits contemplated by this
provision. The Hospital Operator shall be entitled to operate the Hospital and use and encumber
the Hospital Assets as if it were Lessee hereunder, subject to any restrictions contained herein
and in any management contract or Indenture. The Hospital Operator shall collect all revenues
from the operation of the Hospital and apply them to Lessee’s obligations as follows: first, to the
payment of debt service with respect to any indebtedness of Lessee related to an Indenture as
required by the terms of the Indenture; second, to the expenses of operating the Hospital; third, to
the payment of Lessor’s expenses in exercising its remedies under this Lease; fourth, to the
payment of Rent on the dates such Rent becomes due and payable hereunder and payment of any
other sums owing from Lessee to Lessor; and fifth, the remainder, if any, to Lessee. No act by or
on behalf of Lessor under this provision shall constitute a termination of this Lease.

MO0195025/1866486-2 50



19.6  Acceptance of Rent Without Waiving Rights. Under Article XXII, Lessor may
accept Lessee’s payments without waiving any rights under this Lease, including rights under a
previously served notice of default. If Lessor accepts payments after serving a notice of default,
Lessor may nevertheless commence and pursue an action to enforce rights and remedies under
the previously served notice of default.

19.7 Lessee’s Remedies on Lessor’s Default. Lessee waives any right to terminzte this
Lease and to vacate the Premises on Lessor’s default under this Lease. Lessec’s sole remedy on
Lessor’s default is an action for damages or injunctive or declaratory relief.

19.8 Indenture. Lessee shall not incur any indebtedness in connection with any
Indenture or otherwise enter info any Indenture from the Lease Date through the term of this
Lease, without Lessor’s prior written consent. At any time prior to the date that is five (5) years
before the expiration date of the Lease, Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold, condition or
delay such consent. Commencing on the date that is five (5) years prior to the expiration of this
Lease, Lessor may withhold, delay or condition its consent in its sole discretion,

19.9 No Waiver of Remedies. The election of one remedy for any one item shall not
foreclose an election of any other remedy for another item, or for the same item at a later time.

ARTICLE XX
LESSOR’S RIGHT TO PERFORM LESSEE’S OBLIGATIONS

20.1 Lessor’s Right to Perform Lessee’s Obligations. All obligations to be performed
by Lessee under this Lease shall be performed by Lessee at Lessee’s expense and without any
reduction of Rent, If Lessee’s failure to perform an obligation continues for fifteen (15) business
days after notice to Lessee, Lessor may perform the obligation on Lessee’s behalf, without
waiving Lessor’s rights for Lessee’s failure to perform any obligations under this Lease and
without releasing Lessee from such obligations. If Lessee’s failure to perform an obligation
under Section 10.8 above requires a longer period of time to cure or perform, Lessec shall have a
reasonable period of time, in light of the circumstances, to complete the cure or perform such
obligation provided Lessee promptly and diligently commences such cure or performance.

20.2 Rcimbursement by Lessee. Within fifteen (15) days after receiving a statement
from Lessor, Lessee shall pay to Lessor the amount of expense reasonably incurred by Lessor in
performing Lessee’s obligation as determined by Lessor.

ARTICLE XXI
LATE PAYMENTS

21.1 Late Charges. If any Rent payment is not received by Lessor or Lessor’s designee
within five (5) days afier that Rent is due, Lessee shall pay to Lessor a late charge of two
hundred fifty dollars ($250) as liquidated damages, in lieu of actual damages (other than interest
under Section 21,2 and attorney fees and costs under Section 24.1). Lessec shall pay this amount
for each calendar month in which all or any part of any Rent payment remains delinquent for
more than five (5) days after the due date. The parties agree that this late charge represents a

M0195026/1666486-2 51



reasonable estimate of the expenses that Lessor will incur because of any latc payment of Rent
(other than interest and attorney fees and costs). Lessor’s acceptance of any liquidated damages
shall not constitute a waiver of Lessee’s default with respect to the overdue amount or prevent
Lessor from exercising any of the rights and remedies available to Lessor under this Lease.
Lessee shall pay the late charge as additional Rent with the next installment of Rent.

21.2 Interest. If any Rent payment is not received by Lessor or Lessor’s designee
within five (5) days after that Rent is due, Lessee shall pay to Lessor interest on the past-due
amount, from the datc due until paid, at the rate of ten percent (10%) per year. Despite any other
provision of this Lease, the total liability for interest payments shall not exceed the limits, if any,
imposed by the usury laws of the State of California. Any interest paid in excess of those limits
shall be refundcd to Lessee by application of the amount of excess interest paid against any sums
outstanding in any order that Lessor requires. If the amount of excess interest paid exceeds the
sums outstanding, the portion exceeding those sums shall be refunded in cash to Lessce by
Lessor, To ascertain whether any interest payable exceeds the limits imposed, any nonprincipal
payment (including late charges) shall be considered to the extent permitted by law to be an
expense or a fee, premium, or penalty rather than interest.

ARTICLE XXII

NONWAIVER

22.1 Nonwaiver. No waiver of any provision of this Lease shall be implied by any
failure of Lessor to enforce any remedy for the violation of that provision, even if that violation
continues or is repeated. Any waiver by Lessor of any provision of this Lease must be in writing. -
Such written waiver shall affect only the provision specified and only for the time and in the
manner stated in the writing.

222 Acceplance and Application of Payment; Not Accord and Satisfaction. No receipt
by Lessor of a lesser payment than the Rent required under this Lease shall be considered to be
other than on account of the earliest amount due, and no endorsement or statement on any check
or letter accompanying a payment or check shall be considered an accord and satisfaction. Lessor
may accept checks or payments without prejudice to Lessor’s right to recover all amounts due
and pursue all other remedies provided for in this Lease.

Lessor’s receipt of monies from Lessee after giving notice to Lessee terminating this
Lease shall in no way rcinstate, continue, or extend the Lease Term or affect the Termination
Notice given by Lessor before the receipt of those monies. After serving notice terminating this
Lease, filing an action, or obtaining final judgment for possession of the Premises, Lessor may
receive and collect any Rent due, and the payment of that Rent shall not waive or affect such
prior notice, action, or judgment.

M0195025/1866486-2 52



ARTICLE XXIII
DISPUTE RESOLUTION
23.1 Dispute Resolution. The parties shall use their best good faith efforts to resolve

disputes quickly and in an informal, professional and business-like manner, If the parties are
unable to resolve quickly any dispute, the parties shall comply with the following procedures:

23.2 Mecet and Confer. The parties agree Meet and Confer, as a condition precedent to
the mediation and arbitration provisions of Sections 23.3 and 23.4, Any ambiguity or
uncerfainty as to whether a dispuic is subject to the procedures set forth in this Article XXIII
shall be resolved in favor of the application of these provisions. The Initiating Party of the Meet
and Confer procedures shall give written notice to the other party, describing in general terms the
nature of the dispute, the Initiating Party’s position and summary of the evidence and arguments
supporting its position and identifying one or more Authorized Individuals.

The Responding Party shall have ten (10) business days within which to respond. The
response shall be in writing, shall include the Responding Party’s position, a summary of the
¢vidence and arguments supporting its position and shall also identify one or more Authorized
Individuals with authority to settle the dispute on such party’s behalf. The Authorized
Individuals for the parties shall meet at a mutually acceptable time and place within thirty (30)
days of the Initiating Party’s notice and thereafter as often as they deem reasonably necessary to
exchange relevant information and to attempt to resolve the dispute. If the matter has not been
resolved within sixty (60) days of the Initiating Party’s notice, or if the Responding Party fails to
timely provide its written response or will not meet within thirty (30) days, the parties shall
submit the dispute to mediation in accordance with Section 23.3 and shall give the other party
written notice that the matter is being submitted to mediation. All deadlines specified in this
Meet and Confer provision may be extended by mutual agreement.

23.3 Mediation. Within ten (10) business days of the notice of submission to
mediation, the parties shall agree upon a mediator. If the parties are unable to agrec, a mediator
shall be appointed by the JAMS, San Francisco office. In consultation with the mediator
selected, the parties shall promptly designate a mutually convenient time and place for the
mediation, such time to be no later than thirty (30) days after selection of the mediator. At the
mediation, each party shall be represented by persons with authority to negotiate a resolution of
the dispute and may be represented by counsel. The mediator shall determine the format for the
meetings. The mediation session shall be private. The fees and expenses of the mediator shall
be borne equally by the parties. The entire mediation process shall be confidential and the
privileges and protection of Evidence Code Sections 1115 through 1128 shall apply. Prior to
commencement of mediation, if requested by either party or mediator, the parties and the
mediator shall execute a written confidentiality agreement. If, as the result of mediation, a
voluntary settlement is reached and the parties agree that such settlement shall be reduced to
writing, the mediator shall be deemed appointed and constituted an arbitrator for the sole purposc
of signing the mediated settlement agreement. Such agreement shall be, and have the same force
and effect as, an arbitration award and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with
applicable law in any court in Marin County, California.

M0185025/1866486-2 53



23.4  Arbitration. If the parties cannot resolve a dispute after exhaustion of the Meet
and Confer and the mediation procedures as set forth above, they shall submit it to binding
arbitration in accordance with the then prevailing rules of JAMS and judgment upon the award
rendered may be entered and enforced in any court of competent jurisdiction in Marin County,
California. The arbitrator shall be knowledgeable in and familiar with health care delivery
systems and managed care, shall have jurisdiction to resolve disputes only in accordance with the
provisions and limitations of this Agreement, shall follow California and federal substantive
rules of law to the extent applicable and not inconsistent with this Agreement, shall require the
{estimony be transcribed at the request of any party, and shall render a decision in writing
accompanied by finding of facts and a statement of reasons for the decision. The decision of the
arbitrator shall be final and non-appealable. The place of arbitration shall be Marin County,
California, or such other location as the partics shall agrec.

23.5 Provisional Remedies; Survival. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 23.4,
each party shall have the right to seek provisional remedies from a court of competent
jurisdiction in Marin County, California, in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure Section
1281.8. The provisions of this Section 23 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXIV
ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS

24.1 Attorney Fees and Costs. If either party undertakes litigation or arbitration
against the other party arising out of or in connection with this Lease, the prevailing party shall
be entitled to recover from the other party attorney fees, expert witness fees, arbitration costs,
court costs and other costs incurred as a result of such claim or contest. The prevailing party shall
be determined under California Civil Code Section 1717(b)(1) or any successor statute.

ARTICLE XXV

MISCELLLANEOUS

25.1 Captions. The captions of articles and sections and the table of contents of this
Lease are for convenience only and have no effect on the interpretation of the provisions of this
Lease.

252 Word Usage. Unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

(a) The plural and singular numbers shall each be considered to include the
other;

(b) The masculine, feminine, and neuter genders shall each be considered to
include the others;

(c) “Shall,” “will,” “must,” “agrees,” and “covenants” are each mandatory;

(d) “May” is permissive;

MO195025/1866486-2 54



(e) “Or” is not exclusive; and
43) “Includes” and “including” are not limiting,

253 Counting Days. Days shall be counted by excluding the first day and including
the last day. If the last day is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday as described in California
Government Code Section 6700-6701, it shall be excluded. Any act required by this Lease to be
performed by a certain day shall be timely performed if compleied before 5 p.m. local time on
that date. If the day for performance of any obligation undcr this Lease is a Saturday, Sunday, or
legal holiday, the time for performance of that obligation shall be extended to 5 p.m. local time
on the first following date that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. Unless otherwise
expressly provided in this Lease, all periods of time referenced in this Lease shall include all
calendar days. For purposes of this Lease, the term “business day” shall mean any calendar day
other than a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday as described in California Government Code
Section 6700-6701.

25.4 Entirc_Agreement. This Lease and all exhibits, addenda, schiedules, and
agreements referred to in this Lease, and all amendments thereof, constitute the final, complete,
and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement between Lessor and Lessee pertaining to
Lessee’s lease of the Premises and supersede all prior and contemporaneous understandings or
agreements of the parties. Neither party has been induced to enter into this Lease by, and neither
party is relying on, any understanding, agrcement, representation, or warranty outside those
expressly set forth in this Lease.

25.5 Exhibits. The attached exhibits, togéther with all documents incorporated by
reference in the exhibits, form an integral part of this Lease and are incorporated herein wherever
reference is made to them to the same extent as if they were set out in full at the point at which

such reference is made.

25.6 Amendments. No amendment or modification of this Lease, and no approvals,
consents or waivers by Lessor or Lessee under this Lease, shall be valid and binding unless in
writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby. The parties shall have the maximum
authority allowed under California Health and Safety Code Section 32121(p) to amend this
Lease without any additional approval of the voters of Lessor, which authority shall include,
without limitation:

(a) Subject to the approval of any lender or bond issuer with respect thereto,
any amendment needed to meet the reduirements of any Indenture entered into by Lessee and
approved by Lessor;

(b)  Any amendment that corrects technical, typographical or other minor
errors in this Lease;

(c) Any amendment required by any lender of Lessor; provided that such
amendment does not increase any of Lessee’s costs or expenses hereunder or does not materially
or adversely modify Lessee’s rights and obligations hereunder; and

M0195025/1866486-2 55



(&) Any amendment that does not materially increase the costs or liabilities of,
or reduce the payments or benefits to, Lessor, or modifies the uses of the Premises, or decreases
or modifies the time periods provided for, or the rights of review or approval of, Lessor.

25.7 Invalidity. If any one or more of the provisions of the Lease shall be invalid,
illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining
provisions of this Lease shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. To the extent
permitted by applicable law, each party to this Leasc waives any provision of law that renders
any provision of this Lease invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect. If any provision of
this Lease shall be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the parties shall use all reasonable
efforts to substitute a valid, legal and enforceable provision that implements the purposes and
intent of this Lease.

25.8 Binding Effect. Subject to Article XVI and Sections 25.17-25.18, this Lease shall
bind and benefit the partics to this Lease and their legal representatives and successors in
interest.

25.9 Independent Covenants. This Lease shall be construed as though the covenants
between Lessor and Lessee are independent and not dependent. Lessee expressly waives the
benefit of any statute to the contrary and agrees that if Lessor fails to perform its obligations
under this Lease, Lessee shall not be entitled:

(a) To make any repairs or perform any acts at Lessor’s expense; or

(b) - To any setoff of the Rent or other amounts owing under this Lease against
Lessor.

The foregoing, however, shall in no way impair Lessee’s right to bring a separate action
against Lessor for any violation by Lessor of the provisions of this Lease if notice is first given to
Lessor and any lender of whose address Lessee has been notified, and an opportunity is granted
to Lessor and that lender to correct those violations as provided in Section 18.7.

25.10 Governing Law. This Lease shall be construed and enforced in accordance with
the laws of the State of California.

25.11 Merger. The voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Lessee and acceptance
by Lessor, the mutual cancellation of this Lease, or the termination of this Lease as a result of a
default by Lessee, will not effect a merger and will, at Lessor’s sole option on delivery of written
notice to Lessee and any sublessees actually known to Lessor within ninety (90) days after such
surtender or cancellation, terminate all existing subleases or subtenancies or operate as an
assignment to Lessor of any or all subleases or subtenancies.

25.12 Notices. All notices or other communication provided for under this Lease shall
be in writing, shall be effective upon receipt or refusal to accept delivery, and shall be
(a) delivered personally, (b) sent by registered or certified mail, return reccipt requested, postage
prepaid, or by private overnight courier service, addressed to the person to receive such notice or
communication at the following address, or (c) sent by facsimile transmission to the phone
number listed below with a copy of such notice concurrently sent by the method set forth in the

MO195025/1868486-2 56



preceding clause (b). The address of any party for purposes of notices shall be the address set
forth below; provided that any party may change its address by giving notice to the other parties
hereto in accordance herewith.

Notice to Lessee must be addressed as follows;

Marin General Hospital
Attn.; Board Chair

250 Bon Air

Greenbrae, CA 94904
Facsimile: (415) 925-7933

Notice to Lessor must be addressed as follows:

Marin Healthcare District

Attn.: Board Chair

100B Drakes Landing Road, Suite 250
Greenbrae, CA 94904

Facsimile: (415) 464-2090

If Lessee is notified of the identity and address of Lessor’s lender or ground or underlying
Lessor, Lessee shall give to that lender or ground or underlying Lessor writien notice of any
default by Lessor under the terms of this Lease.

25.13 Force Majeure, If Lessor or Lessee cannot perform any of its obligations under
this Lease, other than Lessee’s obligation to pay Rent, due to events beyond its control, the time
provided for performing such obligations shall be extended by a period of time equal to the
duration of such events. Events beyond Lessee’s and Lessor’s control include acts of God, war,
civil commotion, terrorism, labor disputes, strikes, earthquakes, fire, flood or other casualty,
shortages of labor or material, government regulation or restriction, and weather conditions, but
do not include financial inability to perform.

25.14 Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Lease and each of its
provisions.

25.15 Recording: Memorandum of Lease. Except as provided in this Section 25.16,
neither this Lease nor any memorandum, affidavit, or other writing relating to this Lease may be
recorded by Lessee or anyone acting through, under, or on behalf of Lessee. Recordation in
violation of this provision constitutes an act of default by Lessee. On request by Lessor or any
lender or ground Lessor, Lessee shall execute a short form of Lease for tecordation, containing
(among other customary provisions) the names of the parties and a description of the Premises
and the Lease Term. Lessee shall executc, acknowledge before a notary public, and deliver that
form to Lessor within ten (10) days after the request.

25.16 Liability of Lessor. Except as otherwise provided in this Lease or applicable law,
for any breach of this Lease the liability of Lessor (including all persons and entities that

MO195026/1866486-2 57



comprise Lessor, and any successor Lessor) and any recourse by Lessee against Lessor shall be
limited to the interest of Lessor and Lessor’s successors in interest in and to the Building and
Property. On behalf of itself and all persons claiming by, through, or vnder Lessee, Lessee
expressly waives and releases Lessor from any personal liability for breach of this Lease.

25.17 Transfer of Lessor’s Interest. Lessor has the right to transfer sll or part of its
interest in the Property and in this Lease. On such a transfer, Lessor shall automatically be
relcased from all liability accruing under this Lease, and Lessee shall look solely to that
transferce for the performance of Lessor’s obligations under this Lease after the date of transfer.
Lessor may assign its interest in this Lease to a mortgage lender as additional security. This
assignment shall not relcase Lessor from its obligations under this Lease, and Lessee shall
continue to look to Lessor for the performance of its obligations under this Lease.

25.18 Submission of Lease, Submission of this document for examination or signature
by the parties does not constitute an option or offer to lease the Premises on the terms in this
document or a reservation of the Premises in favor of Lessee. This document is not effective as a
lease or otherwise until executed and delivered by both Lessor and Lessee.

25.19 Legal Authority. Each individual executing this Lease on behalf of Lessee
represents and warrants that:

(a) The individual is authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of
Lessee in accordance with a duly adopted resolution of Lessee’s board of directors and in
accordance with Lessee’s articles of incorporation or charter and bylaws;

(b)  This Lease is binding on Lessee in accordance with its terms;

(c) Lessee is a duly organized and legally existing corporation in good
standing in the State of California; and

(d)  The execution and delivery of this Lease by Lessec shall not result in any
breach of or constitute a default under any Indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, lease loan, credit
agreement, partnership agreement, or other contract or instrument to which Lessee is a party or
by which Lessee may be bound.

Lessee shall, prior to the date of this Lease, deliver to Lessor a copy of a resolution of
Lessee’s board of directors authorizing or ratifying the execution and delivery of this Lease. That
resolution must be duly certified by the secretary or assistant secretary of Lessee.

2520 Rrokers. Lessor and Lessee each represents to the other that it has had no
dealings with any real estate broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this Lease, and
that it knows of no other real estate broker or agent who is entitled to a commission or finder’s
fee in connection with this Lease. Each party shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold
harmless the other party against all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, lawsuits, judgments, and
costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) for any leasing commission, finder’s fee,
or equivalent compensation alleged to be owing on account of the indemnifying party’s dealings
with any real estate broker or agent other than Brokers. The terms of this Section 25.20 shall
survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term. Despite anything contained in

M01950256/1866486-2 58



this Lease to the contrary, Lessor and Lessee agree and acknowledge that neither this Section
25.20 nor any other provision in this Lease may be enforced by any third party.

25.21 Transportation Management. Lessee shall fully comply with all current or future
compulsory programs imposed by any public authority, intended to manage parking,
transportation, or traffic in and around the Property. In connection with this compliance, Lessee
shall take responsible action for the transportation planning and management of all employees
located zt the Prcmises by working directly with Lessor, any government transportation
management organization, or other transportation-related committees or entities.

25.22 Counterparts. This Leasc may be signed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

25.23 No Delegation of Powers. By this Lease and any amendments hereto, Lessor
does not delegate or grant any authority or powers of Lessor as a public agency or otherwise to
Lessee to exercise any of Lessor’s rights or authority, and Lessor retains all those powers and
authorities granted to Lessor by the State by reason of its status as a political subdivision of the
State of California.

[The rest of this page is intentionally left blank.]

M0185025/1866486-2 59



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the partics have executed this Lease as of the Lease Date.
LESSOR:

MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT,
a political subdivision of the State of California

By:
Printed Name:
Title:

LESSEE:

MARIN GENERAL HOSPITAL,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By o e e
Printed Name: o
Title:

M0195025/1866486-2 60



EXHBIT A TO HOSPITAL LEASE

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS/DEPICTIONS OF PROPERTY, MHB PARCEL
AND COUNTY EASEMENTS

[SEE ATTACHED]



LEGAIL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY



DESCRIFTION

ALL THAT CERTAIN real property situate in the County of Marin, State of California, described
below as follows:

PARCEL ONE:

Beginning at the point of Intersection of the two courses "South 20° 02" West 389.351 fest and
South 53° 54' 20" West 508.07 feet” in the Westerly boundary of that certain tract conveyed by
The Roman Catholic Archbishop of San Francisco to Schuliz, Inc., by Deed dated April 10, 1946
and recorded Aprll 17, 1946 in Book 516 of Official Records at Page 223, ‘Marin County Records;
thence running from sald point of beginning along the Westerly boundary of said tract South 53°
54" 20" West 506.07 feet; thence South 30° 34' 20" West 84.0 feet; thence South 0° 24’ 20" West
192.0 feet; thence South 52° 59" 20" West 163.0 feet; thence South 39° 49 20" West 244.,0 feef;
thence South 0° 19’ 20" West 307.0 feet; thence South 39° 34' 20" West 30.0 feet; thence leaving
said Westerly boundary South 70° 51' 65" East 251.351 feet fo the point of intersection of the two
courses” South 66° 34' West 69.6 feet and South 34° West 118.1 feet” in the Westerly boundary

- of that certain tract conveyed by John E. Manlove; et ux to Christopher C, Rivers by Deed
recorded May 16, 1904 in Book 87 of Deeds at Page 116, Marin County Records; thence running
along the boundary of said tract conveyed by Manlove to Rivers, North 67° 43’ Eest 69.5 feet,
South 54° 51' East 62.8 feet to the most Northeasterly corner of said tract conveyed from
Manlove to Rivers; thence leaving said boundary North 45° 55 East 666.0 feet; thence North 29°
23" 30" East.261.34 fest to the Northeasterly boundary of the Bon Air Tract and the boundary of
the Glty of Larkspur; thence along said Tract boundary North 15° 49° West 585.50 feet; thence
North 68° 16" 19" West 42.99 feet to the point of beginning.

The bearing used in the above description are based on the Lambert Conformal Projection for .
Zone 3, California as established by Surveys of the State Lands Commission and set forth on the
“Plat of Corte Madera Ark Sltes, Marin County, Calif.”, filed for record June 26, 1942 In Book 2 of
Surveys, at Page 99, Marin County Records, “

Excepting therefrom all that portion included within that certain parcel conveyed to the County of
Marin by Deed recorded December 17,1953 in Book 841 of Official Records at Page 211, Marin
County Records.

'PARCEL TWO:

Beginning at a polint in the Westerly boundary of the lands described as "Parcel One" In the Deed
from The Roman Catholic Archbishop of San Francisco to Schultz Company, recorded April 17,
1946 in Book 516 of Officlal Records at Page 223, Marin County Records; said point being
distant along said boundary South 29° 02' West 237.806 feet from the Southerly line of Sir
Francls Drake Boulevard as described in said Deed; thence running from said point of beginning
and leaving said bouhdary on a curve to the right from a tangent bearing South 29° 02' West with
" a radius of 360 feet through an angle of 26° 28’ for a distance of 172.578 feet; thence South 56°
30" West 365.702 feet; thence on a curve to the left with a radius of 540 feet through an angle of



DESCRIPTION
Continued

24° 56’ for a distance of 234.991 feet; thence South 31° 34’ West 445.718 feet; thence on a
curve to the left with a radius of 540 feet through an angle of 26° 04' for a distance of 245.672
feet; thence South 5° 30" West 307.642 feet to the Westerly line of the lands conveyed to Schuitz
Company by Deed above referred to; thence running Northerly along the last named line, North
43° 04' 20" East 73.20 feet; North 39° 34’ 20" East 92.0 fest; North 0° 19’ 20" East 307.0 feet;
North 39° 49" 20" East 244.0 feet; North 52° 59’ 20" East 163.0 feet; North 0° 24’ 20" East 192.0
feet; North 30° 34’ 20" East 84.0 feet; North 53° 54' 20" East 506.07 feet and North 29° 02’ East
151.545 feet to the point of beginning.

The bearings used above are based on the Lambert Conformal Projection for Zonse 3, Califoria,
as established by Surveys of the State Lands Commission and set forth on the “Piat of Corte
Madera Ark Sites, Marin County, Calif.", filed for reoord June 26, 1942 in Book 2 of Surveys, at
Page 99, Marin County Records.

Excepting therefrom all that portion included within that certain parcel conveyed to the County of
Marin by Deed recorded December 17, 1953 in Book 841 of Official Records at Page 211, Marin
County Records.

PARCEL THREE:

Beginning at the point of intersection of the two COUrses "South 38° 34' 20” West 92.0 feet and
South 43° 04’ 20" West 383.8286 feet” in the Westerly boundary of that certain tract conveyed by

-the Roman Catholic Archbishop of San Francisco to Schultz, inc., by Deed dated April-10, 1948
and recorded April 17, 1946 in Book 516 of Official Records at Page 223, Marin County
Records; thence running from said point of beginning along the Westerly boundary of sald fract,
South 43° 04’ 20" West 76.02 feet; thence leaving sald boundary South 73¢ 38’ East 271.302
feet; thence North 35° 08' East 119.1 feet; thence North 70° 51' 55" West 251,351 feet to the
Westerly boundary of said tract aforementioned; thence along said boundary South 398° 34’ 20"
West 62.0 feet to the point of beginning.

Excepting therefrom all that portion conveyed to the County of Marln by Deed recorded October
8, 1974 in Book 2837 of Official Records at Page 223, Marin County Records.

PARCEL FOUR:

Beginning at the most Northeasterly point of the lands described in the Deed from Marin County
Hospital District to the County of Marin, recorded December 17, 1953 in Book 841 of Official
Records at Page 211, Marin County Records; thence Southwesterly along the Westerly line of
the lands described in said Deed to the County of Marin, on a curve to the right from a tangent
bearing South 29°02' West with a radlus of 360 {eet through an angle of 27° 28’ for a distance of
172.578 feet; thence South 56° 30' West 365.702 feet; thence on a cutve to the left with & redius
of 540 feet through an angle of 24° 56’ for a dtstancg 0f 234.991 feet; thence South 31° 34’ West
445,718 feet; thence on a curve to the left with a radius of 540 feet through an angle of 26° 04'
for a distance of 245.672 feet; thence South 5° 30" West 307.642 feet to the Westerly boundary

" of the lands described as “Parcel One” in the Deed from the Roman Catholic Archbishop of San
Franclsco to Schultz Company, recorded April 17, 1848 in Book 516 of Official Records at Page



DESGRIPTION
continued

R e S Y e el we s - e i

223, Marin County Records; thence along last sald Westerly boundary, South 43° 04' 20" West
58.004 feet; thence lsaving last sald boundary Northerly along the arc of a curve fo the left the
center of which bears North 73° 55' West, having a radius of 445 feet and a central angle of 33°
05', a distance of 256.948 feet; thence North 17° 00’ West 200 feet; thence along the arc of a
curve fo the right tangent to the preceding course, having a radius of 555 feet and a central
angle of 93¢ 43", a distance of 807.794 feet; thence North 76° 43’ East 212.641 feet, thence
along the-arc of a curve to the left, tangent to the preceding course, having a radius of 861.064
feet and a central angle of 20° 13', a distance of 303.824 feet; thence along the arc of a
compound curve to the left having a radius of 460 feet and a central angle of 27+ 28, a distance
of 220.517 feet to the Westerly boundary of the lands conveyed to Schuitz Company by Deed

" ahova referred to; thence along last said line, South 29° 02' West 24.439 feet to the point of
beginning.

Excepting. therefrom all that portion conveyed to the County of Marin by Deed recorded October
g, 1974 in Book 2837 of Official Records at page 223, Marin County Records. ;

PARCEL FIVE:

Ve, v .

Beginning at a point in the Westerly boundary of the lands described as “Parcel One" in the Deed
from the Roman Catholic Archbishop of San Francisco to Schultz Company, recarded April 17,
1946 In Book 516 of Officlal Records at Page 223, Marin County Records; said point being

_ distant along sald boundary South 29° 02' West 237.806 fest from the Southery line of Sir

%Francls Drake Boulevard; a§described in. said Deed; thence along saié*Westerly boundary South -
20° 02' West, 151.545 feet; thence leaving said boundary South 68° 16' 19" East 42.99 feet,
thence South 15° 40' East 12,871 feet; thence alpng the arc of a curve to the right, the center of
which bears North 40° 18' 43" Wast 440 feet, having a radius of 440 feet, and a central-angle of
6° 48' 43", a distance of 52.312 feet; thence South 56° 30" West 65.084 feet to the true point of
beginning; thence Southwesterly along the arc of a curve fo the right, tangent io the last
mentioned course, having a radius of 1,200 feet and.a central angle of 19° 40' 13", a distance of
411.973 feet: thence Southwesterly along the arc of a curve {o the lefl, the center of which bears
South 44° 31' 47" East having a radius of 540 fest and a central angle of 13° 64' 13", a distance
of 131.038 feet: thence South 31° 34' 00" West 445.718 feef; thence along the arc of a curve to
the left, tangent to the preceding course, having a radius of 540 feet and a central engle of 22°
36' 40", a distance of 213.105 feet; thence South 17° 00’ 00" East 100.401 feet; thence along the.
arc of a curve fo the right, tangent to the preceding course, having & radius of 655 feet and a
central angle of 18° 04' 42, a distance of 175.117 fest; thence North &° 30" 00" East 229.810
feet; thence along the arc of a curve to the right, tangent to the preceding course, having a radius
of 460 feet and a central angle of 26° 04" 00", a distance of 208.277 feet; thence North 31°34'
00" East 445.718 feet: thence along the arc of a curve to the-right, tangent to the preceding
course, having a radius of 480 feet and a central @ngle of 24° 56’ 00", a distance of 200.178 feet,
thence North 56° 30" 00" East 300.618 feet t6 the true point of beginning.



LEGAL DESCRIPTION/DEPICTION OF THE MHB PARCEL



Legal Desctiption
Parcel A

All that certain real property situate in the City of Greenbrae, County of Marin, being a
portion of the lands of the Marin Hospital District, more particularly described as
follows:

Beginning at a point on the easterly line of said parcel, said Point of Beginning being
further described as a point on the northerly projection of the westerly boundary of the
Bon Air Subdivision No. Three as filed for record in Book 8 of Maps at Page 3 in the
office of tae Marin County Recorder, from whicl Poiat of Beginning a well monument as
shows on the Marin County Departiment of Public Works drawing number 7 5-6on filein
the County Engincers office witnessing the beginaing of a 500° radius curve { 12.06 foot
offeet from centerline station 18+06.54 as shown thereoit) in Bon Air Road bears South
T7°19'09” West, 612.23 foet: thence from said point of beginning, along the casterly and
‘southeasterly lines of said Hospital District lands the following 3 courses and distanees:
South 15°49°00™ Hast, 451.73 fect; thenee South 29¢23°38” West, 261,34 fect; thence
South 45°55°00” West, 104,04 feet; thence leaving said southeasierly linc Korth

5896771 1™ West, 232.64 feet; thence South 75°1%'53” West, $1.40 feet; thence North
14°41°07" West, 97.23 feet, thence North 75°1 %'53” East, 21.96 feet; thence North
30°46°07" Bast, 70.00 feet; thence South §9713°53” West, i 1.75 feet; thence North
30°46°'07" Rasi, $0.07 {eet; thence Nortl#38928°07” Hast, 18.22 feet; thence North
59°13°'53" West, 94.51 fecl; thence North 3%°26°29" West, 90.47 foet; thence Norik
51933°31” East, 77.51 feet; thence South 1§926*29" East, 28.74 feet to the beginning of 2
curve concave northerly having a radius of 108.00 feet; thence casterly along the are of
said ourve 155.51 feet through a ceniral angle of 82°30°03” to the beginning of 2 non-
tangent curve concave westerly having a radius of 425.00 feet, from which the radius
bears North 70°53°48" West; theice northerly along the arc of said curve 206,13 fect
through a central angle of 27947197 thence North 54919°12" Fast, 181.44 fecf to the
Point of Beginning,. :

Containing 4.98 acres, more or less.

See plat attached and by reference made a part hereof,

Sheet 1 of 2




Te: $77i50g ~— ~—

A4 {"3‘.\
G /&, S
o A fr,)’h,
4 ) Gy r.\ (\4‘};

tai Y ;"s“;
A

Pt v, o )
:""ﬂ—u"-'—-.h._ i ,,,.ou"f’"/ o /w"
i . s
Bon Air Road PR /
- —__Bon Air Road_ — "~

P.0.8,

’ ®
e
f@ L
WO
By "
Ny ’
_PARCEL A _ !
4.98% Acres
N N7518'53°E
i 21,96
18140’
S7. '78'53"w \ &
. e
X .-Le;-'-‘-?‘gé“\
4‘ -2 'q:‘., 1
o&-‘%:"_ 7 :519 {&\c‘
‘&;\(v_ 7 "‘r“w
"Rex // 4%
AN . p
'*" Aqtb‘ _||.
vﬂﬁiéﬁﬂ
AT
T — A Fiat fo Accompany [
Mountain® * Legal Description B e o
Pacific Surveys i C L 1"=100" |
p— - 4- 98:’: ACI’e PCH’CGI Uute: 04/16/09 Sneet No, 4
Amrvateg - Wppit "W Marin General Hospital e e Z
1605 X, Tomt St 7 oo ] Greenbrae California " 508078 |y 2




LEGAT DESCRIPTION/DEPICTION OF THE COUNTY’S ACCESS EASEMENT



wi
3

Legal Description

Access Easement

A non-exclusive easement for ingress, egress, parking in the established places
designated therefoie, and ull purposes incidental thereto over all that certain real property
situate in the City of Greenbrae, County of Marin, being 2 portion of the lands of the
Merin Hospital District, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at 2 point o the southerly line of Bon Air Road as shown on the Marin
County Department of Public Works drawing number 75-6 on file in the County
Engineers office, fror which point a well inonument witnessing the beginning of a 500
radius cwve (12.00 foot offset from centerline station 18+06.54 as shown thereon) in Bon
Air Road bears North 87°34°01” West, 152.87 feet; said Point of Beginning being further
described as the beginning of a non-tangent curve concave easterly having a radius of
24.50 feet, from which point the radius bears South 55°45°02” East; thence from said
Point of Beginning, southerly along the arc of said curve, 20.84 feet through: a centrul
angle of 48°44°03"; thence Souih 14°29°05” Kast, 8.10 fect to the beginning of a curve
concave westerly having a radius of 43.50 feet; thence southerly along the arc of said.
curve 23.82 feet through a central angle of 31°22°29™ to the beginning of 4 reverse curve
having a radius of 40.00 feet; thence sontherly along the arc of said curve 21.90 feet
through a central angle of 3 1222°29"; thence South 14°29°05” East, 79.74 feet to the
heginning of s curve concave easterly having a radius of 90.00 fect, thence southerly
along the arc of said curve 41.66 foet through a central angle of 26°31'23"; thence South
41°00°29” East, 83.70 feet to the beginning of a curve concave northerly having a radius
of 7.50 feet; thence easterly along.the arc of said curve 10.81 feet through a central angle
of 82°36'17"; thence North 56°23°14” East, 19.65 feet; thence South 59°13°53” East,
92.57 feet; thence South 38°28°07" West, 18.22 feet; thence South 30°46°07" West,
90.00 feet; thence North 59°13°53” West, 11.75 feet; thence South 30°46'07" West,
70.00 feet; thence South 75°18°53” West, 21 96 feet; thence North 43°31°22” West,
18.65 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve concave northwesterly having a radius
of 144.00 feet, from which point the radius bears North 43°31°22" West; thence northerly
along the are of said curve 91.75 fect through a central angle of 36730725 to the
beginning of a compound curve having a rad tus of 84.50 feet; thence nontherly along the
arc of said curve 79.04 feet through a central engle of 5035°53"; thence North 40°27'40”
West, 96.35 feet to the beginning of curve concave soul herly having a radins of 9.00
feet; thence westerly along the arc of said curve 14.99 fect through a central angle of
05924°46”; thence South 43°57°34" West, 38 74 feet; thence South 75°29°40"” West,
20.07 feet; thence North 14°30°20” West, 72.12 feet to 2 point for the purposc of this
desciption referred to as Point A, from which point said well monument witnessing the
begintiag of 2 500" radius curve in Bon Air Road bears North 29°24'11** West, 193.07
feet; thence from said Point A North 75°29°40" Bast, 23.57 feet; thence South 14°30°20”

Sheet 1 of 3



East, 23.86 feet to the beginning of a curve concave northerly having a radijus of 4,00
feet: thence easterly along the arc of said curve 7.26 feet through a central angle of
104°03°04” to the beginning of a compound curve having a radius of 29.00 feet; thence
northerly along the arc of said curve 38.43 feet through a central angle of 75°55'42”,
thence North 14°29°05" West, 121,09 feet to the beginning of a curve concave
southwesterly having a radius of 34.00 feet; thence northerly along the arc of said curve
21.53 feet through a central angle of 36°16’59" to a point on said southerly line of Bon
Air Road, said point being further described as a point on a non-tangent curve concave
northerly having a radius of 1,200 feet, from which point the radius bears North
13°43'50" West; thence easterly along said southerly line and along the arc of said curve
52.65 feet through a central angle of 2°30°50" to the Point of Beginning,

See plat attached and by reference made a part hereof.



R dd ety
An’ b V&
» e m
e f _.Tie: S87°34°01°F \:“ 152,
B - .,& %, K
2/

T CURE TABLE S . z ,l,“"‘\«mw pe3122'28" %%
GURVE | TLENGTH |_RADIUS | DELTA No [ TTRamso A
¢ | Zcan (50| agais| Wy b S\m L=23.82 %,
t 46" <3 A4 . A_TE'900Q" ~ -
15:%; gg G, ¥ Vg 4=312229 %
£ A " \\‘2’ =40.00
T = T ) =21.90
» wy u}
4=26'31'23"
~R=90.00 4

7 1=41.66 »
o~

LINE TABLE ) 5,
LINE | LENGTH | __ BEARING '5‘2‘.;%.
17 | 3874 I35 34 %5
) 2007 375'.39 4% v o
L3 72.12 N1430'70" . A=50'35'53
T4 | 23.57 N?ﬁ':g‘fﬁ’.s % R=89.50 /
5 23.86 514'30 20 € 1 =78.04
e 1200 4 SiT 50"1@"&_ i £
7900 T S7E iAW — agg A
18 | T 2400 | 143020 Re:144,00 / /“ @
(6 7450 | NIATZOW |=91.75 AN el
“Tig | son ! 57529 401‘?{“__1 Y /X Q%} \ \gg::;-
T- 111 1250 N14'30 20°W_ ¥, ,\g}& .
g 600 | N752G40E P & 5
“Tr13 | 2500 | " NT430Z20W ] Ay 4%\ =l
174 [ 2600 | STA3020F PG NI
- Ti5 | T 500 | N/B2G40E | BT A
[i16 B0 | S142905E | \\\ 8
_ —— e o
Mountqiné’f‘ o, Parking and mm._.,é';;, "_%F-Ti{""";.,_—;o“," —}
Pacific Surveys , Access Easments - s
T vagiog  Eagpins « Fasaiag Dole oa/16/08 [hect Ko
Marin General Hospital F%}--«ﬁ;_ s 3
T on o5y ,’;"’“ﬁ’ ﬁ’?ﬁ‘, Gresnbrae California 508078 | 3




LEGAL DESCRIPTION/DEPICTION OF THE COUNTY'S PARKING EASEMENT



Parking Easement

An exclusive easement for vehicular parking and all purposes incidental thereto over that
certain real property situate in the City of Greenbrae, County of Marin, being a portion of
the lands of the Marin Hospital District, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point referenced herein above as Point A, from which point said well
monument witnessing the beginning of a 500° radius curve in Bont Air Road bears North
29°24°11” West, 193.07 feet; thence South 14°30720 East, 12.00 feet; thence South
75°29°40” West, 9.00 feet; thence South 14°30°20” East, 24.00 feet; thence South
75°29"40” West, 160.00 feet; thence North 14°30°20™ West, 24.50 feet; thence South
75°29°40” West, 8.00 feet; thence North 14°30°20” West, 12.50 feet; thence North
75°29°40" East, 8.00 feet; thence North 14°30°20” West, 25.00 feet; thence North
75°29°40" East, 160.00 feet; thence South 14°30°20” East, 26.00 feet; thence North
75°29740” Bast, 9.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Together with, the right of pedestrian access over and across grantors remaining lands

along established pedestrian routes as may reasonably be required from the Parking
Easement to the 4.98 acre Parcel A, each as described elsewhere herein.

See plat attached and by reference made a part hereof.



i

&
=\
Ao

\b)

TCRETMBLE | o /_\.;\__._g_ — N
CURVE | LENGTH | _RADIUS ] " DELTA_ B350 X
CCT ] 2084 | 2450 L5382 %
o _02 - 14 gg 0{104 L ‘___3 wryii bty M fé‘;
G 726 | 400] 104 e %
A4S T Jl . L=21.50
Q263123
R=90.00 /\

L4166

¢ ~u2 Easement ”‘__ o o

1 »,. H
%
P
-A
"\t

L‘O\G T 1 Point A"\ \0_/
v gt 15
%
%y 2
XY
LINE TABLE “% %
TLNE_ | LENGTH | n__pswuc %%,
17 | 3874 '57’34'W =,
|12 ;20 Gg ] 575‘29 49_% %:z» |
LJ "2 C N14'30°20 9 A=5035'53" /. &}
L4 2357 1 N75'49 4 40t % R=89.50 _/ @[\%\
[5 | 23 8 T TS0 29_,,!; L=79.04 )’. c?e@'
— 16 72.00 | _SI43020E _ 75
=i e e g—'q,q___,_ L. 8"‘29 M}»W =36o30125u/ o) &
— 1§ {7400 | 5143020 _ R=144.00 )
g 7480 | NT#3020W tat7s o 4 B0
i70 T BO0 | 5752940W N x 29 N
Ll | 1250 NI£3020W *,
[z [ "800 |\ N7s2940% ] s’
13 1T 2500 [ T NI43020°W |
O 26000 5143020 _|
U5 [ 800 | N7529 4 29'26"
{6 | &I | 51429 42905 F_
m__ - - ]
Mountain’ Park!ng and Drowri Sedle
Pacific Surveys Access Easments g cuw r 60__‘___“
le Sheat No.
Squlu + Flonning 04/16/09 ~
I ol Marin General Hospltal — Ak 3
;g,@;;g"“%“ e o s Greenbrae California 508078 |, 3







BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE

MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

RESOLUTION 2014-005

CALL FOR NOVEMBER 4 BALLOT MEASURE ELECTION AND CONSOLIDATION

The Board of Directors of the Marin Healthcare District does hereby resolve as follows:

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority contained in Section 32121(p) of the Health & Safety
Code of the State of California, the Board of Directors of the Marin Healthcare District does hereby call
for an election of the voters of the District to be held November 4, 2014, to approve a measure, by a
majority of the voters voting on the measure, proposing the transfer of all the real and personal
property associated with Marin General Hospital and its campus and operations by long term lease
pursuant to the Hospital Lease Agreement dated as of August 6, 2014, and does hereby determine and
fix the date of the election as of the 4th day of November, 2014, which date being the first Tuesday after
the first Monday in November, 2014. "Full text" is not required to appear in the Sample Ballot
Pamphlet.

The ballot measure shall read and appear on the ballot as follows:
Measure

“To allow Marin General Hospital to remain a non-profit, locally governed hospital and to
require that revenues from the hospital be reinvested into improving patient care, equipment,
advanced programs for heart disease, stroke, diabetes, cancer and seismic upgrades, shall Marin
Healthcare District continue to lease Marin General Hospital to the non-profit Marin General
Hospital Corporation for an annual rent of $500,000 in accordance with the Hospital Lease
Agreement dated August 6, 2014, and Resolution 2014-04 adopted August 5, 2014 ?”

Yes No



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to Section 32121(p)(2) of the Health & Safety Code the
appraised fair market value range of the Hospital assets being leased is $21,050,000 to $23,680,000,
based on the report by Value & Information Group, an independent expert on valuation of such
facilities, and the consideration received by the District from the tenant, Marin General Hospital
Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, (“MGH”) in exchange for the 30 year
Hospital Lease consists of those considerations set forth in the Board’s Resolution 2014-04, incorporated
herein, and in particular:

e The District Board has determined that the form of operations that will produce the
optimal chance for long term successful provision of nonprofit, community based,
hospital and related healthcare services for Marin County is the continued operation of
the Hospital by the District’s affiliated tax exempt nonprofit corporation under the
proposed new 30 year Lease Agreement with MGH, without the burden of significant
rent, as opposed to a sale or lease at full market value to an outside entity without
District oversight

e The District will receive base cash rent of $500,000 per year plus an annual CPI increase

® MGH provides District administrative and secretarial support services, office space,
furniture, computer hardware and software and equipment as required for District to
conduct its affairs, along with other overhead expenses, including insurance, subject to
an annual ceiling of $509,000, plus an annual CPl increase

e Additional contingent rent paid will be paid if Marin General Hospital achieves both of
the following: (a) 150 days of cash on hand, and (b) earnings before interest,
depreciation and amortizations (“EBIDA”) that is in excess of the higher of (i) 10% of
MGH’s Net Revenue (as determined under GAAP), or (ii} the then-current level of EBIDA
as a percentage of Net Revenue required for MGH to achieve an “A” category credit
rating (the “Additional Rent Triggers”). When MGHC achieves both of the Additional
Rent Triggers, it shall pay Additional Rent in the amount of 2% of any amount of MGH’s
EBIDA that is in excess of the second Additional Rent Trigger set forth above

e Marin General Hospital will continue to fund any deficits in the operations of the Marin
Healthcare District Medical Care Centers, providing needed physician access for the
residents of Marin

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 1002 of the California Elections Code, and
Section 32121(p) of the Health & Safety Code, this Board does hereby notify the Marin County Board of
Supervisors, and the Marin County Elections Department, that this Board chooses to hold such election
on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November, 2014, and requests consolidation with any
election that may be held on the same day, in the same territory or in territory that is in part the same.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that pursuant to Elections Code section 10002 and 10400, the Board
of Directors of the Marin Healthcare District hereby requests the Board of Supervisors of the County of
Marin to authorize the Marin County Elections

Official to render all services otherwise required to be performed by the Secretary of the District for the
election to be held on November 4, 2014. Said services include, but are not limited to:

- Publication of Notices calling the election

- Publication of Notices calling for ballot arguments
- Provision of voter lists

- Preparation, printing of ballots

- Conducting polling place election

- Counting of ballots

- Certification of election

- All aspects of election not specified above that may be agreed upon by the County Clerk or
County Registrar of Voters and the Secretary of the District

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Executive Officer or Chair of the Board or his/her
designee(s) are hereby authorized to execute any other document and to perform all acts necessary to
place the measure on the ballot, and to comply with requirements of law and election officials.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized and directed to
canvass the returns of the election and to certify the results of the election to the District as required by
law.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Marin Healthcare District shall reimburse the County of
Marin for all costs and expenses incurred by the County in conducting said election upon presentation of
a bill to the District.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the District Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to file a
copy of this Resolution with the Board of Supervisors and the County Clerk upon its adoption by the
Board of Directors of the Marin Healthcare District, and contingent upon the approval and execution of
the Hospital Lease by the Marin General Hospital corporation on or before August 6, 2014.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of August, 2014, by the following votes:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

Harris Simmonds, M.D., Secretary,
Board of Directors of the
Marin Healthcare District

Larry Bedard, M.D., Chair,
Board of Directors of the
Marin Healthcare District



CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY
MARIN Healthcare District,

a California Special District

The undersigned, Harris Simmonds, M.D., being the Secretary of Marin Healthcare District (the
“District”), hereby certifies for and on behalf of the District that the foregoing and attached Resolution is
a true and correct copy of this Resolution of the District, as adopted by the Board of Directors at a
properly noticed meeting at which a quorum was present, and that the same is in full force and effect.

DATED this fifth day of August, 2014.

Harris Simmonds, Secretary, Board of Directors









BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

RESOLUTION 2014-006

DESIGNATION OF AFFILIATED COVERED ENTITY FOR HIPAA ADMINISTRATION

WHEREAS, HIPAA allows covered entities under common ownership or control
to join together to form a single “Affiliated Covered Entity” (an “ACE”) for purposes of
compliance with HIPAA; and,

WHEREAS, the District as the operator of the Marin Healthcare District Medical
Care Centers (“District Clinics”) is a healthcare provider and a “covered entity” for
HIPAA patient privacy and administrative purposes, as is Marin General Hospital; and,

WHEREAS, the District and the Hospital are affiliated by reason of the District's
status as sole corporate member of Marin General Hospital Corporation and the
District’s status as owner and landlord of the Hospital facilities; and,

WHEREAS, the District and MGH have entered into a Management Services and
Staffing Agreement by which MGH provides comprehensive management services for
the District’'s operation of the District Clinics, including the development and
implementation of HIPAA administrative policies; and,

WHERAS, designation of an ACE between affiliated healthcare providers allows
for shared use of patient data for the purposes of HIPAA administrative oversight
programs, including implementation of joint privacy practice and consent form practices,
joint training, uniform business associate contracting, and patient healthcare access
needs assessment; and

WHEREAS, designation of an ACE between the District and MGH will be
consistent with the District/MGH Management Services and Staffing Agreement, but will
be limited to HIPAA administration and will not supersede, amend, or alter that
Agreement, will not impair the separate legal status of the District and MGH, and will not
extend District responsibility for HIPAA or general operations liability beyond District
operations and will not subject the District to any responsibility for MGH operations.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby resolve:

1. To designate the existence of an Affiliated Covered Entity for HIPAA purposes
consisting of the District Clinics and Marin General Hospital.



2. To authorize management to complete the administrative organization of the
ACE and to thereupon implement shared HIPAA administration as Management deems
advantageous to District Clinic operations.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this fifth day of August, 2014, by the following votes:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

Harris Simmonds, M.D., Secretary

Board of Directors of the
Marin Healthcare District

Larry Bedard, M.D., Chair

Board of Directors of the
Marin Healthcare District






A WY

Creating a healthier Marin together.

TO: MHD Board of Directors
FROM: Lee Domanico, Chief Executive Officer
RE: Approval of terms of MHD Recruitment Arrangement for Internal

Medicine Physician for 1206(b) Clinic (Christina Edwards, D.O.)

DATE: July 18,2014

The District owns and operates a 1206(b) clinic located at 165 Rowland Way, Suite 201, Novato, California (the
“Clinic”) in which primary care services are provided to residents of the community.

Physician services are currently provided in the Clinic through agreements with Drs. Sockell, Welter, Teper and Li.
MHD desires to add the services of an additional physician specializing in Internal Medicine to the practice at the
Clinic. The physician, Dr. Christina Edwards, will be contracted with the MHD under a professional services
agreement to provide services at the Clinic on a full time basis.

There is demonstrated community need for Internal Medicine primary care. Jeffrey Marlowe, MD and Jenny Huang,
MD have/are both transitioning from traditional outpatient primary care practices out of the Novato/Marin community
in 2014. Additionally, the Community Needs Assessment completed in 2013 reflects a current community shortage of
primary care physicians.

As part of the effort to bring another specialist to the Marin service area, MHD is proposing to provide to Dr. Edwards
in the form of a recruitment loan, reimbursement of documented moving expenses in the amount of $10,000, a
relocation incentive bonus of $20,000 (to be paid  at the Start Date and %2 upon the one year anniversary of the Start
Date) plus repayment (directly to the lender) of Dr. Edwards’ student loans on a monthly basis in the amount of
$20,000 per year ($1,666/month) for a period of three years, for a maximum amount paid of $60,000 over the three
year period. Provided Dr. Edwards remains in the community, the loan will be forgiven on a rolling basis “mortgage-
style” over a period of six (6) years. This proposed compensation of $90,000 has been reviewed by an experienced
compensation consultant and determined to be within fair market value, and consistent with compensation and
recruitment incentives offered in similar practice settings by comparable non-profit hospital organizations.

Requested Action and Findings by the Board
Motion based on management's recommendation: “To approve the terms of the recruitment of Dr. Christina Edwards,

as presented in the Transaction Summary before the Board, along with the following findings:

e The proposed recruitment arrangement is necessary to assist the District to attract a qualified
specialist to practice in the communities served by the District and MGH, and that the health and
welfare of the residents of these communities require these provisions to assure the continued
availability of a physician specializing in internal medicine for patients of MHD and MGH.

e  The recruitment compensation and the forgivable loan incentives offered to recruit and retain the
physician’s services in these communities is within the fair market range of reasonable
compensation and incentives based on the review of Cattaneo & Stroud, independent compensation
evaluation consultants to the District and MGH. “

100 B Drake's Landing Road, Suite 250 office 415-464-2090
Greenbrae, CA 94904 fax 415-464-20924



MARIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
PHYSICIAN TRANSACTIONS AND ARRANGEMENTS POLICY

Due Diligence Checklist for Board Approvals
DR. CHRISTINA EDWARDS RECRUITMENT

Basis for District Board review and approval: (check all that apply)

New unbudgeted arrangement

Transaction not covered in approved District Clinic operations or
development budget

Conflict of Interest Issue in Transaction

Transaction exceeds projected budget for physician staffing by 20%
Transaction compensation exceeds FMV guidelines and needs specific
consideration of compensation

Transaction has term of more than two years without early termination
Transaction involves the provision of services outside District boundaries
Other: Recruitment Subsidies

X0X 0agao aag

X Hospital CEO confirms MGH staff has completed its own due diligence and
policy procedures as necessary for MGH funding of the proposed agreement and
operational and capital needs associated with the transaction

X Hospital CFO has confirmed the transaction is financially viable and is
consistent with Hospital’s physician development plan to meet community
physician access needs

X Hospital management confirms that all supporting documentation has been
obtained supporting management due diligence covering legitimacy of the
Physician and its business and license existence, its Medicare participation, and
qualifications

O Hospital management confirms contract requirements based on its
Physician Contracting Policy have been met

X The Hospital has made a fair market value determination consistent
with its Physician Contracting Policy

O Agreement / transaction has been approved by:

O The Hospital Board since the matter involves a Board or senior
management conflict of interest, or

O The Board Executive Committee since the matter involves a
matter with an annual value of $500K



X

O The Board Executive Committee since the matter involves
more in funding or if funding exceeds an increase of 20% over
the prior year

O The Board Executive Committee since the matter involves
exceeds fair market guidelines

O The CEO since the matter involves routine arrangements or
matters already authorized in Hospital Board approved budgets
for physician development and operations

X Hospital Executive Committee: pursuant to IRS recruitment
incentive guidelines

Management confirms that all supporting documentation has been

obtained supporting management due diligence covering legitimacy of the
Physician and its business and license existence, its Medicare participation, and
qualifications

X Management confirms consistency with Clinic business and strategic plan

O District Board reviewed Term Sheet

O District Board confirmed Fair Market Value determination

O District Board reviewed Conflict Findings, if any

O District Board made determinations supporting outside boundary services (if
necessary)

O District Board approved material terms of agreement and authorizes
execution of necessary documents concluding and supporting the
arrangement

Chair, District Management, Finance & Audit Committee Date

Chair, District Board Date

CEO, Marin General Hospital Date



TRANSACTION SUMMARY/TERM SHEET
FOR DR. CHRISTINA EDWARDS, D.O. RECRUITMENT

The following are the proposed terms for the recruitment of Christina Edwards, D.O.,
who specializes in Internal Medicine, to provide services as a physician in MHD’s 1206(b) clinic
located at 165 Rowland Way, Suite 201, Novato, California. Dr. Edwards will also have a
professional services agreement with the MHD to provide professional services. The funding for
the professional services agreement was already approved by the MHD Board as a part of the
annual budgeting process for the expansion of its 1206(b) clinics.

1. Agreement:

Recruitment Agreement between Dr. Edwards and MHD for reimbursement of
moving expenses, a relocation incentive bonus and the repayment of a portion of Dr. Edwards’
student loans (as described in more detail below). The moving expenses will be advanced
directly to Dr. Edwards. The student loan repayment will be made directly to the lender.

2. Term of Agreement: Six (6) years.

3. Compensation:

Under the Recruitment Agreement, MHD will provide to Dr. Edwards up to
$10,000 for Dr. Edwards’ documented moving expenses and a relocation incentive bonus of
$20,000 (paid 2 upon the Start Date and 2 upon the one year anniversary of the Start Date). In
addition, MHD will pay up to $1,666 per month, for a maximum of 36 months ($60,000) towards
the repayment of Dr. Edwards’ existing student loans.

The total sum of $90,000 shall be advanced in the form of a loan. This sum will
be “forgiven” on a monthly basis (mortgage-style) over a rolling repayment period (based on the
date of advancement) for a period of six (6) years with each term of forgiveness lasting for 36
months.

4, Community Benefit/Need. There is demonstrated community need for Internal
Medicine primary care. Jeffrey Marlowe, MD and Jenny Huang, MD have/are both transitioning
from traditional outpatient primary care practices out of the Novato/Marin community in 2014.
Additionally, the Community Needs Assessment completed in 2013 reflects a current community
shortage of primary care physicians.

5. Fair Market Value Analysis. A Fair Market Value Analysis was completed of
July 9, 2014 by Cattaneo & Stroud, an independent consultant. Their summary is that the
proposed Recruitment Agreement and Recruitment Loan terms between Dr. Edwards and the
Marin Healthcare District as summarized in this transaction summary are within fair market
value, based on the scope of services to be provided and the proposed terms of the agreement.







e a e D et e R

e,

B e o e e o o e Lt oy o

e e

PP R N e ;.
‘A— 2503 Coe Air Rosd, Grawnbeae, LA 23904

MARIN GENERAL HOSPITAL

Marin General Hospital
Performance Metrics and Core Services Report

st Quarter 2014

o 4TS US G0

Prepared 07-25-2014

e e e e



Marin General Hospital

Performance Metrics and Core Services Report: 1st Quarier 2014

TIER 1 PERFORMANCE METRICS

In accordance with Tier 1 Performance Metrics requirements, the MGH Board
is required to meet each of the following minimum level requirements:

Frequency Status Notes
(a) 1. MGH Board must maintain MGH’s Joint Commission Joint Commission granted MGH an "Accredited”
Quality, Safety |accreditation, or if deficiencies are found, correct them within six Q ' P decision with an effective date of 7/16/2013 fora
; uarter’ n Compliance
and Compliance {months. 4 e duration of 36 months. Next survey to occur in
2016.
2. MGH Board must maintain MGH’s Medicare certification for
quality of care and reimbursement eligibility. Quarterly |In Compliance MGH maintains its Medicare Certification.
3. MGH Board must maintain MGH’s California Department of e e .
Public Health Acute Care License Quarterly |In Compliance MGH maintains its license with the State of
California.
4. MGH Board must maintain MGH’s plan for compliance with L . .
SB 1953. Quarterly |In Compliance M‘C'H TEmANSHNL con‘lplu.mce with SB 1953
(California Hospital Seismic Retrofit Program).
5. MGH Board must report on all Tier 2 Metrics at least annually.
Annually  |In Compliance 4Q 2013 (Annual Report) was presented to MGH
Board and to MHD Board in May 2014.
6. MGH Board must implement a Biennial Quality Performance MGH Performance Improvement Plan for 2013
Improvement Plan for MGH. Annually |In Compliance| was presented for approval to the MGH Board in
May 2014.
7. MGH Board must include quality improvement metrics as part . ]
of the CEO and Senior Executive Bonus Structure for MGH. Annually |ln Compliance] =~ CECand Semor. Executive Bonus Structure
includes quality improvement metrics.
(B) MGH Board will report on MGH’s HCAHPS Results Quarterly.
Patient 0
Satisfaction and Quarterly [In Compliance Schedule 1
Services
(&) 1. In coordination with the General Member, the MGH Board c . ]
Community must publish the results of its biennial community assessmentto |, |l ommunity Health and Education Report was
Commitment  {assess MGH’s performance at meeting community health care Y P presented to the M(_}H Board and to the MHD
needs. Board in May 2014.
2. MGH Board must provide community care benefits at a MGH i i i
sufficient level to maintain MGH’s non-profit tax exempt status. | Quarterly |In Compliance continues to provide community care and ha
maintained its tax exempt status.
(D) MGH Board must report on all Tier 1 “Physician and Employee” Physician and Employee metrics were presented to
Physicians and  [Metrics at least annually. Annually lin Compliance| the MGH Board and to the MHD Board in May
Employees 2014.
(B 1. MGH Board must maintain MGH’s Scope of Acute Care
Volumesand  |Services as reported to OSHPD., Quarterly |[In Compliance All services have been maintained.
Service Array
2. MGH Board must maintain MGH’s services required by
Exhibit G to the Loan Agreement between the General Member : . Lo
and Marin County, dated October 2008, as long as the Exhibit Quarterly  [lalomplimce All services have been maintained.
commitments are in effect.
(F) 1. MGH Board must maintain a positive operating cash-flow
Finances (operating EBITDA) for MGH after an initial phase in period of
two fiscal years, and then effective as a performance metric after | Quarterly {In Compliance Schedule 2
July 1, 2012, with performance during the phase in period
monitored as if a Tier 2 metric.
2. MGH Board must maintain revenue covenants related to any
financing agreements or arrangements applicable to the financial | Quarterly |In Compliance Schedule 2

operations of MGH.

Page 1 of 14




Marin General! Hospital

Performance Metrics and Core Services Report: 1st Quarter 2014

TIER 2 PERFORMANCE METRICS

In accordance with Tier 2 Performance Melrics requirements, the General Member shall monitor and the MG Bogrd shall provide
Wnecessary reports to the General Member on the following metrics.

Freguency Status Notes
(A) MGH Board will report on efforts to advance clinical quality
Quality, Safety |efforts, including performance metrics in areas of primary
and Compliance |organizational focus in MGH’s Performance Improvement Plan
(including Clinical Quality Reporting metrics and Service Line
Quality Improvement Goals as developed, .g., readmission rates,| Quarerly |In Compliance Schedule 3
patient falls, “never events,” process of care measures, adverse
drug effects, CLABSI, preventive care programs).
B) 1. MGH Board will report on ten HCAHPS survey rating metrics
Patient to the General Member, including overall rating, recommendation|
Satisfaction and jwillingness, nurse and physician communication, responsiveness Y
Services of staff, pain management, medication explanatiops, cleanliness, Quarterly  In Compliance Schedule 1
room quietness, post-discharge instruction.
2. MGH Board will report external awards and recognition. External awards and recognition report was
Annually  |In Compliance] presented to the MGH Board and the MHD Board
GH Board will 11 of MGH h and in-kind i May 2014
C .M oard will report all o ’s cash and in-kin .
E‘.o)mmunity contributions to other Krganizations. Quarterly  In Compliance Schedule 4
Commitment 2. MGH Board will report on MGH’s Charity Care. Quarterly |In Compliance T
3. MGH Board will maintain a Community Health Improvement
Activities Summary to provide the General Member, providing a Community Health and Education Report was
summary of programs and participation in community healthand | Annually |In Compliancel presented to the MGH Board and to the MHD
education activities. Board in May 2014,
4, MGH Board will report the level of reinvestment in MGH, .
covering investment in excess operating margin at MGH in . Reinvestment and Capital Expenditure Report was
community services, and covering funding of facility upgrades Annually  In Compliancel  presented to the MGH Board and to the MHD
and seismic compliance. Board in May 2014.
5. MGH Board will report on the facility's “green building” status] "Green Building" Status Report was presented to
based on generally accepted industry environmental impact Anmually  |In Compliance} the MGH Board and to the MHD Board in May
factors. 2014.
(D) 1. MGH Board will provide a report on new recruited physicians Phvsici
Physicians and by specialty and active number of physicians on staff at MGH. Annually |In Compliance] hysician Report was presented to the MGH Board
Employees and to the MHD Board in May 2014.
2. MGH Board will provide a summary of the results of the Physician and Employee metrics were presented to
Annual Physician and Employee Survey at MGH. Annually |In Compliance| the MGH Board and to the MHD Board in May
2014.
3. MGH Board will analyze and provide information regarding
nursing turnover rate, nursing vacancy rate, and net nursing staff | Quarterly {In Compliance| Schedule 5
change at MGH.
(E) 1. MGH Board will develop a strategic plan for MGH and review .
Volumes and  |the plan and its performance with the General Member. Annually  |in Compliance The updated MGH Strategic Plan was presented to
Service Array the MGH Board on October 12,2013
2. MGH Board will report on the status of MGHs market share MGH's market share and management responses
and Management responses. Annually |In Compliance|report was presented to the MGH Board on Octol
12,2013
3. MGH Board will report on key patient and service volume
metrics, including admissions, patient days, inpatient and Quarterly |In Compliance Sechedule 2
outpatient surgeries, emergency visits.
:;xg::f;:::i:u )::l.l report on current Emergency services Quatterly | |ING ET bl
(3] 1. MGH Board will provide the audited financial statements. ]
Finances Annually [in Compliance The MGH 2012 lndemdmt Audit was completed
on April 29, 2014.
2. MGH Board will report on its performance with regard to
industry standard bond rating metrics, e.g., current ratio, leverage| Quarterly |In Compliance Schedule 2
ratios, days cash on hand, reserve funding.
3. MGH Board will provide copies of MGH’s annual tax retum
(form 990) upon completion to General Member. Annually |In Compliance] The MGH 2011 Form 990 was filed on November

15,2013,

Page 2 of 14




T

* MGH Performance Metrics and Core Services Report
1Q 2014

Schedule 1: HCAHPS

(Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers & Systems)

Tier 1, Patient Satisfaction and Services
The MGH Board will report on MGH’s HCAHPS Results Quarterly.
Tier 2, Patient Satisfaction and Services
The MGH Board will report on ten HCAHPS survey rating metrics to the General Member,
including overall rating, recommendation willingness, nurse and physician communication,
responsiveness of staff, pain management, medication explanations, cleanliness, room quietness,
post-discharge instruction.
Marin General Hospital
Overall Hospital HCAHPS
Trending by Quarter
Scores displayed here are based on interviews from CMS submitted data for the selected time periods.

Mode adjustments and ESTIMATED Patient Mix Adjustments have been applied to the dimension scores.
Scores for the individual questions do not have adjustments applied.

FY 2016 VBP Thresholds _ 20 2013 | 302013 | 4Q 2013
68.32 77.46 83.97 |Overall rating 67.49 65.53 67.54
77.67 82.34 86.07 |Communication with Nurses 72.04 74.41 74.61
Nurse Respect 81.93 83.11 86.02
Nurse Listen 7416 | 76.79 | 70.76 |
_ Nurse Explain 72.03 7534 | 79.06
8040 | 8483 | 88.66 |Communication with Doctors 81.90 79.38 78.45
Doctor Respect 87.71 | 87.73 | 87.45 |
Doctor Listen 81.97 7864 | 76.92
Doctor Explain 7991 | 75.78 | 74.89 |
84.71 | 73.07 | 79.76 |Responsiveness of Staff 62.73 67.17 67.01
Call Buiton 67.96 54.74 5§7.00
Bathroom Help 66.91 69.00 66.43
7018 | 7461 | 78.16 |[Pain Management 71.82 6517 68.84
Pain Controlled 72.00 64.24 68.29
Help with Pain 81.03 17550 | 78.79 |
6233 | 6813 | 72.77 [Communication about Medications 58.88 57.01 51.31
Med Explanation 79.14 72.22 76.00
Med Side Effects 4643 1 4959 | 34.43
6495 | 7281 | 79.10 |Hospital Environment 52.76 53.80 52,05
Cleanliness 62.87 62.39 65.04
Quiet 54.43 | 50.71 | 60.85
8470 | 87.86 | 90.39 |Discharge Information 85.63 82,68 81.49
Help After Discharge 86.88 | 80.77 | ©82.41
Symptoms to Monitor 86.98 | 87.19 | 83.17 |
Number of Surveys 239 224 236
[Thresholds Color Key: Scoring Color Key:
National 85th percentile At or above 85th percentile
National 75th percentile At or above 76th percentile
National average, 60th percentile At or above 50th percentile
Below 50th percentile

Official VPB (Value-Based Purchasing) monthly trending HCAHPS resutts are distributed by
MGH Quality Management on the 15th of each month,

Page 3 of 14




b2 o iy g e

és ARéport

' MGH Performance Metrics and Core Servic
1Q 2014

Schedule 2: Finances

» Tier 1, Finances
The MGH Board must maintain a positive operating cash-flow (operating EBITDA) for MGH after
an initial phase in period of two fiscal years, and then effective as a performance metric after July 1,
2012, with performance during the phase in period monitored as if a Tier 2 metric. The MGH Board
must maintain revenue covenants related to any financing agreements or arrangements applicable to
the financial operations of MGH.

»  Tier 2, Volumes and Service Array
The MGH Board will report on key patient and service volume metrics, including admissions,
patient days, inpatient and outpatient surgeries, emergency visits.

Financial Measure 1Q 2014 YTD 2Q 2014 YTD 3Q2014 YTD 4Q 2014 YTD
EBIDA § $5,621

EBIDA % 6.81%

Loan Ratios

Current Ratio 2.82

Debt to Capital Ratio 35.4%

Debt Service Coverage

Ratio 5-16

Debt to EBIDA % 245

Key Service Volumes,

cumulative

Acute discharges 2,308
Acute patient days 10,129
Average length of stay 4.39
E.m.ergcncy Department 9,014
visits

Inpatient surgeries 531
Outpatient surgeries 958
DEFINITIONS OF TERMS

EBIDA: Eamings Before Interest, Depreciation And Amortization. By adding back interest and amortization payments as well
as depreciation (a non-cash outflow expense), it allows the measurement of the cash that a company generates.

Debt to Capital Ratio: A measurement of how leveraged a company is. The ratio compares a firm's total debt to its total capital.
The total capital is the amount of available funds that the company can use for financing projects and other operations. A
high debt-to-capital ratio indicates that a high proportion of a company's capital is comprised of debt.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio: A measurement of a property's ability to generate enough revenue to cover the cost of its
mortgage payments. It is calculated by dividing the net operating income by the total debt service. For example, a property
with a net operating income of $50,000 and a total debt service of $40,000 would have a debt service ratio of 1.25, meaning
that it generates 25% more revenue than required to cover its debt payment.

Debt to EBIDA %: Measurement used to predict a company's ability to pay off the debt it already has. The ratio calculates the
amount of time required for the business to pay off all debt, but does not take into considerations like interest, depreciation,
taxes or amortization. Having a high debt/EBITDA ratio will often result in a lower credit score for the business.

Page 4 of 14




' MGH Performance Metrics and Core Services Report
1Q 2014

Schedule 3: Clinical Quality Reporting Metrics

» Tier 2, Quality, Safety and Com:pliance

The MGH Board will report on efforts to advance clinical quality efforts, including performance
metrics in areas of primary organizational focus in MGH’s Performance Improvement Plan
(including Clinical Quality Reporting metrics and Service Line Quality Improvement Goals as
developed, e.g., readmission rates, patient falls, “never events,” process of care measures, adverse
drug effects, CLABSI, preventive care programs).

CLINICAL QUALITY METRICS DASHBOARD
Metrics are publicly reported on CalHospital Compare (www.calhospitalcompare.org), and

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Hospital Compare (www.hospitalcompare.hhs.gov/)

Abbreviations and Acronyms Used in Dashboard Report
Term Title/Phrase
Abx Antibiotics
ACC American College of Cardiology
ACE Angiotensin Converting Enzyme Inhibitor
AMI Acute Myocardial Infarction
APR DRG All Patient Refined Diagnosis Related Groups
ARB Angiotensin Receptor Blocker
ASA American Stroke Association
C Section Caesarian Section
CHART California Hospital Assessment and Reporting Task Force
CLABSI Central Line Associated Blood Stream Infection
CMS Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
CT Computerized Axial Tomography (CAT Scan)
CVP Central Venous Pressure
ED Emergency Department
HF Heart Failure
Hg Mercury
hr(s) hour(s)
ICU Intensive Care Unit
LVS Left Ventricular Systolic
LVSD Left Ventricular Systolic Dysfunction
NHSN National Healthcare Safety Network
PCI Percutancous Coronary Intervention
PN Pneumonia
POD Post-op Day
Pt Patient
SCIP Surgical Care Improvement Project
Scv02 Central Venous Oxygen Saturation
STEMI ST Elevated Myocardial Infarction (ST refers to the EKG tracing segment)
VAP Ventilator Associated Pneumonia
VHA Voluntary Hospitals of America
VTE - Venous Thromboembolism

Page 5 of 14

o gt = e S T e e

T




MARIN GENERAL HOSPITAL DASHBOARD
CLINICAL QUALITY METRICS
Publicly Reported on CalHospital Compare (www.calhospitalcompere.ors)
and Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Hospital Compare (www.hospitalcompare.hhs.gov/)
Q1-Qtr Q1-2014 Rolling Raolling
L1 ™ 5
METRIC CMS' Apr-13 | May-13 | Jun-13 | Jul-13 | Aug-13 | Sep-13 | Oct-13 | Nov-13 | Dec-13 | Jan-14 | Feb-14 | Mar-14 % Num/Den o Num/Den
Acute Myocardial Infarction (AMI) Measures
Aspirin at arrival TIC 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 58/58 100% 206/206
Aspirin prescribed at discharge 9%% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 55/55 100% 195/195
[ACEI or ARB for LVSD TC N/A N/A | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | N/A | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 5/5 100% 25/25
Beta blocker prescribed at discharge 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 49/49 100% 167167
Primary PCI within 90 minutes of arrival 9% 100% | N/A N/A | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 14/14 100% 38/38
Statin Prescribed at Discharge 9%8% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 53/53 100% 184/184
Heart Failure (HF) Measures
Evaluation of LVS F 99% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 51/51 100% 1617161
ACEI or ARB for LVSD 97% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 13/13 100% 36/36
Pnenmonia (PN) Measures
Blood cultures performed within 24 hours prior to or 24 hours after
hospital arrival for patients who were transferred or admitted to the ICU | 95% 100% | N/A | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | N/A | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 1414 100% 28/28
within 24 hours of hospital arrival
*Initial entibiotic selection for CAP in mmmunocompetent patient 95% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | t00% | 100% | 100% 43/43 100% 26/26
Initial antibiotic selection for CAP in immunocompetent ICU patient TC 100% | N/A N/A NA | 100% | NnA N/A N/A N/A N/A | 100% | 100% | 100% 6/6 100% /8
Initial antibiotic selection for CAP in immunocompetent non-ICU pt TIC 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 387 100% 78/18
| Surgical Care Improvement Project (SCIP)Measures
Prophylactic antibiotic rec'd within one hr prior to surgical incision 9% 100% 97% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 82/82 100% 309/310
*Prophylactic antibiotic selection for surgical patients. Overall rate 99% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 97% | 100% 9% 81/82 100% 3091310
;_P“’P“Y "“‘l’f “‘"“"‘“““ discontinued within 24 howrs after swrgery end | gg0r | yoon, | oave | 100% | 100% | 100% | 9% | 9% | 9e% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 9% | oo 80781 98% 303/309
ime Overall rate
ICardiac surgery patients with lled postoperative blood gl 97% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 67% | 100% | 100% %0% 13/14 98% 5253
Surgery patients with appropriate hair r TIC 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 15115 100% 456/456
*Uninery, catheter removed on post:op dayLi(POD 1) ot post-op davi2 7% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 95% | 100% | 100% | 93% | 100% | 100% | ss% | o4 | oz | e 45049 7% 198/204
(POD 2), day of sirgery being day zero (POD) B ’ i : i .
»Surgery patients on beta-blocker therapy prior to amval who recerved &l ggo. | yo00c | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | ss% | 100% | 100% | oew 26027 09% 109110
beta-blocker during the peiiop penod
*Surgery patients who received appropitate venous & b bol » s v
frylaxts withan 24 brs prior 80 sugary to 24 brs after urgery 97% 100% | 100% | 96% 96% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 96% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 78/78 9% 3180321
Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) Measures
VTE prophylaxis ‘ 83% 100% | 94% 98% 94% | 100% | 100% | 97 | 100% | 95% | toow | 95% | 100% 98% 128/130 98% 478/488
ICU V'l'E pmpltylms. ' 91% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% [ 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 16/16 100% 60/60
VTE patlems.w-lth mtlcoa;::ulatm ovetlap therapy 92% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 1M 100% 60/60
VTE pts reo.elvmg UFH .w“h dos-agelplat-elet monitoring 96% 100% 100% 100% 1060% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% N/A N/A 100% 11 100% 25/25
VTE warfarm therapy d : harge instr 73% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% [ 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 40% | 33% 6% 374 5Nt 86% 38/44
Hospital acquired p Ily-preventable VTE + 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% N/A 0% N/A 0% % 0% 0% o7 0% 0n7
Global Immunization (IMM) Measures
*Influenza immunization | oo% [ v | wa ] na | wa B ENED | o1% ] oo% | 9% | s% [ s [ a7 2211254 5% 453/515

* Performance period for CMS Value-Based Purchasing metric: 01-01-2014 through 12-31-2014 (shaded in blue)

** CMS Top Declle Benchmark

**% CMS Natlonal Median 8enchmark (changed from top decile to national median effactive 3rd Qtr 2013)

TIC: The Joint Commission measures, may be CMS voluntary
BTBE: Benchmark to be established

+ Lower Number is better

MGH Clinical Quality Metrics, 1Q 2014

Page 6 of 14



MARIN GENERAL HOSPITAL DASHBOARD
CLINICAL QUALITY METRICS
Publicly Reported on CalHospital Compare (www.calhospitalcompare, arg)
and Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Hospital Compare (www.hospitalcompare hhs.gov/)

METRIC CM5* | Apr13 | May-13 | Jun-13 | Jul13 | Aug-13 | Sepe13 | Oct-13 | Nov-13 | Dec-13 | Jan-14 | Feb-14 | Mar-14 Q’#"’ l?::,;‘; R";'Z'g Nl;::l/i;:.
Stroke Measures
Venous thromboembolism (VTE) prophylaxis 93% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 45/45 100% 155155
Discharged on antithrombotic therapy 99% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 3737 100%% 132/132
Anticoagulation therapy for atrial fibrillation/flutter ast, 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 1313 100% 36136
Thrombolytic therapy 63% NA | NA | NWA | 100% | NA | 100% | NA | 100% | NA | 100% | 100% | WA | 100% 202 100% n
| Antithrombotic therapy by end of hospital day 2 98% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 38/38 100% 137137
Discharged on statin medication 94% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 28/28 100% 90/90
Stroke education 87% 83% | 100% | S0% | 100% | 100% | 100% | B9% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 16/16 95% 69/73
Assess for rehabilitation 97% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 45/45 100% 153/153
ED Inpatient Measures
Median time ED arrival to ED departure - Minutes + 275*++ | 318.00 | 325.00 | 322.00 | 30000 | 353.00 | 305.00 | 209.00 | 291.50 | 312.00 | 318.00 | 298.00 | 347.50 | 32147 169--Cases | 31608 | 691~Cases
Admit decision median time to ED departure time - Minutes + 98*** | 150,00 | 161.00 | 165.00 | 160.00 | 165.00 | 154.50 | 165.00 | 150.00 | 134.00 | 168.00 | 170.00 | 165.00 [ 14767 116—Cases | 158, | 469—Cases
ED Outpatient [ED) Measures
Median time ED arrival to ED discharge + 135%++ | 16850 | 127.00 | 154.50 | 168.00 | 147.00 | 142.00 | 138.00 | 143,50 | 13850 | 16850 | 149.50 | 121.50 | 14650 102~Cases | 147.21 | 459~Cases
Door to di ic evaluation by qualified medical personnel + 264+ 37.00 | 37.00 | 40.00 | 33.00 | 2300 | 28.00 | 2350 | 3000 | 37.00 | 31.00 | 31.00 | 36.00 3267 101—Cases a2 454—Cases
Outpatient Pain Management Measure
Median time to pain management for lang bone fracture - Mins + [ seew T 's150 [ 6250 | 3500 [ 4600 [ 4800 | 7500 [ 5400 | 4850 | 6700 | 4630 [ 7300 | 5100 | s6#3 | 31-Cases | 55 [ 150-Cases
Outpatient Stroke Measure
Head CT/MRI results for stroke patients within 45 mins of EDarrival | 54% | NA | 0% | NA [ 100 [ o | wa | wa | 100% | 100% ESEAESESEE | sow | 36
Outpatient Surgery Measures
Timing of antibiotic prophylaxis | 98% 100% | 100% | 100% | 95% | 2% | 1% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 51/51 98% 206/210
Antibiotic selection { 99% 100% | 92% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 96% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 51551 9% 207210
* Performance period for CMS Value-Based Purchasing metric: 01-01-2014 through 12-31-2014 (shaded in blue) + Lower Number is better

**  CMS Top Declle Benchmark

*** CMS National Median Benchmark (changed from top decile to national median effective 3rd Qtr 2013)
TIC: The Joint Commission measures, may be CMS valuntary

BTBE: Benct k to be blished

MGH Clinical Quality Metrics, 1Q 2014 Page 7 of 14



Publicly Reported on CalHospital Contpare (www.calhospitalcompare.org)

MARIN GENERAL HOSPITAL DASHBOARD

CLINICAL QUALITY METRICS

and Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Hospital Compare (www hospital hhs.gov/)
I Benchmark |
4 Surgical Site Infection
National Standardized ;
METRIC Tnfection Ratio (STR) Jan 2012 - June 2012 Jan 2012 - Sep 2012 April 2012 - March 2013 July 2012 - June 2013
*Colon 1 Insufficient data to calculate | Insufficient data to calculate Sira 0.80 No Different than U.S.
olon surery SIR SIR & - Nationel Benchmark
. Insufficient data to calculate | Insufficient data to calculate | Insufficient data to calculate No Different than U.S
* 3
Abdominal hysterectomy 1 SIR SIR SIR 0.00 National Benchmark
4 Healthcare Associated Infections (ICU)
3 National Stamdardized . i _
METRIC Infection Ratio (SIR) Oct 2011 - Sep 2012 Jan 2012 - Sep 2012 April 2012 - March 2013 July 2012 - June 2013
) Diffe 1.S.
*Central Line Assaciated Blood Stream Infection Rate (CLABSI) 1 0.59 not published 133 0.85 "f‘? Yfferent than U.S
. No Different than U.S,
Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infestion (CAUTI) 1 not published 0381 0.55 0.86 Nagional Boscleras
4 Healtheare Associated Infections (Inpatients)
National Standardized
METRIC Infection Ratio (SIR) July 2012 - June 2013
No Different than U.S.
*Clostridium Difficile 1 LS National Benchmarl
. . No Different than U.S.
*Methicillin Resistant Staph Aurcus Bacteremia 1 0.00 National Benchmarl
4 Surgical Complications
METRIC CMS National Average July 2009 - March 2012
Hip/knee complication: Hospital-level risk — Standardized complication 3.40% 10
rate (RSCR) following elective primary totat hip/knee arthoplasty - .
CMS National Avers Oct 2010 - June 2012
*Serious Complications 0.61 ‘Worse than National Average
. , o 110.25 1,000 patient No different than National
Deaths among patients with serious treatable complications after surgery (fi:rchargcspa © ° el:nmje #

¢ Medicare Spending Per Beneficiary

]

METRIC T CMS National Average | __ Jan 2012 - Dec 2012
*Medi pending per beneficiary (All) 0.98 ! 1.02
¢ Mortality Measures - 30 Day
METRIC CMS National Avers, July 2006 - June 2009 July 2007 - June 2010 July 2008 - June 2011 July 2009 - June 2012
*Acute Myocardial Infarction Mortality Rate 15.2% 13.8% 13.7% 13.5% 13.30%
*Heart Failure Mortality Rate 11.7% 10.6% 123% 12.9% 13.8%
*Pneumonia Mortality Rate 11.9% 11.6% 11.1% 10.7% 10.9%
COPD Mortality Rate TBD
LStmke Mortality Rate TBD
* Performance period for CMS Value-Based Purchasing metric: 01-01-2014 through 12-31-2014 (shaded in blue) + Lower Number is better

MGH Clinical Quality Metrics, 1Q 2014

Page 8 of 14



Publicly Reported on CalHospital Compare (www.calhospitalcompare org)

MARIN GENERAL HOSPITAL DASHBOARD

CLINICAL QUALITY METRICS

and Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Hospital Compare (www hospitalcompare hhs.gov/)

¢ Acute Care Readmissions - 30 Day Risk Standardized

METRIC CMS National Average July 2006 - June 2009 July 2007 - June 2010 July 2008- June 2011 July 2009- June 2012
Acute Myocardial Infarction Readmission Rate 18.3% 18.0% 19.1% 18.0% 16.70%
Heart Failure Readmission Rate 23.0% 24.8% 24.5% 24.7% 22.60%
Pneumonia Readmission Rate 17.6% 17.7% 17.9% 17.9% 16.20%
COPD Readmission Rate TBD
Stroke Readmission Rate TBD
Total Hip Arthoplasty and Total Knee Arthoplasty Readmission Rate 5.4% 5.80%
METRIC CMS National Average July 2011 - June 2012
Hospital-Wide All-Cause Unplanned Readmission 16.0% 152%
¢ Outpatient Measures (Claims Data)
METRIC CMS National Average Jan 2011 - Dec 2011
Outpatient with low back pain who had an MRI without trying o Not availabl
recommended treatments first, such as physical therapy 36.5% ot avarable
Outpatient who had follow-up mammorgram, ultrasound, or MRI of the 8.8% 7.70%
breast within 45 days after the screening on the mammogram ) o
socmem CT scans of the abdomen that were "combination” (double) 12.7% 6.00%
Sutpatient CT scans of the chest that were "combination” {double) scans 379 1.40%
Outpatients who got cardiac imaging stress tests before low-risk _
outpatient surgery + 5.5% 5.56%
Outpatients with brain CT scans who got a sinus CT scan at the same time
N 2.8% 1.70%
* Performance period for CMS Value-Based Purchasing metric: 01-01-2014 through 12-31-2014 (shaded in blue) + Lower Number is better
MGH Clinical Quality Metrics, 1Q 2014 Page 9 of 14




| M’GH Pérforiﬁﬁnée Metrlcs a;& Core Sexvxc esReport |
1Q 2014

Schedule 4: Community Benefit Sumxmary

> Tier 2, Commuriity Commitment
The Board will report all of MGH’s cash and in-kind contributions to other organizations.
The Board will report on MGH’s Charity Care.

Cash & In-Kind Donations
(these figures are not final and are subject to change)
1G 2014 2Q 2014 3Q 2014 4Q 2014 Total 2014
Bread & Roses 40” Anniversary $2,420
Healthy Aging Symposium $1,000
Homeward Bound of Marin $113,600
Marin Community Clinics $53,151
Marin Community Clinics Summer Solstice $1,000
MHD 1206(b) Clinics $1,183,299
PRIMA Medical Foundation $950,000
RotaCare San Rafael (Refrigerator) . $2,182
Total Cash Donations $2.306,652
 Total Cash & In-Kind Donations | $2,306,652 | | | |

Page 10 of 14




Performance Metrics and Core Services Report
1Q 2014

spidrLRor

~ MGH

Schedule 4, continued

Community Benefit Summary
(these figures are not final and are subject to change)
1Q 2014 2Q 2014 3Q 2014 4Q2014 | Total 2014
Community Health Improvement Services $41,854 $41.854
Health Professions Education $17,993 $17,993
Cash and In-Kind Contributions $2,306,652 $2,306,652
Community Benefit Operations $1,640 $1,640
Traditional Charity Care
*Operation Access total in Charity Care: $575,773 $1,063,745 $1,063,745
Government Sponsored Health Care
(includes Medi-Cal & Means-Tested $6,649,465 $6,649,465
Government Programs)
Community Benefit Subtotal
(amount reported annually to state & TRS) SHO;061549, $10,081,349
Community Building Activities $0 $0
Unpaid Cost of Medicare $15,529,526 $15,529,526
Bad Debt $526,391 $526,391
Community Benefit, Community Building,
Unpaid Cost of Medicare and Bad Debe Total | 526:137:266 $26,137,266
Operation Access
Though not a Community Benefit requirement. MGH has been participating with Operation Access since 2000.
Operation Access brings together medical professionals and hospitals to provide donated outpatient surgical and specialty care
for the uninsured and underserved.
1Q 2014 2Q 2014 3Q2014 | 4Q2014 | Total 2014
*Qperation Access charity care provided by
MGH (waived hospital charges) §575,173 $575,773

i e e RS

Page 11 of 14




'MGH Performance Metrics and Core S

1Q 2014

=

ervices Report

s

Schedule 5: Nursing Turnover, Vacancies, Net Changes

»  Tier 2, Physicians and Employees
The MGH Board will analyze and provide information regarding nursing turnover rate, nursing
vacancy rate, and net nursing staff change at MGH.

Turnover Rate
Number of Terminated
Quarter Clinical Rate
RNs Voluntary | Involuntary
2Q 2013 561 11 1 2.14%,
3Q2013 556 13 1 2.52%
4Q 2013 552 14 1 2.72%
1Q 2014 547 16 4 3.66%
Vacancy Rate
Per Benefited | Per Diem
Diem Benefited | Per Diem | Benefited | Benefited | Per Diem Total Vacancy | Vacancy
Period | Postings | iostings Hires Hires Headcount | Headcount | Headcount Rate Rate
2Q 2013 22 29 11 8 387 174 561 7.49% 12.64%
3Q 2013 24 29 3 6 387 169 556 7.49% 14.20%
4Q 2013 19 37 8 4 386 166 552 9.59% 11.45%
1Q 2014 14 25 4 11 393 154 547 6.36% 9/09%
Hired, Termed, Net Change
Period | Hired | Termed | Net Change
2Q 2013 19 12 7
3Q2013 | 9 14 ()
4Q2013 | 12 15 3)
1Q2014 | 15 20 (%

Page 12 of 14




* MGH Performance Metrics an

1Q 2014

N

L e s R S

d Core ServmesRepmt

¥ Tier 2, Volumes and Service Array

Schedule 6: Ambulance Diversion

The MGH Board will report on current Emergency services diversion statistics.

Length of Waiting .
Quarter | Date Time Time on Reason ED Census Room ED Admitted
Divert Census Patient Census
1640 - .
1Q2014 | Jan.2 0039 8 hours | ED Saturation 25 10 5
1810 - 1 hour, Trauma
1Q2014 | Jan.3 2005 55 min Diversion 3 9 4
1805 - 2 hours, .
1Q2014 | Jan. 9 2020 15 min ED Saturation 31 10 5
1510 - .
1Q2014 | Jan. 14 1706 2hours | ED Saturation 22 5 12
1825 - 2 hours, .
1Q 2014 | Jan.15 2105 20 min ED Saturation 32 9 8
1417 - 2 hours, . 24
1Q2014 | Jan. 19 1646 29 min ED Saturation (3 ICU Pts) 0 6
1Q 2014 | Feb. 16 1905- 1 5 hours | ED Saturation 33 10 3
2105 (2 ICU holds)
0000 - 2 hours, .
1Q 2014 | Feb. 26 0215 15 min ED Saturation 17 6 6

Page 13 of 14




ot s b

oot e v

MGH Performance Metrics and Core Services Report
1Q 2014
Schedule 6, continued
2014 ED Diversion Data - All Reasons*
*ED Saturation, CT Scanner Inoperable, Trauma Diversion, Neurosurgeon unavailable, Cath Lab
(Not including patienis denied admission when not on divert do hospital bed capacity)
35 -
i
30 -
25
7]
@
o
7 20
£ .
O
O
% 15
3
o
I 10
]
5 ,\ mmaE i
L
0 \- : .
Jan Feb Miar Apr Hiay sun o Jul Aug Sep Oct Hov Cec
.o Hours 189 42 o i
=i Qocuriances 5 2 4 ,

Page 14 of 14










| ealthcare o
PG

Creating a healthier Marin together.

Community Health Grant Policy

POLICY

The purposes of Marin Healthcare District include the promotion of actions to provide healthcare
services in the community. The District is not a grants agency, but may make selected grants for
qualifying health care programs as funds are available for such purposes.

The Marin Healthcare District may from time to time make grants to health care programs which
promote the purpose of the District to enhance the provision of adequate health services to
residents of the District.

Any grants made by the District are discretionary. Grant approvals are usually on a onetime basis
preferably with a one-year term, and shall not create priority consideration for grantees as to any
future grant funds. Decisions shall be subject to availability of District funds.

PROCESS

Each year, the Marin Healthcare District Board invites a limited number of proposals (typically
one to three) from targeted organizations for its funding of Community Health Grants. Grant
requests must meet the eligibility and restrictions outlined below. All eligible grant requests will
be reviewed by the Board for consideration. The Board may choose to solicit input from Marin
County leaders (Director of Marin County Department of Health & Human Services, Director of
the Marin Community Foundation, etc.) and key stakeholders as appropriate. Grantees will be
required to report on their progress twice; once at mid-year and again at the end of the year.

ELIGIBILITY AND RESTRICTIONS

Marin Healthcare District provides financial support to local nonprofit and public health and
human service organizations that serve vulnerable communities in Marin for health related
programs or issues. Only nonprofit, tax-exempt organizations and public agencies are eligible.

Community Health Grant Criteria:
1. The project/organization should address an identified need.

2. The project/organization must be established in the community; financial support is not
available for start-ups.
3. The project/organization must benefit the residents of Marin County

Community Health Grants are generally NOT awarded for:
e Arts programs

¢ Cultural events
e Schools
¢ Formal athletic programs, such as sports teams or leagues
e Fundraising activities
e Annual fund drives
100 B Drake's Landing Road, Suite 250 office 415-464-2090

Greenbroe, CA 94904 fax 415-464-2094



Community Health Grant Policy - DRAFT

e Building or capital campaigns
e Individuals
* Religious organizations (religious purposes or exclusive benefit of their members)
e Political campaigns
100 B Drake's Landing Road, Suite 250 office 415-464-2090

Greenbrae, CA 94904 fax 415-464-2094









 ealtheare o,
Vol

Creating a healthier Marin together.

Community Health Grant Policy

POLICY

The purposes of Marin Healthcare District include the promotion of actions to provide healthcare
services in the community. The District is not a grants agency, but may make selected grants for
qualifying health care programs as funds are available for such purposes.

The Marin Healthcare District may from time to time make grants to health care programs which
promote the purpose of the District to enhance the provision of adequate health services to
residents of the District.

Any grants made by the District are discretionary. AH-Ggrant approvals apprevals-shallare
usually on a onetime basis-be-one-time-only; preferably with a one-year term, and shall not create
priority consideration for grantees as to any future grant funds. Decisions shall be subject to
availability of District funds.

PROCESS

Each year, the Marin Healthcare District Board invites a limited number of proposals (typically
one to three) from targeted organizations for its funding of Community Health Grants. Grant
requests must meet the eligibility and restrictions outlined below. All eligible grant requests will
be reviewed by the Board for consideration. The Board may choose to solicit input from Marin

County leaders (Larry-Meredith—TomPetersDirector of Marin County Department of Health &
Human Services, Director of the Marin Community Foundation, etc.) and key stakeholders as

appropriate. Grantees will be required to report on their progress twice; once at mid-year and
again at the end of the year.

ELIGIBILITY AND RESTRICTIONS

Marin Healthcare District provides financial support to local nonprofit and public health and
human service organizations that serve vulnerable communities in Marin for health related
programs or 1ssues. Only nonprofit, tax-exempt organizations and public agencies are eligible.

| Community Benefit-Health Grant Criteria:
1. The project/organization should address an identified need.

3:2. ____ The project/organization must be established in the community; financial support
is not available for start-ups.

{— No-capital (bricks and J srojests.

5.3.  The project/organization must benefit the residents of Marin County

| Community Benefit-Health Grants are generally NOT awarded for:
e Arts programs
e Cultural events

100 B Drake's Landing Road, Suite 250 office 415-464-2090
Greenbrae, CA 94904 fax 415-464-2094



Community Health Grant Policy - DRAFT

Schools

Formal athletic programs, such as sports teams or leagues

Fundraising activities

Annual fund drives

Building or capital campaigns

Individuals

Religious organizations (religious purposes or exclusive benefit of their members)
Political campaigns

100 B Drake's Landing Road, Suite 250 office 415-464-2090
Greenbrae, CA 94904 fax 415-464-2094









| Ghestthcane o
Vol

Creating a healthier Marin together.

Community Health Grant Application

Thank you for your interest in the Marin Healthcare District Community Health Grant Program.
Through our Community Health Grants we work to improve the health of our community by
addressing issues and concerns that affect overall health. Please review our Community Health
Grant Policy for eligibility and requirements. A completed application must be submitted for it to
be considered. The total budget must also be attached and submitted along with the application.

APPLICANT INFORMATION
Name:

Phone; Fax:

Email:

Relationship/Position to Organization:

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION
Name:
Address:
City: State: Zip:
Website:

Tax Status: Tax ID#:

Annual Budget:

Brief Organization Description (including mission, goals and communities served):

100 B Drake's Landing Road, Suite 250 office 415-464-2090
Greenbrae, CA 94904 fax 415-464-2094



Community Health Grant Application - DRAFT

APPLICATION/PROJECT REQUEST INFORMATION
Project Title:
Start Date: End Date:

Summary:

Objectives/Goals (please be as specific and measurable as possible):
1.

Project Budget (total budget must be submitted with application):

Amount of funding you are requesting from Marin Healthcare District (MHD):

What line items would MHD funding go towards and in what time frame would it be used:

Other sources of funding (including already secured and pending):

100 B Drake'’s Landing Road, Suite 250 office 415-464-2090
Greenbrse, CA 94904 fax 415-464-2094



Community Health Grant Application - DRAFT

Populations served (please select all that apply):

Insurance Gender Age Group Ethnicity
O Insured O Male O<18 O African American
O Uninsured O Female 0 18-40 O Asian
O Payer Mix 0O Both O 40-65 O Caucasian
0 65+ O Hispanic or Latino
Vulnerable O Other;
O Homeless
O Mentally I11
O Low Income
OPrimary Language Not English

Number of people expected to reach/serve:

Other partners involved in the project:

EVALUATION

How will each objective/goal be measured?

How will outcomes be measured?

SUBMISSIONS/QUESTIONS
Please contact Jamie Maites to submit your completed application or for any questions.
P: 415-925-74241 F: 415-461-1226 1 jamiemaites@marinhealthcare.org

100 B Drake's Landing Road, Suite 250 office 415-464-209C
Greenbrae, CA 94904 fex 415-464-2094






| pealtheare o
ey

Creating a healthier Marin together.

Community Health Grant Report
[]6 Month [ ]12 Month

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION
Name:

Website:

PROJECT CONTACT

Name:

Phone: Fax:

Email;

Relationship/Position to Organization:

PROJECT INFORMATION
Project Title:
Start Date: End Date:
Project Status:

Budget Update (including MHD funds):

Number of people reached/served to date:

120 B Drake's Landing Road, Suite 250 office 415-464-2090
Greenbrae, CA 94904 fax 415-464-2094



Community Health Grant Report

Objective/Goals (From Application) Status
1 1
2 2
3 3
4 4
5 5

SUBMISSIONS/QUESTIONS
Please contact Jamie Maites to submit your completed application or for any questions.

P: 415-925-7424 1 F: 415-461-1226 1 jamiemaites@marinhealthcare.org

100 B Drake's Lanc]ing Road, Suite 250 office 415-464-2090
Greenbrae, CA 94904 fax 415-464-2094



	Blank Page



